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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

p  Annual report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of tle Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011

or

Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) 6the Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 1-35106

AMC Networks Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 27-5403694
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
11 Penn Plaza, New York, NY 10001
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(212) 324-8500

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which register¢
Class A Common Stock, par value $0.01 per s The NASDAQ Stock Market LL(
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢ifie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edfdturities Act.  Yes' No p
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord)®f the Act. Yes™ No p

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by SewmtiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefildsuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 day¥es p No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥tb site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRuie 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of this ¢bgpduring the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Yés No ~

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it oontained herein, and will not be
contained to the best of registrant’s knowledgeldfinitive proxy or information statements incorgied by reference in Part 11l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2).

Large accelerated fil ~ Accelerated filel
Non-accelerated file p Smaller reporting compal ~
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the EExgje Act). Yes™ No p

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s comstock held by non-affiliates of the registraxtimputed by reference to the closing price
of a share of common stock on June 30, 2011 (8tdlssiness day of the registrant’s most recemtiygieted second fiscal quarter) was
approximately $2,454,000,000.

The number of shares of common stock outstandiraf Bkarch 7, 2012:

Class A Common Stock par value $0.01 per s 58,163,61
Class B Common Stock par value $0.01 per s 13,534,40

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:

Certain information required in Item 10 througmité4 of Part Ill of this Annual Report on Form 10ikincorporated herein by reference to
the Registrar' s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2012 Annualé¥leg of Stockholders, which shall be filed witlet8ecurities and Exchan



Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934, as amended, within 186 af the Registrant’s fiscal year
end.




Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pag
Part |
Item 1. Business 3
Item 1A. Risk Factors 17
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 30
ltem 2. Properties 30
ltem 3. Legal Proceedings 30
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures 31
Part Il
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity

Securities 32
Item 6. Selected Financial Date 35
Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations 37
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk 69
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat 70
ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure 70
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 70
Item 9B. Other Information 70
Part Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace 71
ltem 11. Executive Compensatior 71
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matter: 71
ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence 71
ltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service 71
Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule 72

SIGNATURES 76



Table of Contents

Part |

ltem 1. Business
GENERAL

AMC Networks Inc. is a Delaware corporation withr uincipal executive offices at 11 Penn Plaza, Nesk, NY 10001. AMC
Networks Inc. is a holding company and conductstartiially all of its operations through its subiaites. Unless the context otherw
requires, all references to “we,” “our,” “us,” “AMBetworks” or the “Company” refer to AMC Networksd., together with its direct and
indirect subsidiaries. “AMC Networks Inc.” refexs AMC Networks Inc. individually as a separate gntOur telephone number is (212) 324-
8500. Our internet address is http://www.amcneteaim and the investor relations section of oursitelis located at
http://investor.amcnetworks.com. We make availaloée of charge through the investor relationsieaaif our website, our annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and autrreports on Form 8-K and amendments to thosertefited or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as well as our proxy statements, as ssaeasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnigho, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“3EReferences to our website addressed in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Refipare provided as a convenience and the infomnatbntained on, or available through,
the website is not part of this or any other repatfile with or furnish to the SEC.

AMC Networks Inc. was incorporated on March 9, 2@%Jan indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Cabdéa Systems Corporation
(Cablevision Systems Corporation and its subsieliaaire referred to as “Cablevision”). On June @12Cablevision’s board of directors
approved the distribution of all of the outstandamgnmon stock of the Company to Cablevision shddehs (the “Distribution”) and the
Company thereafter acquired 100% of the limitedility company interests in Rainbow Media HoldingsC (“RMH"), the subsidiary of
Cablevision through which Cablevision had histdhjcawned the businesses described below. Cabtavispun-off the Company and the
Company became an independent public company an3r2011, the date of the Distribution. Both @atdion and AMC Networks contin
to be controlled by Charles F. Dolan, certain merloé his immediate family and certain family reldtentities (collectively the “Dolan
Family”).

OUR COMPANY

AMC Networks owns and operates several of cab&vigibn's most recognized brands delivering highliy content to audiences and a
valuable platform to distributors and advertis&isice our founding in 1980, we have been a pioimettre cable television programming
industry, having created or developed some ofridastry’s leading programming networks. We hauvegesiour inception, focused on
programming of film and original productions, inding through our creation of Bravo and AMC in 1980 1984, respectively. Bravo, which
we sold to NBC Universal in 2002, was the firstwmtk dedicated to film and the performing arts. iié&e continued this dedication to quality
programming and storytelling through our creatibiloe Independent Film Channel (today known as Iif1)994 and WE tv (which we
launched as Romance Classics in 1997) and oursitigniof Sundance Channel in June 2008.

We manage our business through two reportable tipgrsegments: (i) National Networks, which incladeMC, WE tv, IFC and
Sundance Channel; and (ii) International and Otlvaich includes AMC/Sundance Channel Global, oterimational programming business;
IFC Films, our independent film distribution bussiseand AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology, wetwork technical services
business. Our National Networks are distributedufghout the United States (“U.S.”) via cable artteomultichannel video programming
distribution platforms, including direct broadcaatellite (“DBS”) and platforms operated by telecoomications providers (we refer
collectively to these cable and other multichanim@¢o programming distributors as “multichannelesdprogramming distributors” or
“distributors”). In addition to our extensive Udstribution, AMC, IFC and Sundance Channel arélabke in Canada and Sundance Channel
and WE tv are available in other countries throughgurope and Asia. We earn revenue principallynftbe affiliation fees
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paid by distributors to carry our programming netikgoand from advertising sales. In 2011, affiliatiees and other revenue accounted for
of our consolidated revenues, net and advertisitgssaccounted for 38% of our consolidated revemegs

For financial information of the Company by opemgtsegment, please see Note 13 to the accompamyirsglidated financial stateme
and the information under the caption “ConsolidéRedults of Operations” in Management’s Discussind Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (Part Il—Item 7. of thiswual Report).

OUR STRENGTHS
Our strengths include:

Strong Industry Presence and Portfolio of Brande have operated in the cable programming inddstrgnore than 30 years and
over this time we have continually enhanced theealf our network portfolio. Our programming netwbrands are well known and
well regarded by our key constituents—our viewdistributors and advertisers—and have developemgtfollowings within their
respective targeted demographics, increasing dueva distributors and advertisers. AMC (whichyiets adults aged 25 to 54), WE tv
(which targets women aged 18 to 49 and 25 to 54, (vhich targets adults aged 18 to 49) and Sured@hannel (which targets adults
aged 25 to 54) have established themselves as tampavithin their respective markets. Our deep estdblished presence in the industry
and the recognition we have received for our brahosugh industry awards and other honors lend higladegree of credibility with
distributors and content producers, and help peui with stable affiliate and studio relationshgdvantageous channel placements and
heightened viewer engagement.

Broad Distribution and Penetration of Our Natiorfdétworks. Our national networks are broadly distributedhiea U.S. AMC, WE
tv, IFC and Sundance Channel are each carried loyagdr multichannel video programming distributo®ur national networks are
available to a significant percentage of subscsiliethese distributorsystems. This broad distribution and penetrati@viples us with
strong national platform on which to maintain, patenand grow our business.

Compelling ProgrammingiVe continually refine our mix of programming and aiddition to our popular film content, have
increasingly focused on highly visible, criticalieclaimed original programming, including the awaidning Mad Men, Breaking Bad
andThe Walking Deadwhich in 2011 was cable television’s highestdateama ever among adults aged 18-49 and 25-54r @tpular
series includ@he Killing, Hell on Wheels Braxton Family ValuesBridezillas, PortlandiaandThe Increasingly Poor Decisions of T¢
Margaret. Our focus on quality original programming, tafggtspecific audiences, has allowed us in receats/® increase our
programming networks’ ratings and their viewershithin these respective targeted demographics.

Recurring Revenue from Affiliation Agreemen@ur affiliation agreements with multichannel vaderogramming distributors are a
recurring source of revenue. We generally seekrtctsire these agreements so that they are longitenature and to stagger their
expiration dates, thereby increasing the predititalaind stability of our affiliation fee revenues.

Desirable Advertising PlatformOur national networks have a strong connectidh ®ach of their respective targeted
demographics, which make our programming networkataractive platform to advertisers. Althoughddlbur programming networks
were originally operated without advertising, werddeen incrementally migrating our networks tadwertiser-supported model. We
have experienced significant growth in our adverntjsevenues in recent years, which has allowet develop high-quality
programming.
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OUR STRATEGY

Our strategy is to maintain and improve our pogitig a leading programming and entertainment coynpgiowning and operating
several of the most popular and award-winning bsandtable television that create engagement withesmces globally across multiple media
and distribution platforms. The key focuses of swategy are:

Continued Development of High-Quality Original Prammming. We intend to continue developing strong origip@igramming
across all of our programming networks to enhangebeands, strengthen our relationships with oewers, distributors and advertisers,
and increase distribution and audience ratingsbélieve that our continued investment in originagramming supports future growth
in our two principal revenue streams—affiliatior fevenue from our distributors and advertisingerere. We also intend to continue to
expand the exploitation of our original programmaggoss multiple media and distribution platforms.

Increased Distribution of our Programming Network3f our four national networks, only AMC is subsially fully distributed in
the U.S. We intend to continue to seek increasstillition of our other national networks to groffiliate and advertising revenues. In
addition, we are expanding the distribution of programming networks around the globe. We firstaexjed beyond the U.S. market
with the launch in Canada of IFC (in 2001) and AIC2006), and we have recently launched Sundahea@zl in the Canadian market
(in 2010). We are building on this base by disttiitoy an international version of Sundance Chanakich is currently distributed in
twelve countries in Europe and four countries imaAwith additional expansion planned in 2012 andre years. We have also launched
an international version of WE tv in four countriasAsia, with further expansion planned in othesigh markets.

Continued Growth of Advertising Reveni&e have a proven track record of significantigreasing revenue by introducing
advertising on networks that were previously nateatiser supported. We first accomplished this062 when we moved AMC and WE
tv to an advertiser-supported model. Most receimlfDecember 2010, we moved IFC to such a modelsiék to continue to evolve the
programming on each of our networks to achieve etemger viewer engagement within their respedative targeted demographics,
thereby increasing the value of our programmingdeertisers and allowing us to obtain higher adsied rates. For example, we have
begun to refine the programming mix on IFC to iggwlternative comedy programming, suctPedlandiaandThe Increasingly Poor
Decisions of Todd Margaretin order to increase IFC’s appeal to its targetexhographic of adults aged 18 to 49. We are alstirwuing
to seek additional advertising revenue at AMC arid tWthrough higher Nielsen Media Research (“Nietseatings in desirable
demographics.

Increased Control of ContentVe believe that control (including long-term a@t arrangements) and ownership of content is
becoming increasingly important, and we intenchtéase our control position over our programmingtent. We currently control, own
or have long-term license agreements covering fiégmit portions of our content across our prograngmetworks as well as in our
independent film distribution business operatedHsy Films. We intend to continue to focus on ohitagnthe broadest possible control
rights (both as to territory and platforms) for @antent.

Exploitation of Emerging Media Platformd he technological landscape surrounding theilligion of entertainment content is
continuously evolving as new digital platforms egerWe intend to distribute our content across asynof these new platforms as
possible, when it makes business sense to do sbasour viewers can access our content wherenehd how they want it. To that er
our programming networks are allowing many of ogtributors to offer our content to subscriberscomputers and other digital devic
and on video-on-demand platforms, all of which pgesubscribers to access programs at their conaeaiéNe also have launched our
own direct-to-consumer digital platform, SundanceiNwhich makes our IFC Films library of independgimis available to consumers
in the U.S. and around the globe, and have made sémmur content available on third-party digititforms such as Netflix and iTunes.
Our national networks each host dedicated websitggpromote their brands, provide programmingrimi@ation and provide access to
content. In addition, AMC owns the film-focused \s#bs filmsite.org and filmcritic.com, which togettwith amctv.com deliver over
4 million unique visitors each month.
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KEY CHALLENGES
We face a number of challenges, including:
* intense competition in the markets in which we aps
» alimited number of distributors for our programmimetworks:
» continuing availability of desirable programminguck

» significant levels of debt and leverage, as a teduthe debt financing agreements described ulider 7,“Managemer's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operatio—Liquidity and Capital Resource’

See Item 1A, “Risk Factors” for a discussion ofstn@and other factors that could impact our perfolwaaand operating results.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
National Networks

We own four nationally distributed entertainmerignamming networks: AMC, WE tv, IFC and Sundancai@tel, which are available
to our distributors in high-definition and/or stand-definition formats. Our programming networkspipally generate their revenues from
affiliation fees paid by multichannel video progmamg distributors and from the sale of advertisialghough we also earn ancillary revenues
from sources such as licensing of original programgnand digital distribution arrangements. As otBmber 31, 2011, AMC, WE tv and IFC
had 96.3 million, 76.1 million and 65.3 million Néen subscribers, respectively, and Sundance Chhadel2.1 million viewing subscribers
(for a discussion of the difference between Nielsainscribers and viewing subscribers, see “Sulmtabd Viewer Measurement” below).

AMC

AMC is a television network dedicated to the highpslity storytelling, whether commemorating fat®fiims from every genre and
decade or creating acclaimed original programmimgddition to presenting popular feature filmsnfrdés comprehensive movie library, AMC
features original programming that includes criticacclaimed and award-winning original scriptedmhatic series such dad Men,

Breaking Bac, The Killing, Hell on WheelsindThe Walking Deagdwhich in 2011 was the highest rated drama incheeble history among t
key demographic of adults 18-49 and 25-54. The adtwlso recently launched its first unscriptedeseiTalking Dead, with two additional
unscripted serie§;omic Book Merfwhich debuted in February 2012) ahlde Pitch, debuting in Spring 2012.

We launched AMC in 1984, and over the past seweaails it has garnered many of the industry’s highesors, including 25 Emn1
Awards, 4 Golden Globe Awards, 2 Screen Actors @sAivards, 2 Peabody Awards, and 4 consecutive Araeriilm Institute (AFI)
Awards for Top 10 Most Outstanding Television Peogs of the Year. AMC is the only cable network istdry to win the Emmy Award for
Outstanding Drama Series four years in a row, dsagehe Golden Glob® Award for Best Televisiomi&e—Drama for three consecutive
years.

AMC'’s film library consists of films that are licead from major studios such as Twentieth Centusy ®éarner Bros., Sony, MGM,
NBC Universal, Paramount and Buena Vista under-term contracts. AMC generally structures its caciis for the exclusive cable television
rights to air the films during identified window nieds.
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AMC Subscribers and Affiliation Agreementss of December 31, 2011, AMC had affiliation agreents with all major U.S.
multichannel video programming distributors ancchesad approximately 96 million Nielsen subscribers.

Historical Subscribers—AMC

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Nielsen Subscribers (at y-end) 96.2 96.£ 95.2
Growth from Prior Yee-end — % 1% 1%

WE tv

WE tv is a women'’s network that showcases a modiemwn of family life. The network’s original programing presents stories from a
woman’s perspective and features celebrities amsbpalities as they experience life’s defining matsesuch as getting married, having
children and raising a family.

WE tv’s original series includBraxton Family Values, Joan and Melissa: Joan Kn8e&st?, BridezillagandMy Fair Wedding with
David Tutera Additionally, WE tv's programming includes seriagh as-rasier, Golden GirlandCharmedas well as feature films, with
exclusive license rights to certain films from sagdsuch as Paramount, Sony and Warner Bros.

WE tv Subscribers and Affiliation Agreemenés of December 31, 2011, WE tv had affiliatiomesgments with all major U.S.
multichannel video distributors and reached appnatély 76 million Nielsen subscribers.

Historical Subscribers—WE tv

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Nielsen Subscribers (at y-end) 76.1 76.¢ 74.¢
Growth from Prior Yee-end ()% 3% 1%

IFC

IFC is a network dedicated to presenting indepenfilemand original alternative comedy series wathindie perspective. Since its lau
in 1994, IFC has created and championed programthiatghallenges the conventions of storytellind provides a unique perspective
through its original series, notable independdnt &ollection and cult television shows.

The network’s original content includes comedyesPiortlandia(from the creators ddaturday Night Liveand David CrossThe
Increasingly Poor Decisions of Todd MargarlFC’s programming also includes series suclAmissted Development, Freaks and Geaks
Malcolm in the Middlealong with films from the most significant indepemd film distributors including Fox Searchlight, tdimax, Sony
Classics, IFC Films and Lionsgate.

In addition, IFC provides viewers with access ttifals and events, including the annual South-bytSw~est film, music and
digital festival, where the network has an annuekpnce via its “Crossroads House,” home to exausiterviews, live music presentations
and sponsor activations. And, for the past ded&dehas been the exclusive broadcast home of Téhepkendent Spirit Awards, the largest
awards show celebrating independent films and fiétkens.
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IFC Subscribers and Affiliation Agreementas of December 31, 2011, IFC had affiliation agnents with all major U.S. multichannel
video distributors and reached approximately 6%ionilNielsen subscribers.

Historical Subscribers—IFC

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Nielsen Subscribers (at y-end) 65.2 62.7 60.4
Growth from Prior Yee-end 4% 4% 3%

Sundance Channel

Launched in 1996 and acquired by us in 2008, Swel@mannel is the television destination that sla®e&s creative icons and emerging
talent through entertaining, immersive storiesnekntion, fashion, film, travel and design.

Sundance Channel features independent films agdhatiprogramming including the fashion serdkon the Line with Joe Zethe
celebrity vehicleThe Mortified Sessions, Iconoclasasd the Peabody Award-winning franchiggck City, in addition to other series that
highlight what's just about to hit in the world pfoduct-design, pop-culture, style and food.

In 2010, Sundance Channel embarked on an origimg@ted programming strategy. Its first scriptechirseries, the acclaimetiarlos,
won the 2011 Golden Glolse Award for Best Mini-Seroe Motion Picture Made for Television. The netlwsrsecond scripted project,
Appropriate Adultaired in fall 2011 to great critical acclaim andsweominated for a 2012 Golden Globe Award. Sund@iennel recently
announced an additional scripted projdatp of the Lak¢from OscarP winning director Jane Campion)

In addition, the network benefits from its relatbip with the Sundance Institute and the renownewi&nce Film Festival, where each
year the network gives festival attendees and vigweclusive access to the festiva-site and through dedicated programming on-air and
online.

Sundance Channel Subscribers and Affiliation Agexem As of December 31, 2011, Sundance Channel hdhtdh agreements with
all major U.S. multichannel video distributors aedched approximately 42 million viewing subscrib&undance Channel currently generates
advertising revenue from sponsorship arrangementpeomotional breaks, rather than traditional atisiag spots.

Historical Subscribers—Sundance Channel

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Viewing Subscribers* (at ye-end) 42.1 39.¢ 37.¢
Growth from Prior Yee-end 6% 5% 23%

* Subscriber counts are based on internal manageents and represent viewing subscribers. Foseudsion of the differences betwe
Nielsen subscribers and viewing subscribers” Subscriber and Viewer Measuren” below.

International and Other

In addition to our National Networks, we also operaMC/Sundance Channel Global, which is our indional programming business;
IFC Films, our independent film distribution bussseand AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology, metwork technical services
business. Our International and Other segment also
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includes VOOM HD Holdings LLC (“VOOM HD”), which ware in the process of winding down, and which ica@s to sell certain limited
amounts of programming internationally through pewg license agreements.

AMC/Sundance Channel Global

AMC/Sundance Channel Global's business principadigsists of seven distinct channels in ten langsiageead across eighteen
countries, focusing primarily on AMC in Canada agjhabal versions of the Sundance Channel and WEarnds. Principally generating
revenues from affiliation fees, AMC/Sundance Cha@lebal reached approximately 8.7 million viewisigbscribers in Canada, Europe and
Asia as of December 31, 2011, and has broad ailaitab distributors in Europe and in Asia throughtellite and fiber delivery that can
facilitate future expansion.

Sundance Channel—International

An internationally-recognized brand, Sundance Ckasiglobal services provide not only the besthaf independent film world but also
feature certain content from AMC, IFC, Sundancer®ighand IFC Films, as well as serve as a unigpelipe of international content, in an
effort to provide distinctive programming to an cake audience.

The ability of Sundance Channel to offer conterdtandard definition and high definition across tiplé platforms provides value to
distributors and opportunity for expansion into iiddal international markets. The internationafsien of Sundance Channel is currently
available via six distinct feeds providing servied-rance, Belgium, the Netherlands, Spain, PotflRamania, Poland, Hungary, Slovakia,
Czech Republic, Greece, Malta, South Korea, Matay&aiwan and Singapore; and provides programmmirignglish, French, Dutch, Spanish,
Portuguese, Polish, Greek, Korean, Malay and Mandahe network is distributed via satellite anlokfi in Europe and via satellite in Asia
with a substantial satellite footprint (which extsrfrom the Philippines to the Middle East and fieossia to Australia).

Canada

We provide programming to the Canadian market tipnoaur AMC and Sundance Channel brands, whichiatglaited through
affiliation arrangements with the three major Caaadnultichannel video distributors and throughil&aark license and content distribution
arrangements with Canadian programming outlet2006, we launched AMC Canada as a service thaigesessentially the same
programming as the U.S. version of the network. Alldhada has today achieved near-full distributiothé Canadian market. In 2010, we
launched a Sundance Channel-branded network indaana

WE tv Asia

Providing programming in the Korean and Mandariglaages, WE tv Asia provides a selection of the #esestic programming from
the WE tv U.S. network with programs liBgidezillasandMy Fair Wedding with David Tuteraand some of the best programming from
networks in the U.S., such @abatha’s Salon TakeovandTori & Dean. With the same broad satellite footprint as Sucda®hannel—
International, WE tv Asia is available in South Kar Taiwan, Singapore and Hong Kong and also ptes@nificant opportunities for
expansion into new Asian markets.

IFC Films

IFC Films, which was formerly referred to as IFQ&tainment, encompasses our independent filmildigton business, which makes
independent films available to a worldwide audiedE€ Films operates three distribution labels: &ance Selects, IFC Films and IFC
Midnight, all of which distribute critically
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acclaimed independent films across virtually alitable media platforms, including in theaters cable/satellite video-on-demand (reaching
nearly 50 million homes), DVDs and cable netwotk\esion, and streaming/downloading to computeis @her electronic devices.

IFC Films has a film library consisting of more th800 titles. Recently released films include: @sxar® -nominate®ina, Buck, The
Other Woman, Love Wedding Marriage, The Ledge, ISumek Flypaper.

As part of its strategy to encourage the growtthefmarketplace for independent film, IFC Filmsatperates the IFC Center, DOC
NYC and SundanceNow. The IFC Center is a -of-the-art independent movie theater located enhtbart of New York City’s Greenwich
Village. DOC NYC is an annual festival also locatedNew York City celebrating documentary stonyitadlin film, photography, prose and
other media. IFC Films’ online platform, Sundancel® a direct-to-consumer digital platform thatkes our IFC Films library of
independent films, in addition to independent fdontent licensed from third parties available tasuamers in the U.S. and around the globe.

AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology

AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology is a fullgiee network programming feed origination and riligttion company, supplying
an array of services to the network programmingigtiy. AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technology’s ogt@ns are housed in Bethpage,
New York, where AMC Networks Broadcasting & Tectogy consolidates origination and satellite commatiins functions in a 55,0(
square-foot facility designed to keep AMC Netwositshe forefront of network origination and distrilon technology. AMC Networks
Broadcasting & Technology has nearly 30 years’ ggpee across its network services groups, inclydiffiliate engineering, network
operations, traffic and scheduling that provide-ttagay delivery of any programming network, inigefinition or standard definition.

Currently, AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technologyrésponsible for the origination of 33 programnfiegds for national and
international distribution. AMC Networks Broadcasti& Technology’s current clients include AMC Netike’ own national networks, as well
as third-party and affiliated clients including Eus1SG network, MSG Plus, MSG Varsity, SNY and Mitdlantic Sports Network.

CONTENT RIGHTS AND DEVELOPMENT

The programming on our networks includes origimalgpamming that we control, either through outrigiinership or through long-term
licensing arrangements, and acquired programmiaigvik license from studios and other rights holders

Original Programming

We contract with some of the industry’s leadingepdndent production companies, including Lionsgabey Pictures Television, Fox
Television Studios, Entertainment One TelevisiorAURelativityREAL, Magical Elves, Broadway VideogeReille Productions and Pilgrim
Films & Television, to produce most of the origipabgramming that appears on our programming nédsvdrhese contractual arrangements
either provide us with outright ownership of thegmamming, in which case we hold all programming ather rights to the content, or they
consist of long-term licensing arrangements, wipicdvide us with exclusive rights to exhibit the temt on our programming networks, but
may be limited in terms of specific geographic neaskor distribution platforms. We currently selbguce one of our original series, AMC's
The Walking Dead

The original programming that we either exclusivietgnse or own outright includes, for WE B8raxton Family ValuesMy Fair
Wedding with David TuteraJoan and Melissa: Joan Knows Best®r IFC: Portlandia, The Increasingly Poor Decision of Todd Margaaet
Onion News Networkfor Sundance Channéll on the Line with Joe Zee, The Mortified SessamdLove/LustWe may freely exhibit this
programming on our
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networks or through other distribution platformsttbin the U.S. and in international markets. Wey migo license this content to other
programming networks or distribution platforms.

We hold long-term licenses for original programmthgt includesviad Men, Breaking Bad, The Killing, Hell on WheeladBridezillas.
These licensing arrangements give us the excluighéfor certain periods of time to exhibit theogés on our programming networks within
the U.S. and, in some cases, in international nisrRénese licenses may also give us the right pdoex¢he programming on certain digital
distribution platforms (such as video-on-demand iauadbile devices) within our licensed territory. Tlinse agreements are typically of multi-
season duration and provide us with a right of fiegotiation or a right of first refusal on theeeval of the license for additional programming
seasons.

Acquired Programming

The majority of the content on our programming res consists of existing films, episodic seried apecials that we acquire pursuant
to rights agreements with film studios, productimmpanies or other rights holders. This acquiredmming includes episodic series suc
CSI: Miami, Frasier, Charmed, Ghost WhispererGolden Girls, Malcolm in the MiddlandArrested Developmentas well as an extensive
film library. The rights agreements for this corttare of varying duration and generally permit propgramming networks to carry these series,
films and other programming during certain windosvipds.

Affiliation Agreements

Affiliation Agreements and Significant Custome@ur programming networks are distributed to demwng audience pursuant to
affiliation agreements with multichannel video distitors. These agreements, which typically havations of several years, require us to
deliver programming that meets certain standarg®dh in the agreement. We earn affiliation feesler these agreements, generally based
upon the number of each distribusubscribers who receive our programming or, mesoases, based on a fixed contractual monthlyCiae
affiliation agreements also give us the right tbh sspecific amount of national advertising timeaur programming networks.

Our programming networks’ existing affiliation agreents expire at various dates through 2018. Fgiturenew important affiliation
agreements, or renewal on less favorable ternthediermination of those agreements could havetarrabadverse effect on our business,
even if affiliation agreements are renewed, tharetwe no assurance that renewal rates will equat@red the rates that are currently being
charged. We have never failed to renew an agreewidntiny of our top ten distributors, althoughesmnents have sometimes expired before
the renewal was fully negotiated and finalizedg(ich cases, carriage of our programming networktraged unaffected during the periods in
which the agreements were being negotiated).

In 2011, Comcast and DirecTV each accounted feraat 10% of our consolidated revenues, net.

We frequently negotiate with distributors in anoeffto increase the subscriber base for our netsvakle have in some instances made
upfront payments to distributors in exchange festhadditional subscribers or agreed to waive @g@dower subscriber fees if certain
numbers of additional subscribers are provided.al§e may help fund the distributors’ efforts to ketrour programming networks or we may
permit distributors to offer limited promotionalnieds without payment of subscriber fees. As wetioaie our efforts to add subscribers, our
subscriber revenue may be negatively affected bl deferred carriage fee arrangements, discountestgber fees and other payments;
however, we believe that these transactions gemarpositive return on investment over the confpaciod.

Advertising Arrangements

Under our affiliation agreements with our distribngt, we have the right to sell a specified amofimational advertising time on certain
of our programming networks. Our advertising revanare more variable
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than affiliation fee revenues because the majarfigll of our advertising is sold on a short-terasis, not under long-term contracts. Our
advertising arrangements with advertisers provitt@fset number of advertising units to air ovepecific period of time at a negotiated price
per unit. In certain advertising sales arrangementsprogramming networks guarantee specified grenatings for their programming. If the
guaranteed viewer ratings are not met, we are géyeequired to provide additional advertisingtgrto the advertiser at no charge. For these
types of arrangements, a portion of the relatedmee is deferred if the guaranteed viewer ratingsat met and is subsequently recognized
either when we provide the required additional atitsieag time, the guarantee obligation contractualtpires or performance requirements
become remote. Most of our advertising revenueg based upon the popularity of our programming aasured by Nielsen.

In 2011, our national programming networks had apipnately 1,000 advertisers representing companiasbroad range of sectors,
including the health, insurance, food, automotind eetail industries. Our AMC, WE tv and IFC progmaing networks use a traditional
advertising sales model, while Sundance Channetip@lly sells sponsorships. Prior to December 2080 principally sold sponsorships.

Subscriber and Viewer Measurement

The number of subscribers receiving our programrftioign multichannel video programming distributoengrally determines the
affiliation fees we receive. We refer to these subers as “viewing subscribersThese numbers are reported monthly by the distitannd ar
reported net of certain excluded categories of&illiers set forth in the relevant affiliation agreent. These excluded categories include
delinquent and complimentary accounts and subgsriteeeiving our programming networks during praoml periods. For most day-to-day
management purposes, we use a different measureNielsien subscribers, when that measurement iabila Nielsen subscribers represent
the number of subscribers receiving our programnfrioigy multichannel video programming distributossraported by Nielsen, based on their
sampling procedures. Because Nielsen subscribereported without deduction for certain classesutiscribers, Nielsen subscriber figures
tend to be higher than viewing subscribers fonegiprogramming network. Nielsen subscriber figunesavailable for our AMC, WE tv and
IFC programming networks.

For purposes of the advertising rates we are aldbarge advertisers, the relevant measurememt ilielsen rating, which measures the
number of viewers actually watching the commerchdthin programs we show on our programming netwoilhis measurement is calculated
by The Nielsen Company using their sampling prooesiand reported daily, although advertising ratesadjusted less frequently. In addition
to the Nielsen rating, our advertising rates ase aifluenced by the demographic mix of our viewénugliences, since advertisers tend to pay
premium rates for more desirable demographic grofipgewers.

REGULATION

The Federal Communications Commission (the “FC@futates our programming networks in certain retspeecause they are affiliated
with a cable television operator like Cablevisi@iher FCC regulations, although imposed on caliditdon operators and satellite operators,
affect programming networks indirectly.

Closed Captioning

Certain of our networks must provide closed-captigrof programming for the hearing impaired. ThaetZlentury Communications and
Video Accessibility Act of 2010 also requires usptovide closed captioning on certain video prograng that we offer on the Internet.

Obscenity Restrictions

Cable operators and other distributors are pralditom transmitting obscene programming, and filiaéion agreements generally
require us to refrain from including such programgnon our networks.
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Program Access

The “program access” provisions of the Federal €&t generally require satellite delivered videogramming in which a cable
operator holds an attributable interest, as thrat te defined by the FCC, to be made availabldltmaltichannel video programming
distributors, including DBS providers and telephanenpanies, on nondiscriminatory prices, termsa@ndlitions, subject to certain exceptions
specified in the statute and the FCC's rules. koppses of these rules, the common directors aedoercent or greater voting stockholders of
Cablevision and AMC Networks are deemed to be capézators with attributable interests in us. Agjlas we continue to have common
directors and major stockholders with Cablevisimum, satellite-delivered video programming servisdremain subject to the program access
provisions. Until October 2012, unless extendeeséhrules also prohibit us from entering into esiele contracts with cable operators for th
services.

The FCC has also extended the program accesstoulesestrially-delivered programming created bple operator-affiliated
programmers such as us when a showing can be inaiaé lack of such programming significantly lerglor prevents the distributor from
providing satellite cable programming. The new swdethorize the FCC to compel the licensing of guelgramming in response to a
complaint by a multichannel video programming dlisttor. These rules could require us to make amgsérial programming services we
create available to multichannel video programndisgributors on nondiscriminatory prices, terms andditions.

In 2007, the FCC sought comment on a proposaldaval cable operator to petition for repeal of éxelusivity ban prior to 2012 with
respect to programming it owns, in markets wheeectible operator faces competition from other vislegramming distributors; and is
considering revisions to the program access comigbeocedures. The FCC has taken no action orptbosal.

Program Carriage

The FCC has sought comment on proposed changhks tales governing carriage agreements betweer pabyramming networks and
cable operators or other multichannel video prognamg distributors. Some of these changes could givadvantage to cable programming
networks that are not affiliated with any distribuand make it easier for those programming netwitwlkchallenge a distributor’s decision to
terminate a carriage agreement or to decline ty @anetwork in the first place.

Wholesale “A La Carte”

In 2007, the FCC sought comment on whether caldgramming networks require distributors to purcherse carry undesired
programming in return for the right to carry dedipgogramming and, if so, whether such arrangenssld be prohibited. The FCC has
taken no action on this proposal. We do not culyeruire distributors to carry more than one of national programming networks in order
to obtain the right to carry a particular natiopedgramming network. However, we generally negetigith a distributor for the carriage of all
of our national networks concurrently.

Effect of “Must-Carry” Requirements

The FCC’s implementation of the statutory “mustrgapbligations requires cable and DBS operatorgite broadcasters preferential
access to channel space. In contrast, programneitvgorks, such as ours, have no guaranteed rigtdrafige on cable television or DBS
systems. This may reduce the amount of channekdpat is available for carriage of our networkschile television systems and DBS
operators.
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Satellite Carriage

All satellite carriers must under federal law offleeir service to deliver our and our competit@egramming networks on a
nondiscriminatory basis (including by means oftéely). A satellite carrier cannot unreasonabldiminate against any customer in its
charges or conditions of carriage.

Media Ownership Restrictions

FCC rules set media ownership limits that resteaaoipng other things, the number of daily newspaaedsradio and television stations in
which a single entity may hold an attributable iagt as that term is defined by the FCC. Purswaat@ongressional mandate, the FCC must
review these rules every four years. Such a reigemrrently underway. Cablevision currently owrsaéday, a daily newspaper published on
Long Island, New York. The fact that the commorediors and five percent or greater voting stockdislaf Cablevision and AMC Networks
hold attributable interests in each of the compafoe purposes of these rules means that thess-omsership rules may have the effect of
limiting the activities or strategic business aitives available to us, at least for as long aseminue to have common directors and major
stockholders with Cablevision. Although we haveptems or intentions to become involved in the besées affected by these restrictions, we
would need to be mindful of these rules if we wiereonsider engaging in any such business in ttugeu

Website Requirements

We maintain various websites that provide informmatiegarding our businesses and offer contentdier $he operation of these webs
may be subject to a range of federal, state aral laws such as privacy and consumer protectionlasigns.

Other Regulation

In 2007, the FCC recommended that Congress prahibiavailability of violent programming, includirgn cable programming networ
during the hours when children are likely to beahatg. Congress has considered this proposalphdeite has not yet enacted such restrict
The FCC also imposes rules regarding political tcaats.

COMPETITION

Our programming networks operate in two highly cefitive markets. First, our programming networkspete with other programmi
networks to obtain distribution on cable televisgystems and other multichannel video programmisgibution systems, such as DBS, and
ultimately for viewing by each system’s subscrib&scond, our programming networks compete witkropnogramming networks and other
sources of video content, including broadcast neksydo secure desired entertainment programmihg.sticcess of our businesses depends o
our ability to license and produce content for prggramming networks that is adequate in quantity guality and will generate satisfactory
viewer ratings. In each of these cases, some of@upetitors are large publicly held companies Haate greater financial resources than we
do. In addition, we compete with these entitiesafdvertising revenue.

It is difficult to predict the future effect of tenology on many of the factors affecting AMC Netks&lrcompetitive position. For examp
data compression technology has made it possibl@ést video programming distributors to incredssrtchannel capacity, which may redi
the competition among programming networks anddrasters for channel space. On the other han@gditigion of channel space could also
increase competition for desired entertainment ranmgning and ultimately, for viewing by subscribeks.more channel space becomes
available, the position of our programming netwdrkghe most favorable tiers of these distributeaaild be an important goal. Additionally,
video content delivered directly to viewers over thternet competes with our programming netwooks/fewership.
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Distribution of Programming Networks

The business of distributing programming netwotksdble television systems and other multichanitkdosprogramming distributors is
highly competitive. Our programming networks facenpetition from other programming networksirriage by a particular multichannel vic
programming distributor, and for the carriage om gbkrvice tier that will attract the most subsasb®©nce our programming network is sele:
by a distributor for carriage, that network compgeta viewers not only with the other programmiregvmorks available on the distributor’s
system, but also with over-the-air broadcast telewi, Internet-based video and other online sesyioc®bile services, radio, print media,
motion picture theaters, DVDs, and other sourcasfofmation and entertainment.

Important to our success in each area of competitie face are the prices we charge for our progragnmetworks, the quantity, quality
and variety of the programming offered on our nekspand the effectiveness of our networks’ marigeéfforts. The competition for viewers
among advertiser supported networks is directlyetated with the competition for advertising reveswith each of our competitors.

Our ability to successfully compete with other netks may be hampered because the cable televigid@nss or other multichannel
video programming distributors through which wekséistribution may be affiliated with other prograrimg networks. In addition, because
such distributors may have a substantial numbeub$cribers, the ability of such programming neksdo obtain distribution on the systems
of affiliated distributors may lead to increasefiliation and advertising revenue for such programgmetworks because of their increased
penetration compared to our programming networkengf such affiliated distributors carry our pragiming networks, such distributors may
place their affiliated programming network on a mdesirable tier, thereby giving the affiliated gramming network a competitive advantage
over our own.

New or existing programming networks that are iaffdd with broadcasting networks like NBC, ABC, CB/S-ox may also have a
competitive advantage over our programming netwarlabtaining distribution through the “bundlingf agreements to carry those
programming networks with agreements giving thérithistor the right to carry a broadcast statioriliated with the broadcasting network.

An important part of our strategy involves explogiidentified markets of the cable television viegvaudience that are generally well
defined and limited in size. Our networks have fhaad will continue to face increasing competitignother programming networks and on
or other services seek to serve the same or sinidhes.

Sources of Programming

We also compete with other programming networksetmure desired programming. Most of our originagpamming and all of our
acquired programming is obtained through agreemeititsother parties that have produced or own itlets to such programming.
Competition for this programming will increase ke humber of programming networks increases. Qitegramming networks that are
affiliated with programming sources such as movitetevision studios or film libraries may haveanpetitive advantage over us in this area.

With respect to the acquisition of entertainmemigpamming, such as syndicated programs and mdwi¢ste not produced by or
specifically for networks, our competitors incluctional broadcast television networks, local boaatl television stations, video-on-demand
programs and other cable programming networksrrietebased video content distributors have alsageteas competitors for the acquisition
of content or the rights to distribute content. $amhthese competitors have exclusive contracts mittion picture studios or independent
motion picture distributors or own film libraries.

Competition for Advertising Revenue

Our programming networks must compete with oth#erseof advertising time and space, including otteble programming networks,
radio, newspapers, outdoor media and, increasihgigrnet sites. We compete for
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advertisers on the basis of rates we charge andalshe number and demographic nature of vieweaiswatch our programming. Advertisers
will often seek to target their advertising contenthose demographic categories they consider likebf to purchase the product or service
they advertise. Accordingly, the demographic magesf our viewership can be equally or more imparthan the number of viewers watch
our programming.
EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2011 we had 929 full-time emeésyand 27 part-time employees. None of our empkogee represented by unions.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

The risk factors described below are not inclusifall risk factors but highlight those that ther@many believes are the most significant
and that could impact its performance and finan@allts. These risk factors should be considergether with all other information presented
in this Annual Report.

Risks Relating to Our Business
Our business depends on the appeal of our programgnio our distributors and our viewers, which mag linpredictable and volatile.

Our business depends in part upon viewer prefeseaicd audience acceptance of the programming onetworks. These factors are
often unpredictable and volatile, and subject fluénces that are beyond our control, such as tiadity and appeal of competing programm
general economic conditions and the availabilitpthfer entertainment activities. We may not be &bkenticipate and react effectively to shifts
in tastes and interests in our markets. A changéeiner preferences could cause our programmirmtgtdine in popularity, which could caus
reduction in advertising revenues and jeopardinewal of our contracts with distributors. In adulitj our competitors may have more flexible
programming arrangements, as well as greater amaodimivailable content, distribution and capitalorces, and may be able to react more
quickly than we can to shifts in tastes and intsres

To an increasing extent, the success of our busidesends on original programming, and our abititpredict accurately how audiences
will respond to our original programming is partenly important. Because original programming oftevolves a greater degree of
commitment on our part, as compared to acquiregraroming that we license from third parties, ancaose our network branding strategies
depend significantly on a relatively small numbgorginal programs, a failure to anticipate vievpeeferences for such programs could be
especially detrimental to our business. We peratliceview the programming usefulness of our pangrights based on a series of factors,
including ratings, type and quality of program mitle standards and practices, and fitness forlettdn. We have incurred write-offs of
programming rights in the past, and may incur ffmrogramming rights write-offs if it is determintitht program rights have no future
usefulness.

In addition, feature films constitute a significgartion of the programming on our AMC, IFC and 8ance Channel programming
networks. In general, the popularity of featureafitontent on linear television is declining, dugart to the broad availability of such content
through an increasing number of distribution platfe. Should the popularity of featufiem programming suffer significant further declseve
may lose viewership or be forced to rely more higaam original programming, which could increase oasts.

If our programming does not gain the level of andeeacceptance we expect, or if we are unable totaia the popularity of our
programming, our ratings may suffer, which will aégely affect advertising revenues, and we mayetediminished bargaining position
when dealing with distributors, which could redwes affiliation fee revenues. We cannot assurethatiwe will be able to maintain the
success of any of our current programming, or geresufficient demand and market acceptance fonewrprogramming.

If economic instability persists in the U.S. or ther parts of the world, our results of operatioosuld be adversely affected.

Our business is significantly affected by prevalaconomic conditions. We derive substantial reearftom advertising spending by
U.S. businesses, and these expenditures are gensitjeneral economic conditions and consumemiguyatterns. Financial instability or a
general decline in economic conditions in the Wdiild adversely affect advertising rates and volumsulting in a decrease in our advertising
revenues.

Decreases in U.S. consumer discretionary spendagatfiect cable television and other video sersiglescriptions, in particular with
respect to digital service tiers on which certdimar programming networks are
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carried. This could lead to a decrease in the nammbgubscribers receiving our programming from tichiannel video distributors, which col
have a negative impact on our viewing subscribedsafiliation fee revenues. Similarly, a decremseiewing subscribers would also have a
negative impact on the number of viewers actualiyoling the programs on our programming networksgckvcould also impact the rates we
are able to charge advertisers.

Furthermore, world-wide financial instability maffexct our ability to penetrate new markets. Becausenetworks are highly distributed
in the U.S., our ability to expand the scope of @perations internationally is important to the thomed growth of our business. Our inability
negotiate favorable affiliation agreements withefgn distributors or to secure advertisers for ¢hmmrkets could negatively affect our results
of operations.

Because a limited number of distributors account fa large portion of our business, the loss of asignificant distributor would
adversely affect our revenues.

Our programming networks depend upon agreemenisanitnited number of cable television system ofmesaand other multichannel
video programming distributors. In 2011, Comcast BirecTV each accounted for at least 10% of ounsotidated revenues, net. The loss of
any significant distributor could have a materidverse effect on our revenues.

In addition, we have in some instances made upfrapients to distributors in exchange for additiGudscribers or have agreed to
waive or accept lower affiliation fees if certainmbers of additional subscribers are providéée also may help fund our distributors’ efforts
to market our programming networks or we may pedisitributors to offer promotional periods withqeyment of subscriber fees. As we
continue our efforts to add viewing subscribers, et revenues may be negatively affected by thegerred carriage fee arrangements,
discounted subscriber fees or other payments.

If we are unable to renew our programming networkaffiliation agreements, which expire at various s through 2018, our
revenues will be negatively affected.

Our programming networks have affiliation agreemehat will expire at various dates through 20Approximately 41% of our
subscribers are under affiliation agreements tkjire prior to December 31, 2013. Failure to retle@se affiliation agreements, or renewal on
less favorable terms, or the termination of thage@ments could have a material adverse effectiobusiness A reduced distribution of our
programming networks would adversely affect ouiliaffon fee revenue, and impact our ability tol selvertising or the rates we charge for
such advertising. Even if affiliation agreements @newed, we cannot assure you that the renetealwall equal or exceed the rates that we
currently charge these distributors.

Furthermore, the largest multichannel video progrémg distributors have significant leverage in threlationship with programming
networks. The two largest cable distributors prewérvice to approximately 35 percent of U.S. hbaksks receiving multichannel video
programming distribution service, while the twogast DBS distributors provide service to an addal33 percent of such households. Further
consolidation among multichannel video distributoosild increase this leverage.

In some cases, if a distributor is acquired, tlidiatfon agreement of the acquiring distributorivgovern following the acquisition. In
those circumstances, the acquisition of a distabtitat is party to one or more affiliation agreesewith our programming networks on terms
that are more favorable to us could adversely impacfinancial condition and results of operations

We are subject to intense competition, which maywéa negative effect on our profitability or on oability to expand our business.

The cable programming industry is highly compeéiti@ur programming networks compete with other paogning networks and other
types of video programming services for marketing distribution by cable
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and other multichannel video programming distribntsystemsIn distributing a programming network, we face cetifpon with other
providers of programming networks for the righbcarried by a particular cable or other multictedivideo programming distribution systi
and for the right to be carried by such system paréicular “tier” of service.

Certain programming networks affiliated with broadtnetworks like NBC, ABC, CBS or Fox may havempetitive advantage over
our programming networks in obtaining distributibimough the “bundling” of carriage agreements foetsprogramming networks with a
distributor’s right to carry the affiliated broadtzg network In addition, our ability to compete with certairogramming networks for
distribution may be hampered because the cableidela or other multichannel video programming disttors through which we seek
distribution may be affiliated with these programminetworks Because such distributors may have a substantimbauof subscribers, the
ability of such programming networks to obtain disition on the systems of affiliated distributongy lead to increased affiliation and
advertising revenue for such programming netwodcabise of their increased penetration comparedrtprogramming networks. Even if the
affiliated distributors carry our programming netk® they may place their affiliated programmingwark on a more desirable tier, thereby
giving their affiliated programming network a contiige advantage over our owrAs a result of the Distribution, the Company islowger
owned by Cablevision, which may impact the competitandscape in which we operate because somerdafistributors have other
commercial relationships with Cablevision. Becaofthese other relationships, the Company has figra to time in the past achieved greater
distribution or more favorable terms than it mighve achieved as a stand-alone company. As a,rémilEompany’s ability to pursue cross-
company initiatives that might provide such bersddite limited, since as separate public compawiesnd Cablevision are required to assess
any such initiatives from our own business perspect

In addition to competition for distribution, we alace intense competition for viewing audienceth wther cable and broadcast
programming networks, home video products and hetebased video content providers, some of whietpart of large diversified
entertainment or media companies that have sultargreater resources than us. To the extentdbaviewing audiences are eroded by
competition with these other sources of programnaimigtent, our ratings would decline, negativelyeefing advertising revenues, and we may
face difficulty renewing affiliation agreements idistributors on acceptable terms, which couldseaffiliation fee revenues to decline. In
addition, competition for advertisers with thesatemt providers, as well as with other forms of ragthcluding print media, Internet websites
and radio), could affect the amount we are ablghtirge for advertising time on our programming reeks, and therefore our advertising
revenues.

An important part of our strategy involves explogtiidentified markets of the cable television viegvaudience that are generally well
defined and limited in size. Our programming netwgdnave faced and will continue to face increasimgpetition obtaining distribution and
attracting advertisers as other programming netsvedek to serve the same or similar markets.

Our programming networks’ success depends upondlrailability of programming that is adequate in gatty and quality, and we
may be unable to secure or maintain such programigin

Our programming networks’ success depends upoavaiability of quality programming, particularlyiginal programming and films,
that is suitable for our target markets. While wednce some of our original programming, we obtaost of the programming on our
networks (including original programming, films aather acquired programming) through agreements thitd parties that have produced or
control the rights to such programming. These agesgs expire at varying times and may be terminbyetthe other party if we are not in
compliance with their terms.

We compete with other programming networks to sedasired programming. Competition for programniiag increased as the num
of programming networks has increased. Other progriag networks that are affiliated with programmasayrces such as movie or television
studios or film libraries may
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have a competitive advantage over us in this &neaddition to other cable programming networks,als compete for programming with
national broadcast television networks, local boaad television stations, video-on-demand senacekinternet-based content delivery
services, such as Netflix, iTunes and Hulu. Somghege competitors have exclusive contracts wittiangicture studios or independent
motion picture distributors or own film libraries.

We cannot assure you that we will ultimately becessful in negotiating renewals of our programnrigbts agreements or in negotiat
adequate substitute agreements in the event thse thgreements expire or are terminated.

Our programming networks have entered into long+teprogramming acquisition contracts that require lBstantial payments over
long periods of time, even if we do not use suchgnamming to generate revenues.

Our programming networks have entered into numecougracts relating to the acquisition of programgniincluding rights agreements
with film companies. These contracts typically regusubstantial payments over extended periodsna. tWe must make the required
payments under these contracts even if we do mothgsprogramming.

Increased programming costs may adversely affeat profits.

We incur costs for the creative talent, includitpas, writers and producers, who create our caiginogramming. Some of our original
programming has achieved significant popularity aritical acclaim, which has increased and coulationie to increase the costs of such
programming in the future. An increase in the co$isrogramming may lead to decreased profitabdityptherwise adversely affect our
business.

We may not be able to adapt to new content disttifiu platforms and to changes in consumer behaviesulting from these new
technologies, which may adversely affect our busise

We must successfully adapt to technological advairceur industry, including the emergence of alitive distribution platforms. Our
ability to exploit new distribution platforms anéewing technologies will affect our ability to m&éin or grow our business. Additionally, we
must adapt to changing consumer behavior driveadwances such as digital video recorders (or “DYRa&tieo-on-demand, Internet-based
content delivery and mobile devices. Such changgsimpact the revenues we are able to generatedtortraditional distribution methods,
either by decreasing the viewership of our programymetworks on cable and other multichannel vigegramming distribution systems or
by making advertising on our programming netwodsslvaluable to advertisers. If we fail to adaptdistribution methods and content to
emerging technologies, our appeal to our targetelieaces might decline and there could be a negafiect on our business.

We face risks from doing business internationally.

We distribute our programming outside the U.S. Aesult, our business is subject to certain riskeient in international business, mi
of which are beyond our control. These risks inetud

» laws and policies affecting trade and taxes, indgdaws and policies relating to the repatriatidriunds and withholding taxe
and changes in these lav

» changes in local regulatory requirements, includesirictions on conten
» differing degrees of protection for intellectuabperty;

» the instability of foreign economies and governrsg

» fluctuating foreign exchange rate
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e war and acts of terrorisr

» anti-corruption laws and regulations such as the For€igmupt Practices Act and the U.K. Bribery Actttimpose stringer
requirements on how we conduct our foreign openatend changes in these laws and regulat

» foreign privacy and data protection laws and retipieand changes in these la
* varying attitudes towards the piracy of intelled¢fo@perty; anc
» shifting consumer preferences regarding the viewingdeo programming

Events or developments related to these and aslex associated with international trade could asklg affect our revenues from non-
U.S. sources, which could have a material advefeeten our business, financial condition, opergtiesults, liquidity and prospects.

Our business is limited by regulatory constraintsgth domestic and foreign, which may adversely impaur operations.

Although most aspects of our business generallyatrelirectly regulated by the FCC, under the Comications Act of 1934, there are
certain FCC regulations that govern our busingsgedirectly or indirectly. See “Business—Regulatl’ Furthermore, to the extent that
regulations and laws, either presently in forcermposed, hinder or stimulate the growth of thde#dlevision and satellite industries, our
business will be affected.

The U.S. Congress and the FCC currently have watesideration, and may in the future adopt, news|aegulations and policies
regarding a wide variety of matters that couldedily or indirectly, affect our operations.

The regulation of cable television services, sié¢etlarriers, and other multichannel video prograngistributors is subject to the
political process and has been in constant flux twe past two decades. Further material changéeitaw and regulatory requirements must
be anticipated. We cannot assure you that our bssiwill not be adversely affected by future legish, new regulation or deregulation.

An important aspect of our growth strategy involttes expansion of our programming networks anddsanto markets outside the U.S.
The distribution of our programming networks indign markets is subject to laws and regulationsiipgo those countries. Changes in laws
and regulations of foreign jurisdictions could acbedy affect our business and ability to access foegign markets.

Theft of our content, including digital copyrightheft and other unauthorized exhibitions of our ccent, may decrease revenue
received from our programming and adversely affectr businesses and profitability.

The success of our businesses depends in partrabiity to maintain and monetize our intellectpabperty rights to our entertainment
content. We are fundamentally a content companytiaeftl of our brands, television programming, digiontent and other intellectual propt
has the potential to significantly affect us anel Walue of our content. Copyright theft is partaoly prevalent in many parts of the world that
lack effective copyright and technical protectiveasures similar to those existing in the U.S. at klck effective enforcement of such
measures. The interpretation of copyright, privacy other laws as applied to our content, and pidatection and enforcement efforts, remain
in flux. The failure to strengthen or the weakenirfigexisting intellectual property laws could makeore difficult for us to adequately protect
our intellectual property and negatively affectigdue.

Content theft has been made easier by the widéaildy of higher bandwidth and reduced storagstspas well as tools that undermine
security features such as encryption and the wlofipirates to cloak their
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identities online. In addition, we and our numerpusduction and distribution partners operate vagitechnology systems in connection with
the production and distribution of our programmiagg intentional or unintentional acts could regulinauthorized access to our content, a
disruption of our services, or improper disclosofeonfidential information. The increasing usealdgital formats and technologies heightens
this risk. Unauthorized access to our content coegdlt in the premature release of television shavhich is likely to have a significant
adverse effect on the value of the affected prograng.

Copyright theft has an adverse effect on our bgsifiecause it reduces the revenue that we ar¢oatgleeive from the legitimate sale
distribution of our content, undermines lawful distition channels and inhibits our ability to repaar profit from the costs incurred to create
such works. Efforts to prevent the unauthorizedrithistion, performance and copying of our contemtyraffect our profitability and may not |
successful in preventing harm to our business.

Protection of electronically stored data is coségd if our data is compromised in spite of this peation, we may incur additional
costs, lost opportunities and damage to our repigat

We maintain information in digital form necessamycbnduct our business, including confidential praprietary information regarding
our distributors, advertisers, viewers and empleyesewell as personal information. Data maintainedigital form is subject to the risk of
intrusion, tampering and theft. We develop and tadinsystems to prevent this from occurring, betdevelopment and maintenance of these
systems is costly and requires ongoing monitorimgy @pdating as technologies change and effortgseocome security measures become more
sophisticated. Moreover, despite our efforts, thesbility of intrusion, tampering and theft canbeteliminated entirely, and risks associated
with each of these remain. In addition, we prowidefidential, proprietary and personal informatiorihird parties when it is necessary to
pursue business objectives. While we obtain assegathat these third parties will protect this infation and, where appropriate, monitor the
protections employed by these third parties, theeerisk the confidentiality of data held by thpdrties may be compromised. If our data
systems are compromised, our ability to conductbusiness may be impaired, we may lose profitappodunities or the value of those
opportunities may be diminished and, as describede we may lose revenue as a result of unlicenseaf our intellectual property. Further,
a penetration of our network security or other pgapriation or misuse of personal consumer or egg@ information could subject us to
business, litigation and reputation risk, whichIdduave a negative effect on our business, findioiadition and results of operations.

If our technology facility fails or its operationare disrupted, our performance could be hindered.

Our programming is transmitted by our subsidiarlyj@Networks Broadcasting & Technology. AMC Netwoladcasting &
Technology uses its technology facility for a varief purposes, including signal processing, progealiting, promotions, creation of
programming segments to fill short gaps betweetufed programs, quality control, and live and rdear playback. Like other facilities, this
facility is subject to interruption from fire, lighing, adverse weather conditions and other nataases. Equipment failure, employee
misconduct or outside interference could also gistlue facility’s services. Although we have areagement with a third party to re-broadcast
the previous 48 hours of our networks’ programnimthe event of a disruption, we currently do naté a backup operations facility for our
programming.

In addition, we rely on thirgharty satellites in order to transmit our programgnsignals to our distributors. As with all satelli, there is
risk that the satellites we use will be damaged eesult of natural or man-made causes, or wiktfise fail to operate properly. Although we
maintain in-orbit protection providing us with baagk satellite transmission facilities should ounpaty satellites fail, there can be no assur
that such back-up transmission facilities will feetive or will not themselves fail.
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Any significant interruption at AMC Networks Broaakting & Technologys facility affecting the distribution of our prognaning, or any
failure in satellite transmission of our programmasignals, could have an adverse effect on ouratipgrresults and financial condition.

The loss of any of our key personnel and artistédeint could adversely affect our business.

We believe that our future success will depends@aificant extent upon the performance of ouigeexecutives. We generally do not
maintain “key man” insurance. In addition, we degen the availability of a number of writers, dit@s, producers, artistic talent and others,
who are employees of third-party production comesauihat create our original programming. The Idsang significant personnel or artistic
talent, or our artistic talent losing their currenidience base, could have an adverse effect opusimess.

General Risks
Our substantial debt and high leverage could adwysaffect our business.
We have a significant amount of debt. As of Decandde 2011, we have $2,291 million of total delxlading capital leases, $1,605
million of which is senior secured debt under cewrsenior secured credit facilities and $686 millad which is senior unsecured debt.
Our substantial amount of debt could have importansequences. For example, it could:
* increase our vulnerability to general adverse emoo@nd industry condition:

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaash flow from operations to make interest andgipial payments on our del
thereby limiting the availability of our cash flaw fund future programming investments, capitalendgitures, working capital,
business activities and other general corporateirements

» limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our business and the industry ichvivie operate
» place us at a competitive disadvantage comparddowmit competitors; an
» limit our ability to borrow additional funds, evevhen necessary to maintain adequate liqui
In the long-term, we do not expect to generate@afft cash from operations to repay at maturity mutstanding debt obligations. As a
result, we will be dependent upon our ability toess the capital and credit markets. Failure sersignificant amounts of funding to repay

these obligations at maturity could adversely dféer business. If we are unable to raise such atspwe would need to take other actions
including selling assets, seeking strategic investisifrom third parties or reducing other discrregdity uses of cash.

A substantial portion of our debt bears interestaaitable rates. If market interest rates increaagable rate debt will create higher debt
service requirements, which could adversely affectcash flow. While we have entered into hedgigigaments for a portion of our variable
rate debt limiting our exposure to higher interases, such agreements do not offer complete groteftom this risk.

The agreements governing our debt, including oung® secured credit facilities and the indenture gerning our senior unsecured
notes, contain various covenants that impose regions on us that may affect our ability to operater business.

The agreement governing our senior secured cradlities and the indenture governing our seniceaaured notes contain covenants
that, among other things, limit our ability to:

* borrow money or guarantee de
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» create liens

* pay dividends on or redeem or repurchase sf
» make specified types of investmer

» enter into transactions with affiliates; a

» sell assets or merge with other compar

Our senior secured credit facility requires thatoeenply with specified financial ratios and testgluding, but not limited to a leverage
ratio and an interest coverage ratio.

Various risks, uncertainties and events beyondcoatrol could affect our ability to comply with the covenants and maintain these
financial tests and ratios. Failure to comply wdtly of the covenants in our existing or future ficiag agreements could result in a default
under those agreements and under other agreentenigsning cross-default provisions. A default wopktmit lenders to accelerate the
maturity for the debt under these agreements afmtéalose upon any collateral securing the debtey these circumstances, we might not
have sufficient funds or other resources to saa#ifgf our obligations. In addition, the limitatie imposed by financing agreements on our
ability to incur additional debt and to take othetions might significantly impair our ability tdtin other financing.

A significant amount of our book value consists imtangible assets that may not generate cash in évent of a voluntary or
involuntary sale.

At December 31, 2011, our consolidated financiateshents included approximately $2.2 billion of soiidated total assets, of which
approximately $389 million were classified as im#nte assets. Intangible assets primarily incluifiéegion agreements and affiliate
relationships, advertiser relationships, indefitided intangible assets and goodwill. While weidet that the carrying values of our intangible
assets are recoverable, you should not assume¢habuld receive any cash from the voluntary oolontary sale of these intangible assets,
particularly if we were not continuing as an opeEgbusiness.

We may have a significant indemnity obligation t@Blevision if the Distribution is treated as a tablke transaction.

Prior to the Distribution, Cablevision receivedravate letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Seg\(“IRS") to the effect that, among
other things, the Distribution, and certain relat@ehsactions would qualify for tax-free treatmander the Internal Revenue Code to
Cablevision, the Company, and holders of Cablemismmmon stock. Although a private letter rulingrir the IRS generally is binding on the
IRS, if the factual representations or assumptioade in the letter ruling request were untrue cofnplete in any material respect, Cablevi:
would not be able to rely on the ruling. Furthereyahe IRS will not rule on whether a distribut®atisfies certain requirements necessary to
obtain tax-free treatment under the Code. Ratherruling was based upon representations by Calidevihat these conditions were satisfied,
and any inaccuracy in such representations cowklidate the ruling.

If the Distribution does not qualify for tax-freeatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes,, timegeneral, Cablevision would be
subject to tax as if it had sold the common stdobur Company in a taxable sale for its fair mankatie. Cablevision’s stockholders would be
subject to tax as if they had received a distrdyutiqual to the fair market value of our commomwlsthat was distributed to them, which
generally would be treated first as a taxable drtito the extent of Cablevision’s earnings andigstdhen as a notaxable return of capital
the extent of each stockholder’s tax basis in hises Cablevision stock, and thereafter as cagdal with respect to the remaining value. It is
expected that the amount of any such taxes to @ala’s stockholders and Cablevision would be sarsgal.
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As part of the Distribution, we entered into a Tzgaffiliation Agreement with Cablevision, whichtseut each party’s rights and
obligations with respect to deficiencies and re&yntlany, of federal, state, local or foreign tsfer periods before and after the Distribution
and related matters such as the filing of tax ret@and the conduct of IRS and other audits. Putdodahe Tax Disaffiliation Agreement, we :
required to indemnify Cablevision for losses anataof Cablevision resulting from the breach otaiercovenants and for certain taxable gain
recognized by Cablevision, including as a resultestain acquisitions of our stock or assets. Ifanerequired to indemnify Cablevision under
the circumstances set forth in the Tax DisaffibatiAgreement, we may be subject to substantiailiials, which could have a material nega
effect on our business, results of operationsnfired position and cash flows.

The tax rules applicable to the Distribution maystict us from engaging in certain corporate transéons or from raising equity
capital beyond certain thresholds for a period ahe after the Distribution.

To preserve the tax-free treatment of the Distityuto Cablevision and its stockholders, underTtae Disaffiliation Agreement with
Cablevision, for the two-year period following tBéstribution, we are subject to restrictions widspect to:

» entering into any transaction pursuant to which 58%nore of our equity securities or assets woelétquired, whether by merg
or otherwise, unless certain tests are |

* issuing equity securities, if any such issuancesleyon the aggregate, constitute 50% or more efbting power or value of our
capital stock

» certain repurchases of our common she
e ceasing to actively conduct our busine

« amendments to our organizational documents (ixtffg the relative voting rights of our stock dj Gonverting one class of our
stock to anothel

» liquidating or partially liquidating; an
» taking any other action that prevents the Distitouand related transactions from beinc-free.

Furthermore, the Tax Disaffiliation Agreement lismdur ability to pre-pay, pay down, redeem, retiregtherwise acquire the senior
unsecured notes or the Term B Facility portionhaef AMC Networks debt. These restrictions may ftimee limit our ability to pursue strategic
transactions of a certain magnitude that invoheeifisuance or acquisition of our stock or engagesim businesses or other transactions that
could increase the value of our business. Thesgaté&ns may also limit our ability to raise sificant amounts of cash through the issuance of
stock, especially if our stock price were to suffabstantial declines, or through the sale of sedfour assets.

Our historical financial results as a business segnt of Cablevision may not be representative of oesults as a separate, stamdone
company.

The historical financial information through Jur® 2011 included in this Annual Report has beeivddrfrom the consolidated financ
statements and accounting records of Cablevisidrdaes not necessarily reflect what our financ@aifoon, results of operations or cash flows
would have been had we operated as a separatd;atare company during those periods. Although Casiew accounted for our Company
a business segment, we were not operated as ateEand-alone company for the historical pertbdsugh June 30, 2011. The historical
costs and expenses through June 30, 2011 reflectad consolidated financial statements includelkéocation for certain corporate functions
historically provided by Cablevision, including geal corporate expenses and employee benefitsandtives. These allocations were based
on what we and Cablevision considered to be reddemeflections of the historical utilization legadf these services required in
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support of our business. Prior to its terminationJane 30, 2011, our historical costs have aldadec a management fee paid to Cablevision
calculated based on certain of our subsidiariesggrevenues (as defined under the terms of theuktmgsagreement) on a monthly basis. The
historical information does not necessarily indicatat our results of operations, financial positicash flows or costs and expenses will be in
the future.

Our ability to operate our business effectively msyffer if we do not, effectively, establish our ofinancial, administrative and other
support functions in order to operate as a sepatatand-alone company, and we cannot assure you tha transition services
Cablevision has agreed to provide us will be su#fitt for our needs.

Historically, we have relied on financial, admingtve and other resources of Cablevision to supperoperation of our business. As a
result of our separation from Cablevision, we hexpanded our financial, administrative and oth@psut systems and contracted with third
parties to replace certain of Cablevision’s systéis also have established our own credit and Ingniglationships and are performing our
own financial and operational functions. Any fadwor significant downtime in our own financial amainistrative systems or in Cablevision’s
financial or administrative systems during the $iian period could impact our results or prevenfrom performing other administrative
services and financial reporting on a timely basid could materially harm our business, finanodsidition and results of operations.

In connection with the Distribution, we rely on Cédwision’s performance under various agreements.

In connection with the Distribution, we enteredintrious agreements with Cablevision, includirgistribution Agreement, a Tax
Disaffiliation Agreement, a Transition Services Agment, an Employee Matters Agreement and certher celated party agreements and
arrangements. These agreements govern our relaifiowith Cablevision subsequent to the Distributaord provide for the allocation of
employee benefits, taxes and certain other ligdsliand obligations attributable to periods prootite Distribution. These agreements also
include arrangements with respect to transitiomises and a number of on-going commercial relatigpes The Distribution Agreement
includes an agreement that we and Cablevision dagrpevide each other with indemnities with reggediabilities arising out of the
businesses that were transferred to us by Cahdevigie are also party to other arrangements withle¥asion. We and Cablevision rely on
each other to perform each entity’s obligationsarrttiese agreements. If Cablevision were to breath be unable to satisfy its material
obligations under these agreements, includinglaréato satisfy its indemnification obligations, weuld suffer operational difficulties or
significant losses.

If we are unable to satisfy the requirements of 8en 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or aoternal control over financial
reporting is not effective, the reliability of ouinancial statements may be questioned and our &tpdce may suffer.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 meguany company subject to the reporting requirgsneinthe U.S. securities laws to
do a comprehensive evaluation of its and its cadatedd subsidiaries’ internal control over finamegporting. To comply with this statute, we
will be required in 2012 to document and test oterinal control procedures, and our managemenbwillequired to assess and issue a report
concerning our internal control over financial rep. In addition, our independent auditors wil kequired to issue an opinion on the
effective operation of the Company'’s internal cohtiver financial reporting as of December 31, 2002 rules governing the standards that
must be met for management to assess our intesnglot over financial reporting are complex anduieg significant documentation, testing
and possible remediation to meet the detailed araisdunder the rules. During the course of itsrigsbur management may identify material
weaknesses or deficiencies which may not be rerdédigme to meet the deadline imposed by the Sab®xley Act of 2002. If our
management cannot favorably assess the effectiv@fesir internal control over financial reportiagour auditors identify material
weaknesses in our internal controls, investor cmfce in our financial results may weaken, andstagk price may suffer.
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We are controlled by the Dolan family, which mayeate certain conflicts of interest and which meacertain stockholder decisions
can be taken without the consent of the majoritytbe holders of our Class A Common Stock.

We have two classes of common stock:

» Class B Common Stock, which is generally entiteten votes per share and is entitled collectitelglect 75% of our Board of
Directors, anc

» Class A Common Stock, which is entitled to one \geshare and is entitled collectively to eleet ttmaining 25% of our Boa
of Directors.

As of December 31, 2011, the Dolan family, inclugtrusts for the benefit of members of the Dolanifg, collectively beneficially own
all of our Class B Common Stock, less than 2% ofoaustanding Class A Common Stock and approximat@?s of the total voting power of
all our outstanding common stock. Of this amoumthl€vision’s Chairman, Charles F. Dolan, our Exieeu€Chairman, and his spouse
beneficially owned approximately 57.7% of our ocatsting Class B Common Stock, less than 1% of otstanding Class A Common Stock
and approximately 41% of the total voting poweabfour outstanding common stock. The members @fxblan family holding Class B
Common Stock have executed a stockholders agregraesitant to which, among other things, the vofioger of the holders of our Class B
Common Stock will be cast as a block with respe@lt matters to be voted on by holders of ClagdoBhmon Stock. The Dolan family is able
to prevent a change in control of our Company am@erson interested in acquiring us will be ablddso without obtaining the consent of the
Dolan family.

Charles F. Dolan, members of his family and centalated family entities, by virtue of their stoolnership, have the power to elect all
of our directors subject to election by holder£tdss B Common Stock and are able collectivelyortrol stockholder decisions on matters on
which holders of all classes of our common stodeogether as a single class. These matters amlidle the amendment of some provisions
of our certificate of incorporation and the appiaviafundamental corporate transactions.

In addition, the affirmative vote or consent of ti@ders of at least 66 2/3% of the outstandingeshaf the Class B Common Stock,
voting separately as a class, is required to agprov

» the authorization or issuance of any additionalehaf Class B Common Stock, &

« any amendment, alteration or repeal of any of togipions of our certificate of incorporation treatversely affects the powers,
preferences or rights of the Class B Common Si

As a result, Charles F. Dolan, members of his faenild certain related family entities also colleely have the power to prevent such
issuance or amendment.

We have adopted a written policy whereby an inddpahcommittee of our Board of Directors will rewiand approve or take such ot
action as it may deem appropriate with respecettam transactions involving the Company anddutssidiaries, on the one hand, and certain
related parties, including Charles F. Dolan andageiof his family members and related entitiegtmnother hand. This policy does not address
all possible conflicts which may arise, and theae be no assurance that this policy will be effecin dealing with conflict scenarios.

The members of the Dolan family group have enteredan agreement with the Company in which theged that during the 12-month
period beginning on the Distribution date, the Ddlamily group must obtain the prior approval ahajority of the Company’s independent
directors prior to acquiring common stock of thar@any through a tender offer that results in membéthe Dolan family group owning
more than 50% of the total number of outstandirayeshiof common stock of the Company. For purpoktiagreement, the term
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“independent directors” means the directors ofGbenpany who have been determined by our Board i&cidrs to be independent directors
for purposes of NASDAQ corporate governance statgdar

We are a “controlled company” for NASDAQ purposashich allows us not to comply with certain of themorate governance rules
of NASDAQ.

Charles F. Dolan, members of his family and centalated family entities have entered into a stotitérs agreement relating, among
other things, to the voting of their shares of Glass B Common Stock. As a result, we are a “cistt@ompany” under the corporate
governance rules of NASDAQ. As a controlled compawg have the right to elect not to comply with toeporate governance rules of
NASDAQ requiring: (i) a majority of independentelitors on our Board of Directors, (ii) an indepertd@mpensation committee and (iii)
independent corporate governance and nominatingnitbe®. Our Board of Directors has elected for@menpany to be treated as@htrolled
company” under NASDAQ corporate governance rulesrast to comply with the NASDAQ requirement for ajority independent board of
directors and an independent corporate governamt@@minating committee because of our statuscastolled company.

Future stock sales, including as a result of theeggising of registration rights by certain of outhgreholders, could adversely affect
the trading price of our Class A Common Stock.

Certain parties have registration rights coverimgpdion of our shares. We have entered into reggish rights agreements with Charles
F. Dolan, members of his family, certain Dolan fenmterests and the Dolan Family Foundations gravide them with “demand” and
“piggyback” registration rights with respect to apximately 15.9 million shares of Class A Commoac&t including shares issuable upon
conversion of shares of Class B Common Stock. Sdilasubstantial number of shares of Class A Com8tock could adversely affect the
market price of the Class A Common Stock and coufzhir our future ability to raise capital through offering of our equity securities.

We share a senior executive and certain directoithvCablevision and The Madison Square Garden Compawhich may give rise to
conflicts.

Our Executive Chairman, Charles F. Dolan, alsoeseas the Chairman of Cablevision. As a resuknéos executive officer of the
Company will not be devoting his full time and atien to the Company’s affairs. In addition, eigitmbers of our Board of Directors are also
directors of Cablevision and seven members of @mar® are also directors of The Madison Square Ga@dempany (“MSG”), an affiliate of
Cablevision and the Company. These directors mag bhatual or apparent conflicts of interest witbprect to matters involving or affecting
each company. For example, the potential for alwbmf interest exists when we on one hand, anbl&ésion or MSG on the other hand,
consider acquisitions and other corporate oppdramihat may be suitable for us and either or bbthhem. Also, conflicts may arise if there
are issues or disputes under the commercial amasigts that exist between Cablevision or MSG andnuaddition, certain of our directors &
officers, including Charles F. Dolan, own Cableotsbr MSG stock, restricted stock units and optitmngurchase, and stock appreciation rit
in respect of, Cablevision or MSG stock, as weltash performance awards with any payout basedabte@sion’s or MSG’s performance.
These ownership interests could create actualrappar potential conflicts of interest when thesdividuals are faced with decisions that
could have different implications for our Compa@gblevision or MSG. See “Certain Relationships Bethted Party Transactions—Certain
Relationships and Potential Conflicts of Interastbur registration statement on Form 10 filed with SEC for a description of our related
party transaction approval policy that we have &eibpo help address such potential conflicts thay arise.

28



Table of Contents

Our overlapping directors and executive officer wiCablevision and Madison Square Garden may resnlthe diversion of corporate
opportunities to and other conflicts with Cablevisi or Madison Square Garden and provisions in ounanded and restated certifice
of incorporation may provide us no remedy in thatamstance.

The Company’s amended and restated certificatecofrporation acknowledges that directors and afficé the Company may also be
serving as directors, officers, employees, constdtar agents of Cablevision and its subsidiaridd 8G and its subsidiaries and that the
Company may engage in material business transaotith such entities. The Company has renouncetgtss to certain business
opportunities and the Company’s amended and restaificate of incorporation provides that noeditor or officer of the Company who is
also serving as a director, officer, employee, atiast or agent of Cablevision and its subsidiaoeMSG and its subsidiaries will be liable to
the Company or its stockholders for breach of adydiary duty that would otherwise exist by reaséthe fact that any such individual directs
a corporate opportunity (other than certain limityges of opportunities set forth in our certifeatf incorporation) to Cablevision or any of its
subsidiaries or MSG or any of its subsidiarieséadtof the Company, or does not refer or commumicdibrmation regarding such corporate
opportunities to the Company. These provisionsuinamended and restated certificate of incorpanadiso expressly validates certain
contracts, agreements, assignments and transa¢iodsamendments, modifications or terminationsetbi® between the Company and
Cablevision or any of its subsidiaries or MSG oy afhits subsidiaries and, to the fullest extentpi¢ted by law, provide that the actions of the
overlapping directors or officers in connectionrtveith are not breaches of fiduciary duties owetheoCompany, any of its subsidiaries or
their respective stockholders. See “Descriptio€apital Stock—Certain Corporate Opportunities aondflcts” in our registration statement
on Form 10 filed with the SEC.
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ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

ltem 2. Properties.

We currently use approximately 239,000 squaredéeffice space that we lease at 11 Penn Plaza, YW, NY 10001, under lease
arrangements with remaining terms of six and niggry. We use this space as our corporate headguantt as the principal business location
of our Company. We also lease approximately 154¢fire feet of office space in Santa Monica, Califounder lease arrangements with a
remaining term of seven years. We also lease tl@bSquare-foot Broadcasting and Technology CéntBethpage, New York under lease
arrangements with remaining terms of two and seeams, from which AMC Networks Broadcasting & Teclogy conducts its operations. In
addition, we maintain leased sales offices in Gjucatlanta and Michigan.

We believe our properties are adequate for our use.

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings
DISH Network Contract Dispute

In 2005, subsidiaries of the Company entered igte@ments with EchoStar Communications Corporatimhits affiliates by which
EchoStar Media Holdings Corporation acquired a 20@rest in VOOM HD and EchoStar Satellite LLC (fhredecessor to DISH Network,
LLC (“DISH Network™)) agreed to distribute VOOM dpISH Network for a 15-year term. The affiliationragment with DISH Network for
such distribution provides that if VOOM HD fails $pend $100 million per year (subject to reductmthe extent that the number of offered
channels is reduced to fewer than 21), up to amaxi of $500 million in the aggregate, on VOOM, DISldtwork may seek to terminate the
agreement under certain circumstances. On Jan0aB088, DISH Network purported to terminate thfdiafion agreement, effective
February 1, 2008, based on its assertion that VG4IMhad failed to comply with this spending provisio 2006. On January 31, 2008,
VOOM HD sought and obtained a temporary restraimirter from the New York Supreme Court for New Y @aunty prohibiting DISH
Network from terminating the affiliation agreemeimnt.conjunction with its request for a temporargtraining order, VOOM HD also requesi
a preliminary injunction and filed a lawsuit agaiDdSH Network asserting that DISH Network did hatve the right to terminate the affiliati
agreement. In a decision filed on May 5, 2008,dtwert denied VOOM HD’s motion for a preliminary imjction. On or about May 13, 2008,
DISH Network ceased distribution of VOOM on its BiSletwork. On May 27, 2008, VOOM HD amended its ptaint to seek damages for
DISH Network’s improper termination of the affiliab agreement. On June 24, 2008, DISH Network arev&OOM HD’s amended
complaint and asserted counterclaims alleging breacontract and breach of the duty of good faitld fair dealing with respect to the
affiliation agreement. On July 14, 2008, VOOM Hplied to DISH Network’s counterclaims. The Compdmjieves that the counterclaims
asserted by DISH Network are without merit. VOOM ldid DISH Network each filed cross-motions for suamyrjudgment. In November
2010, the court denied both parties’ cross-motfonsummary judgment but granted VOOM HD’s motion $anctions based on DISH
Network's spoliation of evidence as well as its motiorexelude DISH Network’s principal damages experSBINetwork appealed these
latter two rulings. On January 31, 2012, the AgelDivision of the New York Supreme Court issuetkeision affirming (i) the trial court’s
finding of spoliation and imposition of the sanctiof an adverse inference at trial; and (ii) thial twourt’s decision to exclude DISH Network’s
damages expert. On February 6, 2012, DISH Netwiteg#t & motion seeking leave from the Appellate Binm to appeal the order. VOOM HD
has opposed the motion. Further proceedings itriddecourt remain stayed pending the court’s rilan the motion.

In connection with the Distribution, CSC HoldingsdaAMC Networks and Rainbow Programming HoldingsClan indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of AMC Networks (collectively, tt®MC Parties”) entered into an agreement (the “Vi@Qitigation Agreement”) which
provides that from and after the Distribution d&&C Holdings retains full control over the pendiitigation with DISH Network. Any
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decision with respect to settlement will be madetfp by CSC Holdings and the AMC Parties. CSC Himlg and the AMC Parties will share
equally in the proceeds (including in the valuao§ non-cash consideration) of any settlementra fudgment in the pending litigation with
DISH Network that are received by subsidiarieshef Company from VOOM HD. The AMC Parties are regale for the legal fees and costs
until such costs reach an agreed upon thresholhiah point CSC Holdings and the AMC Parties Wilar such fees and expenses equally.

Broadcast Music, Inc. Matter

Broadcast Music, Inc. (“BMI”), an organization tHatenses the performance of musical compositidritsanembers, had alleged that
certain of the Company'’s subsidiaries require @nge to exhibit musical compositions in its catal®fgll agreed to interim fees based on
revenues covering certain periods (generally thimgeommencing from the launch or acquisition acke of the Company’s programming
networks). In May 2011, the parties reached aneageamt with respect to the license fees for an atnhian approximated the amount
previously accrued, which was approximately $7ionllat December 31, 2010.

Other Legal Matters

On April 15, 2011, Thomas C. Dolan, a directorted Company and Executive Vice President, StratagyDevelopment, in the Office
the Chairman and a director of Cablevision, filddwasuit against Cablevision and RMH in New YorkpBme Court. The lawsuit raises
compensatiomelated claims (seeking approximately $11 millioglated to events in 2005. The matter is being leahander the direction of
independent committee of the board of director€aiblevision. In connection with the Distribution lsgment, Cablevision indemnified the
Company and RMH against any liabilities and expsmskated to this lawsuit. Based on the indemnificeand Cablevision’s and the
Company’s assessment of this possible loss comtaygeo provision has been made for this matténénconsolidated financial statements.

In addition to the matters discussed above, thefamy is party to various lawsuits and claims inaghginary course of business.
Although the outcome of these other matters cabagdredicted with certainty and the impact of thalfresolution of these other matters on
the Companys results of operations in a particular subseqregrdrting period is not known, management doedalive that the resolution
these matters will have a material adverse effedhe financial position of the Company or the iapidf the Company to meet its financial
obligations as they become due.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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Part 1l

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Class A Common Stock is listed on The NASDAQc8tMarket LLC (“NASDAQ”) under the symbol “AMCX.Our Class B
Common Stock is not listed on any exchange. OussChaCommon Stock began trading on NASDAQ on JuBO1L1.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance of@bepany’s Class A Common Stock with the perforneamicthe S&P Mid-Cap 400
Index and a peer group (the “Peer Group Indéy’jneasuring the changes in our Class A Commork$toces from July 1, 2011, the first d
our Class A Common Stock began regular-way tradm§ASDAQ, through December 31, 2011. Because tdighed index of comparable
media companies currently reports values on a eidd-reinvested basis, the Company has createeraPeup Index for purposes of this
graph in accordance with the requirements of th€.Sthe Peer Group Index is made up of companigstigage in cable television
programming as a significant element of their beis§) although not all of the companies includettiénPeer Group Index participate in all of
the lines of business in which the Company is eadagnd some of the companies included in the ®emip Index also engage in lines of
business in which the Company does not particigedditionally, the market capitalizations of marftiee companies included in the Peer
Group are quite different from that of the CompaHhye common stocks of the following companies Hasen included in the Peer Group
Index: Discovery Communications Inc., the Walt RgrCompany, News Corporation, Scripps Networksraave Inc., Time Warner Inc. a
Viacom Inc. The chart assumes $100 was investellilgnl, 2011 in each of the Company’s Class A Com®tck, the S&P Mid-Cap 400
Index and in a peer group weighted by market chgétion.
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Commparisen of Cumukative Totsl Return
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Base INDEXED RETURNS
Period Months Ending
Company Name / Index 7/01/11 7/31/11 8/31/11 9/30/11 10/31/1: 11/30/1: 12/31/1:
AMC Networks Inc. 10C 93.32 92.8¢ 80.1¢ 81.8¢ 90.3¢ 94.3(
S&P MidCap 400 Inde 10C 94.8¢ 88.1: 78.8( 89.6: 89.3¢ 89.0¢
Peer Grouj 10C 94.1¢ 90.0¢4 79.9¢ 91.8¢ 92.5¢ 96.0¢

This performance graph shall not be deemed “fifed’burposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exglafct of 1934, as amended (the

“Exchange Act”) or incorporated by reference intty af our filings under the Securities Act of 1938,amended, or the Exchange Act, except
as shall be expressly set forth by specific refegen such filing.

As of March 7, 2012 there were 1,792 holders obr@of our Class A Common Stock and 29 holdergobrd of our Class B Common
Stock. We did not pay any cash dividend on our comstock during 2011 and do not expect to pay h dasdend on our common stock for
the foreseeable future. Our senior secured cradilittes and the indenture governing our senicaaured notes restrict our ability to declare

dividends in certain situations.
Price Range of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock

The following table sets forth for the periods tatied the intra-day high and low sales prices paresof the AMCX Class A Common
Stock as reported on NASDAQ:

Year Ended December 31, 201

High Low
First Quartel N/A N/A
Second Quarter(: $44.21 $31.0¢
Third Quartel $40.2¢ $29.6¢
Fourth Quarte $37.9¢ $30.5:

N/A—Not applicable

(&) AMC Networks Inc. became an independent publicigéd company on June 30, 2011 upon the Distriblyo@ablevision to it
stockholders of all of the outstanding common stoicAMC Networks Inc. See Item “Busines” for discussion of our operating histc
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On March 9, 2011, in connection with the incorpimaiof AMC Networks Inc., CSC Holdings, LLC (“CSCollings”), a subsidiary of
Cablevision, acquired 1,000 shares of common std&MC Networks Inc. for $10.00.

On June 6, 2011, in connection with the Distribnfi@SC Holdings acquired 5,000 shares of commarksitbAMC Networks Inc. as
partial consideration for contributing 100% of théstanding stock and limited liability companyargsts in RMH to AMC Networks Inc. On
June 28, 2011, pursuant to our amended and restatéficate of incorporation, the 6,000 sharesa@hmon stock outstanding were converted
to 57,813,257 shares of Class A Common Stock ariEB43118 shares of Class B Common Stock.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(d)

(c) Maximum Number (or
Total Number of
(a) Shares (or Units) Approximate Dollar
Total Number of (b) Purchased as Par Value) of Shares (or
Average Price of Units) that May Yet Be
Shares (or Paid per Share Publicly
Units) Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased (or Unit) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
October 1, 2011 to October 31, 2011 — $ — N/A N/A
November 1, 2011 to November 30, 2( 7,651 $ 33.32 N/A N/A
December 1, 2011 to December 31, 2 37,01¢ $ 36.1¢ N/A N/A
Total 44,67( $ 35.67 N/A

During the fourth quarter of 2011, certain shafeBMC Networks Class A Common Stock previously isguo employees of
Cablevision and MSG vested. In connection withghgloyees’ satisfaction of the statutory minimumwathholding obligations for the
applicable income and other employment taxes, ¥Msbares, with an aggregate value of $1.6 milkegre surrendered to the Company. The
44,670 acquired shares have been classified asitgestock.

The table above does not include any shares rat@iveonnection with forfeitures of awards pursuanthe Company’s employee stock
plan.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The operating and balance sheet data includeckifottowing selected financial data as of and far years ended December 31, 2011,
2010, 2009 and 2008 have been derived from theéeidhnual consolidated financial statements of ANEZworks Inc. and its subsidiaries.
The operating and balance sheet data as of ardégrear ended December 31, 2007 have been ddroaradhe unaudited annual consolidated
financial statements of AMC Networks Inc. and itbsidiaries. The financial information presentetbtvedoes not necessarily reflect what our
results of operations and financial position woliddle been through June 30, 2011 if we had opeestedseparate publictyaded entity durin
the periods presented. The selected financiallgltav is also not necessarily indicative of resaftfuture operations and should be read in
conjunction with Item 7. “Management’s Discussiam dnalysis of Financial Condition and Results gieations” and the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and related rinthgded elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amount:

Operating Data(a):
Revenues, n¢ $1,187,74 $1,078,30! $ 973,64 $ 893,55 $ 754,44
Operating expense

Technical and operating (excluding deprecia

and amortization shown belo 425,96: 366,09: 310,36! 314,96( 276,14
Selling, general and administrati 335,65¢ 328,13¢ 313,90¢ 302,47: 256,99!
Restructuring (credit) expensel (240) (2,219 5,16z 46,87 2,24¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 99,84¢ 106,45! 106,50 108,34¢ 81,10:

861,22! 798,46« 735,93! 772,66( 616,48!
Operating incom 326,51¢ 279,83t 237,70¢ 120,89° 137,96.
Other income (expense
Interest expense, n (94,79¢ (73,417 (78,942 (99,909 (113,84)
Loss on investments, n — — — (103,239 (1,812
Gain on equity derivative contrac — — — 66,441 24,18:
Loss on extinguishment of debt and write-off of

deferred financing cos (20,979 — — (2,424 (22,037

Miscellaneous, ne (137) (162) 187 37¢ 3,14(

$ (115900 $ (73579 $ (78,75)  $(138,74)  $ (110,36))

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeome

taxes 210,61( 206,26: 158,95 (17,844 27,60(
Income tax expens (84,24%) (88,079 (70,40 (2,732 (12,227
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 126,36: 118,18¢ 88,541 (20,57¢) 15,37:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of

income taxe: 92 (38,090 (34,79) (26,86¢) (25,867
Net income (loss $ 126,45 $ 80,09¢ $ 53,75¢ $ (47,44) $ (10,499

Income (loss) from continuing operations per sh

Basic(c) $ 1.82 $ 1.71 $ 1.2¢ $ (0.30) $ 0.22
Diluted(c) $ 1.7¢ $ 1.71 $ 1.2¢ $ (0.30) $ 0.2Z
Balance Sheet Data(a)

Program rights, ne $ 1,000,78! $ 783,83( $ 683,30t $ 649,02 $ 553,55!
Total asset 2,183,93. 1,853,89 1,934,36. 1,987,971 2,423,44.
Program rights obligatior 619,02¢ 454,82! 435,63 465,58 416,96(
Note payable/advances to related pal — — 190,00 190,00 130,00
Credit facility debt(d’ 1,604,84 475,00( 580,00( 700,00( 500,00(
Senior notes(d 686,43: 299,55 299,28 299,01« 298,74!
Senior subordinated notes — 324,07: 323,81° 323,56 323,31:
Capital lease obligatior 15,677 20,25: 24,61 21,10¢ 24,43.
Total debt 2,306,95 1,118,87! 1,227,71. 1,343,68. 1,549,45:
Stockholder’ (deficiency) equity (1,036,99) 24,83 (236,99) (278,507 (570,66!)

(a) We acquired Sundance Channel in June 2008. ThiégediBundance Chanr's operations have been included in the consolic
financial statements from the date of acquisit
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(b) In December 2008, we decided to discontinue funttiegdomestic programming business of VOOM HD.dnreection with this decisic

(©)

(d)

we recorded restructuring expense (credit) in ediche years from 2008 to 201

Common shares assumed to be outstanding dilméngears ended December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008G0Wtataled 69,161,000,
representing the number of shares of AMC Netwodmarmon stock issued to Cablevision shareholderd@mtstribution date, and
excludes unvested outstanding restricted sharssdban a distribution ratio of one share of AMCwWatks common stock for every four
shares of Cablevision common stock outstanc

As part of the Distribution, we incurred $2,425,af@ebt (the*New AMC Networks Del"), consisting of $1,725,000 aggregate princ
amount of senior secured term loans and $700,00Gggte principal amount of senior unsecured néteproximately $1,063,000 of the
proceeds of the New AMC Networks Debt was use@pay all pre-Distribution outstanding Company deltluding capital leases),
including principal and accrued and unpaid inteteshe date of repayment, and, as partial conaiiber for Cablevision’s contribution of
the membership interests in RMH to the Company2%1,000, net of discount, of New AMC Networks Defats issued to CSC Holdings,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision, whictréflected as a deemed capital distribution in thresolidated statement of
stockholder' (deficiency) equity for the year ended December2®1,1. See Note 1 to the accompanying consolidateddial statement:

36



Table of Contents

ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fifer@ondition and Results of Operations contaiaseshents that constitute forward-
looking information within the meaning of the PrigeSecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. IngiManagement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operatiorer¢hare statements concerning our future operadsigits and future financial performance.
Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “believe'gstimates,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “paential,” “continue,” “intends,” “plans”
and similar words and terms used in the discussfidature operating results and future financiaffpenance identify forward-looking
statements. You are cautioned that any such forlemking statements are not guarantees of futurpeance or results and involve risks .
uncertainties and that actual results or developsn@ay differ materially from the forward-lookintatements as a result of various factors.
Factors that may cause such differences to occlude, but are not limited to:

» the level of our revenues;
» market demand for new programming services;
» demand for advertising inventory;

» the demand for our programming among cabteather multichannel distribution platforms, inclagl DBS and platforms operated
by telecommunications providers (we refer collegijvto these cable and other multichannel distalsiais fnultichannel videc
distributors” or “distributors”) and our ability tmaintain and renew affiliation agreements with tichannel video distributors;

» the cost of, and our ability to obtain or puod, desirable programming content for our netwarkd film distribution businesses;

» market demand for our services internationafig for our film distribution business, and outligbto profitably provide those
services;

» the security of our program rights and otHecgonic data;

» the loss of any of our key personnel and ticttalent;

» the highly competitive nature of the cablegreonming industry;

» changes in both domestic and foreign lawsegulations under which we operate;

» the outcome of litigation and other proceedirigcluding the matters described in the notesutoconsolidated financial statements;

» general economic conditions in the areas iithvive operate;

» our substantial debt and high leverage;

» reduced access to capital markets or sigmfigecreases in costs to borrow;

» the level of our expenses;

» the level of our capital expenditures;

» future acquisitions and dispositions of assets

» whether pending uncompleted transactiong)yf are completed on the terms and at the timefogbt(if at all);

» other risks and uncertainties inherent innagramming businesses;

+ financial community and rating agency peraadiof our business, operations, financial conditind the industry in which we
operate, and the additional factors described heagid
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» the factors described under Item *Risk Factor” in this Annual Repori

We disclaim any obligation to update or revisefthr@vard{ooking statements contained herein, except aswibe required by applicak
federal securities laws.

All dollar amounts and subscriber data included inthe following Management’s Discussion and Analysisf Financial Condition
and Results of Operations are presented in thousasd

Introduction

Management'’s discussion and analysis, or MD&A, uf @sults of operations and financial conditioprisvided as a supplement to, and
should be read in conjunction with, the consoliddieancial statements and notes thereto includizirvaere herein to enhance the
understanding of our financial condition, changeBriancial condition and results of our operatigd@sr MD&A is organized as follows:

Business OverviewThis section provides a general description aflusiness and our reportable segments, as wethas matters that
we believe are important in understanding our tesafloperations and financial condition and in@pating future trends.

Consolidated Results of OperationEhis section provides an analysis of our resfliigperations for the years ended December 31,,2011
2010 and 2009. Our discussion is presented ondotimsolidated and segment basis. Our two segrassté) National Networks and
(i) International and Other.

Liquidity and Capital ResourcesThis section provides a discussion of our finahcondition as of December 31, 2011 as well as an
analysis of our cash flows for the years ended Bées 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. The discussion ofioancial condition and liquidity
includes summaries of (i) our primary sources @dillity and (ii) our contractual obligations and b&lance sheet arrangements that existed at
December 31, 2011.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimate$his section provides a discussion of our acdagrolicies considered to be important to an
understanding of our financial condition and resoftoperations, and which require significant jondgt and estimates on the part of
management in their application.

Business Overview
We manage our business through the following typorable segments:

* National NetworksIncludes four nationally distributed programmindwerks: AMC, WE tv, IFC and Sundance Channel. These
programming networks are distributed throughoutUt®. (“U.S.”) via cable and other multichanneltdisution platforms,
including DBS and platforms operated by multichdmideo distributors; an

» International and OtherPrincipally includes AMC/Sundance Channel Globalt, international programming business; IFC Fil
our independent film distribution business; and AM&works Broadcasting & Technology, our networthtgical services
business, which supplies services primarily tormational programming networks. AMC and Sundancen@bbare distributed in
Canada and Sundance Channel and WE tv are digititiubther countries throughout Europe and Adiee Mternational and Oth
reportable segment also includes VOOM HD, whichanein the process of winding down, and which cuorgs to sell certain
limited amounts of programming internationally thgh program license agreemel

The tables presented below set forth our conselitliegvenues, net, operating income (loss) and t&djwperating cash flow (“AOCF”),
defined below, for the periods indicated.
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For the years ended December 3;

2011 2010 2009
Revenues, ne

National Networks $1,082,35! $ 994,57 $896,49:
International and Othe 125,57 104,49¢ 95,92:
Inter-segment elimination (20,190 (20,772) (18,770
Consolidated revenues, r $1,187,74. $1,078,30! $973,64:
Operating income (loss

National Networks $ 349,27: $ 312,52! $278,81t
International and Othe (21,890 (29,609 (37,939
Inter-segment elimination (86€) (3,08¢) (3,179
Consolidated operating incor $ 326,51t $ 279,83t $237,70¢
AOCF

National Networks $ 447,55! $ 419,05: $380,82:
International and Othe (4,976 (14,68¢) (13,559
Inter-segment elimination (86€) (3,086 (3,179
Consolidated AOCI $ 441,71 $ 401,27¢ $364,09¢

We evaluate segment performance based on sevetaisaof which the primary financial measure isibess segment AOCF. We define
AOCF, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, asratieg income (loss) before depreciation and arpatitin, share-based compensation
expense or benefit and restructuring expense ditcre

We present AOCF as a measure of our ability toiserur debt and make continuing investments. Wieeethat AOCF is an
appropriate measure for evaluating the operatimfppaance on both a business segment and consditi@sis. AOCF and similar measures
with similar titles are common performance measusesl by investors, analysts and peers to compgafermance in the industry.

Internally, we use revenues, net and AOCF measigéise most important indicators of our businesfopeance, and evaluate
management’s effectiveness with specific refereéndbese indicators. AOCF should be viewed as alsuogent to and not a substitute for
operating income (loss), net income (loss), cashdlfrom operating activities and other measurgseoformance and/or liquidity presented in
accordance with GAAP. Since AOCEF is not a meastipedormance calculated in accordance with GAARS imeasure may not be
comparable to similar measures with similar titised by other companies.

The following is a reconciliation of consolidate@&F to operating income for the periods indicated:

For the years ended December 3;

2011 2010 2009
Operating incom: $326,51¢ $279,83t $237,70¢
Shar-based compensation expel 15,58¢ 17,20¢ 14,72
Restructuring (credit) expen (240 (2,21¢) 5,162
Depreciation and amortizatic 99,84 106,45! 106,50
AOCF $441,71: $401,27¢ $364,09¢
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National Networks

In our National Networks segment, which account#®fl% of our consolidated revenues for the yededrDecember 31, 2011, we earn
revenues in two principal ways. First, we receifféi@ion fees from distributors. These revenues generally based on a per subscriber fee
under multi-year contracts, commonly referred tdadfiliation agreements,” which generally provitte annual affiliation rate increases. The
specific affiliation fee revenues we earn vary frperiod to period, distributor to distributor arldavary among our networks, but are
generally based upon the number of each distritaustibscribers who receive our programming, retetoeas “viewing subscribersThe term:
of certain other affiliation agreements providettine affiliation fee revenues we earn are a figedtractual monthly fee. Other sources of
distribution revenue include the licensing of amigi programming for foreign and digital distributito distributors, which is recognized upon
availability for distribution by the licensee. Rene from pay-per-view arrangements is recognizgar@gramming is exhibited based on end-
customer purchases as reported by the distributor.

The second principal source of revenues is fronegibing. Under our affiliation agreements with dlistributors, we have the right to
sell a specified amount of national advertisingetion certain of our programming networks. Our atilsieg revenues are more variable than
affiliation fee revenues because virtually all of advertising is sold on a short-term basis, matew long-term contracts. Our advertising
arrangements with advertisers provide for a setbarof advertising units to air over a specificipérof time at a negotiated price per unit. In
certain advertising sales arrangements, our progiaginetworks guarantee specified viewer ratinggteir programming. If these guaranteed
viewer ratings are not met, we are generally reglio provide additional advertising units to theextiser at no charge. For these types of
arrangements, a portion of the related revenuefisrced if the guaranteed viewer ratings are ndtand is subsequently recognized either
when we provide the required additional advertigintg, the guarantee obligation contractually eapior performance requirements become
remote. Most of our advertising revenues vary bagmuh the popularity of our programming as measbgelNielsen. In 2011, our national
programming networks had approximately 1,000 aised representing companies in a broad rangectdrse including the health, insurance,
food, automotive and retail industries. Our AMC, Weand IFC programming networks use a traditi@hlertising sales model, while
Sundance Channel principally sells sponsorshipsr Rr December 2010, IFC principally sold sponbis.

We seek to grow our revenues by increasing the eumtviewing subscribers of the distributors tbatry our services. We refer to this
as our “penetration.” AMC, which is widely distritad, has a more limited ability to increase itsgigation than do WE tv, IFC and Sundance
Channel. WE tv, IFC and Sundance Channel, althaagted by all of the larger distributors, havettéggrowth opportunities due to their
current penetration levels with those distributdiF€C and Sundance Channel are currently carriedaily on digital tiers, while WE tv is
carried on either analog expanded basic or digéed. Therefore, WE tv, IFC and Sundance Chaneeépation rates may increase if
distributors are successful in converting theirlagaubscribers to digital tiers of service thaflimle those networks. Our revenues may also
increase over time through contractual rate in@gatipulated in most of our affiliation agreememsegotiating for increased or extended
carriage, we have in some instances made upfrgmi@ats in exchange for additional subscribers tereded carriage, which we record as
deferred carriage fees and which are amortizedradiection to revenue over the period of the relatéliation agreements, or agreed to waive
for a specified period or accept lower per subseribes if certain additional subscribers are mtedi We also may help fund the distributors’
efforts to market our channels. We believe thaséheansactions generate a positive return on timesg over the contract period. We seek to
increase our advertising revenues by increasingtingber of minutes of national advertising sold bpdncreasing the rates we charge for ¢
advertising, but, ultimately, the level of our adigng revenues, in most cases, is directly relévethe overall distribution of our programmi
penetration of our services and the popularityl@iding within desirable demographic groups) of services as measured by Nielsen.

Our principal goal is to increase our revenuesnioydasing distribution and penetration of our s@wj and increasing our ratings. To do
this, we must continue to contract for and prodhigh-quality, attractive programming. There is a concaign of subscribers in the hands ¢
few distributors, which could create
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disparate bargaining power between the largesilligbrs and us by giving those distributors gregeerage in negotiating the price and other
terms of affiliation agreements.

International and Other

Our International and Other segment includes theratipns of AMC/Sundance Channel Global, IFC FilfglC Networks
Broadcasting & Technology and VOOM HD.

VOOM HD historically offered a suite of channelspguced exclusively in HD and marketed for disttibn to DBS and multichannel
video distributors. VOOM was available in the UoBly on Cablevision’s cable television systems andISH Network. On December 18,
2008, we decided to discontinue funding the doroedterings of VOOM. Subsequently, VOOM HD termiedtthe domestic offerings of
VOOM. VOOM HD discontinued the VOOM internationddannel as of December 31, 2009; however continistdhiiting the Rush HD
channel in Europe through April 2011. VOOM HD, whiwe are in the process of winding down, contirteesell certain limited amounts of
programming internationally through program liceageeements. See also “Legal Proceedings—DISH Nkt@ontract Dispute” (Part |—
Item 3. of this Annual Report).

Although we view our international expansion asrmaportant long-term strategy, international expanss currently expected to
represent only a small amount of our projected alV&énancial results over the next five years. Hwer, international expansion could provide
a benefit to our financial results if we were atadegrow this portion of our business faster thapeeted. Similar to our domestic businesses, the
most significant business challenges we expeaatownter in our international business include progning competition (from both foreign
and domestic programmers), limited channel capaxcitgistributors’ platforms, the growth of subseri® on those platforms and economic
pressures on affiliation fees. Other significansihess challenges unique to international exparismuade increased programming costs for
international rights and translatiomn€. dubbing and subtitling), a lack of availability ioternational rights for a portion of our domestic
programming content, increased distribution costéble, satellite or fiber feeds and a limiteggbal presence in each territory.

Spin-off from Cablevision

On June 30, 2011, Cablevision spaffithe Company and we became an independent pedotipany. In connection with the Distributi
Cablevision contributed all of the membership iests of RMH to us. RMH owned, directly or indirgctihe businesses included in
Cablevision’s Rainbow Media segment. On June 3012Cablevision effected the Distribution of all&fC Networks’ outstanding common
stock. In the Distribution, each holder of CablémsNY Group (“CNYG”) Class A Common Stock of redasn June 16, 2011 received one
share of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock for gvfeur shares of CNYG Class A Common Stock heldhenrecord date, which resul
in the issuance of approximately 57,813,000 shafr&ass A Common Stock. Each record holder of CNX&ss B Common Stock received
one share of AMC Networks Class B Common Stoclefary four shares of CNYG Class B Common Stock belthe record date, which
resulted in the issuance of approximately 13,53 tares of Class B Common Stock. Immediately padhe Distribution, we were an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Cablevision.tB&ablevision and AMC Networks continue to be colted by the Dolan Family.

As part of the Distribution, the Company incurreeMNAMC Networks Debt of $2,425,000, consisting bf&5,000 aggregate principal
amount of senior secured term loans and $700,06@ggte principal amount of senior unsecured n@&s Note 8 in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements). Approximately0$3,000 of the proceeds of the New AMC NetworkbDwvas used to repay all pre-
Distribution outstanding debt (excluding capitaldes), including principal and accrued and unpagtést to the date of repayment, and, as
partial consideration for Cablevision’s contributiof the membership interests in RMH to us, $1,280, net of discount, of New AMC
Networks Debt was issued to CSC Holdings, a wl-owned subsidiary of Cablevision, which is reflectsda deemed capital distribution in
consolidated statement of stockholders’
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(deficiency) equity for the year ended December281,1. CSC Holdings used such New AMC Networks Delsatisfy and discharge
outstanding CSC Holdings debt, which ultimatelyuftesd in such New AMC Networks Debt being held biyd party investors.

2010 Transactions

On December 31, 2010, RMH transferred its membgrisitérests in News 12 (regional news programmaergises), Rainbow
Advertising Sales Corporation (“RASCO”) (a cablktésion advertising company), and certain othesitesses to wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Cablevision in contemplation of the DistributioFhe operating results of these transferred estitirough the date of transfer have been
presented in discontinued operations for the yeaded December 31, 2010 and 2009 in the accompangimsolidated financial statements.

Corporate Expenses

Our historical results of operations reflected im consolidated financial statements, for periadsrgo the Distribution, include
management fee charges and the allocation of egperfated to certain corporate functions histdlyigaovided by Cablevision. Our results
operations after the Distribution reflect certaénenues and expenses related to transactions mitheoges from related parties as described in
Note 19 in the accompanying consolidated finarstiaiements. As a separate, s-alone public company, we have expanded and are
continuing to expand our financial, administratared other staff to support these new requiremémtddition, we are adding staff and syst:
to replace many of the functions previously prodithy Cablevision. However, our corporate operatiogts as a separate company subsequen
to the Distribution, including those associatedwiieing a publiciytraded company, through December 31, 2011 have bedmare expected
continue to be, lower than the historical allocatid expenses related to certain corporate funst{prcluding management fee charges).
Pursuant to a consulting agreement with Cablevjsiatil the Distribution date the Company paid anagement fee calculated based on ce
of our subsidiaries gross revenues (as definedrithdegerms of the consulting agreement) on a mpiidisis. We terminated the consulting
agreement on the Distribution date and did notaegpit.

We allocate certain amounts of our corporate oathie each segment based upon their proportiostiteated usage of services. The
segment financial information set forth below, indihg the discussion related to individual lineritge does not reflect inter-segment
eliminations unless specifically indicated.

Cautionary Note Concerning Historical Financial Staments

As noted above, our consolidated financial statesfem periods prior to the Distribution have befamived from the consolidated
financial statements and accounting records of &@adibn and reflect certain assumptions and alionat Our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows could differ from thdss tight have resulted had we operated autonomousls an entity independent of
Cablevision.

Our capital structure after the Distribution isfeient from the capital structure presented inhiséorical consolidated financial statem
for periods prior to the Distribution and, accoglin our interest expense in periods after Jun€2BQ1 as a separate independent entity is, and
we expect will continue to be, materially higheanhthe interest expense reflected in our histodoabkolidated financial statements in periods
prior to June 30, 2011.
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Impact of Economic Conditions
Our future performance is dependent, to a largengxbn general economic conditions including thpact of direct competition, our
ability to manage our businesses effectively, amdrelative strength and leverage in the marketglaoth with suppliers and customers.

Additional capital and credit market disruptionsilcbcause economic downturns, which may lead telademand for our products, such
as lower demand for television advertising andaefese in the number of subscribers receiving mgramming networks from our
distributors. We have experienced some of the &ffetcthe recent economic downturn. Continuatioewants such as these may adversely
impact our results of operations, cash flows andrfcial position.

Consolidated Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2010
The following table sets forth our consolidateduftssof operations for the periods indicated.

For the years ended December 3:

2011 2010
% of % of
Revenues Revenues
%
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $1,187,74. 10(%  $1,078,30! 10(%  $109,44: 10%
Operating expense
Technical and operating (excluding depreciation
amortization) 425,96: 36 366,09: 34 59,86¢ 16
Selling, general and administrati 335,65t 28 328,13« 30 7,522 2
Restructuring cred (240 — (2,21¢ — 1,97¢ (89
Depreciation and amortizatic 99,84¢ 8 106,45! 10 (6,607 (6)
Total operating expens: 861,22! 73 798,46¢ 74 62,76 8
Operating incomi 326,51t 27 279,83t 26 46,68( 17
Other income (expense
Interest expense, n (94,79¢) (8) (73,417 ) (21,389 29
Write-off of deferred financing cos (6,247 @ — — (6,247 —
Loss on extinguishment of de (14,72¢) Q) — — (14,726 —
Miscellaneous, ne (137 — (162 — 25 (15)
Total other income (expens (115,900 (10 (73,579 @) (42,33) 58
Income from continuing operations before incomess 210,61( 18 206,26: 19 4,34¢ 2
Income tax expens (84,249 (7 (88,079) (8) 3,82 4
Income from continuing operatiol 126,36: 11 118,18¢ 11 8,17: 7
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, néhodme
taxes 92 — (38,090 4 38,18: (200
Net Income $ 126,45 11% $ 80,09¢ 7% $ 46,35¢ 58%
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The following is a reconciliation of our consoliddtoperating income to AOCF:

For the years endec
December 31,

2011 2010 $ change % change
Operating incomi $326,51¢ $279,83¢ $46,68( 17%
Shar-based compensation expel 15,58¢ 17,20¢ (1,617 (9)
Restructuring cred (240 (2,219 1,97¢ (89)
Depreciation and amortizatic 99,84¢ 106,45! (6,607 (6)
AOCF $441,71: $401,27¢ $40,43¢ 10%
National Networks Segment Results
The following table sets forth our National Netwaggment results for the periods indicated.
For the years ended December 31,
2011 2010
% of % of
Revenues Revenues
%
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $1,082,35! 10C% $994,57: 10C% $87,78¢ 9%
Technical and operating (excluding depreciation
amortization) 366,99¢ 34 317,81¢ 32 49,17¢ 15
Selling, general and administrati 280,38° 26 271,49: 27 8,89: 3
Depreciation and amortizatic 85,70! 8 92,73¢ 9 (7,039 8
Operating incomi $ 349,27: 32% $312,52! 31% $36,74" 12%
The following is a reconciliation of our NationakNvorks segment operating income to AOCF:
For the years ended
December 31,
__2011 __2010 _ 3 change % change
Operating incomi $349,27: $312,52¢ $36,741 12%
Shar-based compensation expel 12,58: 13,79! (1,209 (9)
Depreciation and amortizatic 85,70! 92,73¢ (7,039 (8
AOCF $447,55! $419,05: $28,50¢ 7%
International and Other Segment Results
The following table sets forth our Internationatlabther segment results for the periods indicated.
For the years ended December 3;
2011 2010
% of % of
Revenues Revenues
%
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $125,57: 10C% $104,49¢ 100% $21,07¢ 20%
Technical and operating (excluding depreciation
amortization) 77,48" 62 65,63¢ 63 11,85( 18
Selling, general and administrati 56,07 45 56,96" 55 (894) 2
Restructuring cred (240) — (2,219 2 1,97¢ (89)
Depreciation and amortizatic 14,145 11 13,72( 13 427 3
Operating los! $(21,890 (17% $(29,609) (28)% $ 7,718 (26)%
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The following is a reconciliation of our Internatial and Other segment operating loss to AOCF defici

For the years endec

December 31, %
2011 2010 $ change change
Operating los: $(21,89() $(29,609) $7,71¢ (26)%
Shar-based compensation expel 3,007 3,41¢ (409) (12)
Restructuring cred (240 (2,218 1,97¢ (89)
Depreciation and amortizatic 14,14; 13,72( 427 3
AOCEF deficit $ (4,976 $(14,68¢) $9,71( (66)%

Revenues, net

Revenues, net increased $109,441 to $1,187,74hdgrear ended December 31, 2011 as compared ye#hended December 31, 2C
The net increase by segment was as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

% of % of
%
2011 total 2010 total $ change change
National Networks $1,082,35! 91% $ 994,57: 92% $ 87,78¢ 9%
International and othe 125,57 11 104,49¢ 10 21,07¢ 20
Inter-segment elimination (20,190 2 (20,779 ()] 582 3
Consolidated revenues, r $1,187,74. 10C% $1,078,30! 10C% $109,44. 10%

National Networks
The increase in National Networks revenues, nattigoutable to the following:

Advertising revenues primarily at AMC resultinginchigher ratings and higher pricing per unit sale do an increased dema
for our programming by advertisers, and to a lesg&nt increases in advertising revenue at IFCVeRdyv. Prior to
December 2010, IFC principally sold sponsorships,since then it migrated to a traditional advéntissales mode $49,83(
Affiliation fee and other revenues increased prityatue to an increase in affiliation fee reveno&€$26,247, which includes a
contractual adjustment from a distributor, andrasréase in other revenues of $11,708 due primtrilgcreased digital
distribution revenues derived from licensing ougramming 37,95¢
$87,78t

Changes in revenue discussed above are primanlyedefrom changes in contractual affiliation ratdsrged for our services, change
the number of subscribers and changes in the paicgdevel of advertising on our networks. Affilat fee revenues are generally based on a
per subscriber fee under multi-year affiliationegments, which generally provide for annual affilia rate increases. The specific affiliation
fee revenues we earn vary from period to pericstriButor to distributor and also vary among oummeks, but are generally based upon the
number of each distributor’s subscribers who rexzeiur programming. The terms of certain otheriaffdn agreements provide that the
affiliation fee revenues we earn are a fixed cantral monthly fee. Changes in our digital distribntrevenue are dependent upon the amount
of programming content made available for distiitnuty the licensee and fluctuates quarterly dejmenan the dates such programming is
made available for distribution to the licensee.

Our advertising revenues are more variable thakhadiffn fee revenues because the majority of alweatising is sold on a short-term
basis. Our advertising arrangements with advegipesvide for a set number
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of advertising units to air over a specific per@idime at a negotiated price per unit and in éersalvertising arrangements, guarantee spec
viewer ratings. If these guaranteed viewer ratengsnot met, we are generally required to provitditeonal advertising units to the advertiser,

resulting in revenue being deferred until such taeehe guarantee has been met. Most of our asingrtievenues vary based on the popularity
of our programming as measured by Nielsen.

The following table presents certain subscribeorimfation at December 31, 2011 and December 31,:2010

Estimated Domestic

Subscribers
December 31 December 31
2011 2010
National Programming Network

AMC(2) 96,30( 96,40(
WE tv(1) 76,10( 76,80(
IFC(1) 65,30( 62,70(
Sundance Channel( 42,10( 39,90(

(1) Estimated U.S. subscribers as measured by Nie
(2) Subscriber counts are based on internal manageemts and represent viewing subscrib

The Company believes the WE tv, IFC and Sundane@a@# programming services may benefit from inadatistribution, especially
on the digital tiers of cable television distribrg@s digital penetration increases, and increadedrtising/sponsorship revenues as cable
networks, including advertiser-supported niche progning networks (such as WE tv and IFC), attragptester advertising market share.
These increases could potentially be offset by taves effective rates per viewing subscriber for ptogramming services due to the
consolidation of distributors. Opportunities arerenbmited for increases in distribution in the Uf& our substantially fully penetrated AMC
programming service. Changes in the viewershimgatof our AMC, WE tv and IFC programming servioggy also significantly affect future
advertising revenues. We believe that the dectineN1C and WE tv subscribers shown as of DecembgeP311 as compared to December 31,
2010 may reflect the impact of changes in the Mielsample and the decline in the Nielsen totalars® estimate, as AMC and WE tv did not
have any significant negative tiering changes se lany significant affiliate relationships durifig trelevant periods.

International and Other
The increase in International and Other revenuetsisrattributable to the following:

Increased foreign affiliation fee revenues from AMC Canadian distributors and our other internadity distributed channel
due to increased distribution in Europe, increatigdal distribution and theatrical revenue at IFiGns, and to a lesser

extent, increased origination fee revenue at AM@\geks Broadcasting & Technolog $22,001

Lower foreign affiliation fee revenues at VOOM HRDedto cessation of distribution of the Rush HD atediin Europe in April
2011 (939)
$21,07¢
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Technical and operating expense (excluding depred¢ian and amortization)
Technical and operating expenses (excluding degtfeniand amortization) increased $59,868 to $425fér 2011 as compared to 2010.
The net increase by segment was as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

2011 2010 $ change % change
National Networks $366,99¢ $317,81¢ $49,17¢ 15%
International and Othe 77,48¢ 65,63 11,85¢( 18
Inter-segment elimination (18,527 (17,36 (1,167 7
Total $425,96: $366,09: $59,86¢ 16%
Percentage of revenues, 36% 34%

National Networks

The increase in the National Networks segment stssif $44,597 for the amortization of program tigind series development/original
programming costs and $4,582 for programming rdlatests. The increase in amortization of prograghts and series development/original
programming costs for 2011 as compared to 2010éspdimarily to increased amortization of prograghts at AMC and WE tv and program
rights write-offs of $18,059 primarily at AMC based management’s assessment of programming usefilpartially offset by a decrease in
development costs at AMC and decreased amortizafipnrogram rights at Sundance Channel. The inergeprogramming related costs
resulted principally from increased editing andifatting/commercial insertion related costs.

There may be significant changes in the level ofteahnical and operating expenses from quartquéster and/or changes from year to
year due to content acquisition and/or originalgpamnming costs and/or the impact of manage’s periodic assessment of programming
usefulness. As additional competition for programgrincreases from programming services and altemtiatribution technologies continue to
develop in the industry, costs for content acgiaisiand/or original programming may increase.

International and Other

The increase in the International and Other segif@ctuding VOOM) consists of $10,455 related togrgamming costs of
AMC/Sundance Channel Global services and contequisition and participation costs at IFC Filmsaltdition, transmission and
programming related expenses increased $2,840 pifraa AMC/Sundance Channel Global due to increadistribution in Europe.
Programming costs at VOOM HD decreased $1,445tregurimarily from ceasing distribution of the RuklD channel in Europe in April
2011.

Selling, general and administrative expense
Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&7,522 to $335,656 for 2011 as compared to. Zidnet increase by segment:
as follows:

For the years endec
December 31,

2011 2010 $ changt % change
National Networks $280,38" $271,49: $8,89: 3%
International and Othe 56,07 56,96¢ (8949 2
Inter-segment elimination (802) (329 (477) 147
Total $335,65¢ $328,13¢ $7,522 2%
Percentage of revenues, 28% 30%
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National Networks

The increase in the National Networks segment stssif $17,080 of sales and marketing expenseteddla a higher number of original
programming premieres during 2011, increased salated costs at IFC following the migration toaatvertising sales model in December
2010 as well as a net increase in other generahdmdnistrative costs of $9,537 primarily due topéogee related expenses and costs incurred
with becoming a stand-alone public company. Theseeases were partially offset by a decrease df/di5in share-based compensation
expense and expenses relating to long-term inaeptans as well as a reduction of corporate aliooatfrom Cablevision, including a
reduction of $12,553 in management fees.

Pursuant to a consulting agreement with Cablevjsienpaid a management fee calculated based awircsttbsidiaries’ gross revenues
(as defined under the terms of the consulting ageet) on a monthly basis. We terminated the coimguétgreement on the Distribution date
and did not replace it.

There may be significant changes in the level ofsalling, general and administrative expenses fjoiarter to quarter and year to year
due to the timing of promotion and marketing ofyoral programming.

International and Other

The decrease in the International and Other segowersists of a decrease of $6,441 related to VOQMdHe primarily to lower legal
fees and other related costs and expenses in dismadth the DISH Network contract dispute andegibase in share-based compensation
expense and expenses relating to long-term inaentimpensation of $1,262. Such decreases arellyasffaet by an increase of $4,506 for
selling, marketing and advertising costs primaaityFC Films due to increased spending on titlesddistributed and a net increase of $2,303
for general and administrative costs incurred inngztion with becoming a stand-alone public compaimg increase in general and
administrative costs is net of a reduction of coap® allocations from Cablevision following the Dilsution.

Restructuring credit

The restructuring credit of $240 for 2011 and $8,&dr 2010 represents primarily the negotiated c¢éidns of contract termination costs
originally recorded in 2008 following the Companyacision to discontinue funding the domestic paogmning of VOOM.

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization decreased $6,60B%0388 for 2011 as compared to 2010. The changetpent was as follows:

For the years endec
December 31,

2011 2010 $ change % change
National Networks $85,70! $ 92,73t $(7,034) (8)%
International and Othe 14,147 13,72( 427 3
$99,84¢ $106,45! $(6,607) (6)%

Amortization expense decreased $7,541 in 2011 mpaced to 2010, which was partially offset by acréase in depreciation expense of
$934. The decrease in amortization expense watodhe decrease at the National Networks segmémnipity resulting from certain
identifiable intangible assets of Sundance Chabeebming fully amortized in the fourth quarter 6fLD.
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AOCF
AOCF (deficit) increased $40,434 for 2011 as corapao 2010. The net increase by segment was asvill

For the years ended
December 31,

2011 2010 $ change % change
National Networks $447,55! $419,05: $28,50¢ 7%
International and Othe (4,976 (14,68¢) 9,71( (66)
Inter-segment elimination (86€) (3,086€) 2,22( (72
AOCF $441,71: $401,27¢ $40,43¢ 10%

National Networks AOCF increased due to an incréasevenues, net of $87,785 and a net decreassling, general and administrati
expenses primarily from a decrease in managemest fartially offset by an increase in technical aperating expenses resulting primarily
from an increase in amortization of program rightpense and program rights write-offs, marketingeesse due to the increase in the number
of original programming premieres and advertisialgs related costs at IFC, excluding share-baseghensation, and depreciation and
amortization expense, as discussed above.

International and Other AOCF deficit decreased phirarily to an increase in revenues, net of $24 &7d a decrease in legal fees and
other costs in connection with the DISH Networkttact dispute, partially offset by an increase fpei@ting expenses due primarily to
increased content costs at AMC/Sundance ChanndlaGémd IFC Films, the launch of certain servieeEurope and increased selling,
marketing and advertising costs primarily at IFGrS, excluding share-based compensation, and daficecand amortization expense, as
discussed above.

Interest expense, net
The net increase in interest expense, net from 82011 is attributable to the following:

Indebtedness incurred in connection with the Disitibn $ 48,23(

Repayment of the Rainbow National Services L“RNE”) senior notes in May 2011 and the RNS credit faycditd the RN
senior subordinated notes in June 2 (33,579
Interest rate swap contrat 4,62¢
Decrease in interest incor 1,31«
Other 79C
$ 21,38¢

Write-off of deferred financing costs

The write-off of deferred financing costs of $6,%47 the year ended December 31, 2011 represert8&bf deferred financing costs
written off in connection with the redemption o&tRNS 8 3/4% senior notes in May 2011, $2,062 @55 of deferred financing costs
written off in connection with the repayment of thetstanding borrowings under the RNS credit fgcdind the RNS 10 3/8% senior
subordinated notes, respectively, in June 201bimection with the Distribution and $544 of defdrfmancing costs written off associated
with the voluntary prepayments of the Term A Fagidluring 2011.

Loss on extinguishment of debt

The loss on extinguishment of debt of $14,726 ffierytear ended December 31, 2011 represents $1#58t excess of the redemption
price, premium paid and related fees along withretmm to principal amount over
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the carrying value of the $325,000 principal amafrthe RNS 10 3/8% senior subordinated notes raddeJune 30, 2011 associated with the
tender offer which occurred in connection with bistribution (see below for more information) antB3 associated with the voluntary
prepayments of the Term A Facility during 2011.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense attributable to continuing dpmra was $84,248 for the year ended December@l1l,2epresenting an effective tax
rate of 40%. The effective tax rate differs frore federal statutory rate of 35% due primarily ttesincome tax expense of $8,020, tax exp
of $3,300 related to uncertain tax positions, idolg accrued interest and a tax benefit of $2,&26ilting from a decrease in the valuation
allowance with regard to certain local income teedit carry forwards. We expect our effective taterto be approximately 39% in future
periods.

Income tax expense attributable to continuing cjmra was $88,073 for the year ended December@i),2epresenting an effective tax
rate of 43%. The effective tax rate differs frore federal statutory rate of 35% due primarily stesincome tax expense of $10,937, tax
expense of $1,398 resulting from an increase irvéiheation allowance with regard to certain locelame tax credit carry forwards, tax
expense of $1,236 for the impact of a change irsthte rate used to measure deferred taxes ardpaxse of $1,890 related to uncertain tax
positions, including accrued interest.

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, néhobme taxes, for the years ended December 31, @8d 2010 reflects the following
items, net of related income taxes:

For the years endec
December 31,

2011 2010

Net operating results of News 12, RASCO and othéties transferred t
Cablevision on December 31, 2010, net of incomed $— $(38,55%)
Other, net of income tax: 92 465

$ 92 $(38,090

On December 31, 2010, RMH transferred its membgiisitérests in News 12 (regional news programmergises), RASCO (a cable
television advertising company), and certain othesinesses to wholly-owned subsidiaries of Cabilewis contemplation of the Distribution.
The operating results of these transferred entitiesugh the date of transfer have been presentdid¢ontinued operations for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 in the accompanyingtdated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2009
The following table sets forth our consolidatedulessof operations for the periods indicated.

For the years ended December 31,

2010 2009
% of Net % of Net
%
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue $ change change
Revenues, net $1,078,30! 10C%  $973,64: 10C%  $104,65¢ 11%
Operating expense
Technical and operating (excluding depreciation
amortization) 366,09: 34 310,36! 32 55,72¢ 18
Selling, general and administrati 328,13« 30 313,90« 32 14,23( 5
Restructuring (credit) expen (2,219 — 5,16% 1 (7,380 (143
Depreciation and amortizatic 106,45! 10 106,50 11 (49 —
Total operating expens 798,46¢ 74 735,93! 76 62,52¢ 8
Operating incomi 279,83t 26 237,70¢ 24 42,12, 18
Other income (expense
Interest expense, n (73,417 @) (78,942 (8 5,53( @)
Miscellaneous, ne (162 — 187 — (349 (187
Total other income (expens (73,579 @) (78,759 8 5,181 @)
Income from continuing operations before incomess 206,26: 19 158,95 16 47,30¢ 30
Income tax expens (88,079 (8) (70,407 (7 (17,666 25
Income from continuing operatiol 118,18 11 88,541 9 29,64: 33
Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxes (38,090 ()] (34,79) ()] (3,299 9
Net Income $ 80,09¢ 7% $ 53,75¢ 6% $ 26,34 49%
The following is a reconciliation of our consoliddtoperating income to AOCF:
For the years ended
December 31,
2010 2009 $ change % change
Operating incom: $279,83t $237,70¢ $42,12] 18%
Shar-based compensation expel 17,20¢ 14,72 2,48:
Restructuring (credit) expen (2,21¢) 5,162 (7,380 (143
Depreciation and amortizatic 106,45! 106,50 (49 —
AOCF $401,27¢ $364,09¢ $37,18! 10%
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National Networks segment results

The following table sets forth our National Netwedegment results for the periods indicated.

For the years ended December 31,

2010 2009
% of % of
Revenues Revenues
%
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, net $994,57: 100% $896,49: 10(% $98,08( 11%
Technical and operating (excluding depreciation
amortization) 317,81¢ 32 272,32¢ 30 45,49( 17
Selling, general and administrati 271,49: 27 255,74! 29 15,74¢ 6
Depreciation and amortizatic 92,73¢ 9 89,60: 10 3,132 3
Operating incom $312,52! 31% $278,81¢ 31% $33,70¢ 12%
The following is a reconciliation of our NationabNvorks segment operating income to AOCF:
For the years ended
December 31,
2010 2009 $ change % change
Operating incom: $312,52! $278,81t $33,70¢ 12%
Shar-based compensation expel 13,791 12,40t 1,38¢ 11
Depreciation and amortizatic 92,73t 89,60 3,132 3
AOCF $419,05: $380,82: $38,22° 10%
International and Other segment results
The following table sets forth our Internationablather segment results for the periods indicated.
For the years ended December 31,
2010 2009
% of % of
Revenues Revenues
%
Amount net Amount net $ change change
Revenues, ne $104,49¢ 10C% $ 95,92: 10(% $ 8,67¢ 9%
Technical and operating (excluding depreciation and
amortization) 65,63¢ 63 53,72¢ 56 11,91( 22
Selling, general and administrati 56,96¢ 55 58,06 61 (1,102 2
Restructuring (credit) expen (2,219 2 5,16% 5 (7,380 (143)
Depreciation and amortizatic 13,72( 13 16,90 18 (3,187 (29
Operating los: $(29,607) (28)% $(37,939 (40)% $ 8,331 (22)%
The following is a reconciliation of our Internatial and Other segment operating loss to AOCF defici
For the years ended
December 31,
2010 2009 $ change % change
Operating los: $(29,609) $(37,939) $ 8,331 (22)%
Shar-based compensation expel 3,41¢ 2,31¢ 1,097 47
Restructuring (credit) expen (2,21¢) 5,162 (7,380 (143
Depreciation and amortizatic 13,72( 16,901 (3,18)) (19
AOCEF deficit $(14,6860) $(13,559 $(1,137) 8%

52



Table of Contents

Revenues, net

Revenues, net increased $104,656 to $1,078,30G8dorear ended December 31, 2010 as compared ye#iheended December 31, 2C
The net increase by segment was as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

% of % of
0,
2010 total 2009 total $ change ch:Jnge
National Networks $ 994,57 92%  $896,49: 92% $ 98,08( 11%
International and othe 104,49¢ 10 95,921 1C 8,57¢ 9
Inter-segment elimination (20,779 2 (18,770 2 (2,002) 11
Consolidated revenues, r $1,078,301 10C%  $973,64: 10C%  $104,65¢ 11%

National Networks
The increase in National Networks revenues, nattigoutable to the following:

Advertising revenues increased primarily at AMC &# tv resulting from higher pricing per unit salde to an increased

demand for our programming by advertisers, andlésser extent sponsorship increases at IFC andaBae Channel due t

an increased demand for our programming by spol $56,33:
Affiliation fee and other revenues increased prilpaat AMC and WE tv and, to a lesser extent IF@ &undance Channel,

resulting from increases in affiliation rates antdscribers (see below). In addition, other revennezased from foreign

licensing revenues and digital distribution revenpemarily at AMC derived from sales of our progiaing. . 41,745

Revenue increases discussed above are primarileddrom an increase in contractual affiliatiotesacharged for our services, an
increase in the number of subscribers and an isergethe prices and level of advertising on ouwneks. Affiliation fee revenues are
generally based on a per subscriber fee under-yrati affiliation agreements, which generally previdr annual affiliation rate increases. 1
specific affiliation fee revenues we earn vary frperiod to period, distributor to distributor arldavary among our networks, but are
generally based upon the number of each distrilsustibscribers who receive our programming. Theseof certain affiliation agreements
provide that the affiliation fee revenues we eamafixed contractual monthly fee. Our advertisiegenues are more variable than affiliation
fee revenues because virtually all of our advergiss sold on a short-term basis. Our advertisingngiements with advertisers provide for a set
number of advertising units to air over a spegifciod of time at a negotiated price per unit anddrtain advertising arrangements, guarantee
specified viewer ratings. If these guaranteed viaatngs are not met, we are generally requirgordwvide additional advertising units to the
advertiser, resulting in revenue being deferred sath time as the guarantee has been met. Masiradidvertising revenues vary based on the
popularity of our programming as measured by Nielse

The following table presents certain subscribevrimfation at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Estimated Domestic
Subscribers

December 31 December 31
2010 2009
National Programming Network
AMC(1) 96,40( 95,20(
WE tv(1) 76,80( 74,90(
IFC(1) 62,70( 60,40(
Sundance Channel( 39,90( 37,90(

(1) Estimated U.S. subscribers as measured by Nie
(2) Subscriber counts are based on internal managaeyotts and represent viewing subscrib
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International and Other
The increase in International and Other revenuetsisrattributable to the following:

Affiliation fee and other revenues increased $19,8tincipally from an increase in foreign affiliati fee revenues from the
AMC Canadian distribution channel due to strengihgof the Canadian dollar (affiliation agreementth Canadian
distributors are primarily denominated in Canadiafiars) as well as an increase in subscribergtmdumber of Canadial
distributors who carry the service and, to a lesséent, increased film distribution revenues df IFIms due to an increas
number of titles being distributed and increasditiatfon revenues of our other international distition channels. In
addition, other revenues increased $1,209 duecteased foreign licensing revenue and digital ithistion revenue of IFC
Films, partially offset by a decrease in originatfee revenue at AMC Networks Broadcasting & Tedbgy due to the

termination of the Fox Sports Florida transmissagneement in November 20 $12,12¢

A decrease in revenues, net due to the shutdowheafomestic programming of VOOM in January 2008 ¥®OM's lower
foreign distribution revenu (3,549
$ 8,57¢

Technical and operating expense (excluding depredian and amortization)
Technical and operating expenses (excluding degtfeniand amortization) increased $55,728 to $35f0r 2010 as compared to 2009.
The net increase by segment was as follows:

For the years endec
December 31,

2010 2009 $ change % change
National Networks $317,81¢ $272,32¢ $45,49( 17%
International and Othe 65,63¢ 53,72t 11,91( 22
Inter-segment elimination (17,36 (15,689 (1,672) 11
Total $366,09: $310,36! $55,72¢ 18%
Percentage of revenues, 34% 32%

National Networks

Technical and operating expenses increased $45M80rtization of program rights and series develeptforiginal programming costs
increased $40,052 due primarily to increased amaditin of program rights at AMC and, to a less@eekincreased amortization of program
rights at WE tv and IFC. In addition, programmimdpted costs increased $5,438 resulting princigediyn increased presentation and
formatting/commercial insertion related costs.

International and Other

The International and Other segment increased $01d9e to $9,198 of increased programming costeéin AMC/Sundance Channel
Global services as a result of launches in addititerritories in Europe and Asia in 2010 and iasedl content acquisition costs at IFC Films
due to an increased number of titles being disteidupartially offset by other decreases at AMCwieks Broadcasting & Technology. In
addition, transmission and programming related rgpe increased $7,845 primarily at AMC/Sundancen@é&laGlobal as a result of launches
in additional territories in Europe and Asia in RPOThese increases were partially offset by a deseref $5,133 for programming costs at
VOOM due to reduced programming offerings in 2010.
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Selling, general and administrative expense
Selling, general and administrative expenses ise$14,230 to $328,134 for 2010 as compared t8. 20k net increase by segment
was as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

2010 2009 $ change % change
National Networks $271,49: $255,74! $15,74¢ 6%
International and Othe 56,96¢ 58,06 (1,102) 2
Inter-segment elimination (325) 92 (417) (459
Total $328,13¢ $313,90:¢ $14,23( 5%
Percentage of revenues, 30% 32%

National Networks

The increase in the National Networks segment tepuimarily from $8,540 of increased marketing exge related to an increase in the
number of original programming premieres at AMGtipdly offset by a decrease in such costs at I5&les and marketing costs also increased
due to an increase in advertising sales relatedresgs at AMC and WE tv due to increased advertisafes revenues in 2010 compared to
2009. Share-based compensation expense and expelase) to Cablevision’s long-term incentive pancreased $3,719. In addition,
management fees paid to Cablevision pursuant tmsuiting agreement increased $2,738 due to thieased revenues at AMC and WE tv in
2010. The consulting agreement was terminated @Dibtribution date.

International and Other

The increase in the International and Other segiseattributable to an increase of $4,363 in sgllimarketing and advertising costs at
AMC/Sundance Channel Global due to increased digidn of our foreign services as a result of ldwewin additional territories in Europe
and Asia in 2010 and at IFC Films due to an inerdasimber of titles being distributed. Share-basedpensation expense and expenses
relating to Cablevision’s long-term incentive plansreased $2,017. General and administrative goBtsarily at AMC/Sundance Channel
Global and at IFC Films increased $1,163 due tregsed cost allocations among our segments. Theeases were more than offset by
selling, general and administrative expenses at MO®hich decreased $9,176 due primarily to lowealdees, costs and related expenses in
connection with the DISH Network contract dispute.

Restructuring (credit) expense

The restructuring credit of $2,218 for 2010 repnéserimarily the negotiated reductions of conttacinination costs originally recorded
in 2008 following our decision to discontinue fungithe domestic programming of VOOM HD.

The restructuring expense of $5,162 for 2009 regressprimarily the write-off of program rights aadntract termination costs due to our
decision in 2009 to discontinue funding certairinaitional VOOM HD programming.
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Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization by segment was asvist

For the years ended
December 31,

2010 2009 $ change % change
National Networks $ 92,73¢ $ 89,60: $ 3,132 3%
International and Othe 13,72( 16,90! (3,18 (19
$106,45! $106,50: $ (49 — %

The National Networks depreciation and amortizatmmmeased primarily due to an increase in amditinaexpense of $2,974 in 2010 as
compared to 2009 primarily due to the increasemoréization resulting from a reduction in the estted useful life of certain identifiable
intangible assets acquired in connection with tguésition of Sundance Channel in June 2008, prtiffset by a decrease in amortization
due to certain intangible assets of AMC, WE tv #@d becoming fully amortized in the second quanfe2009. Depreciation expense incree
$158 in 2010 as compared to 2009.

The International and Other depreciation and amatitn decreased $3,181 in 2010 as compared to @09 a decrease in deprecia
expense primarily related to VOOM HD, AMC NetwofBsoadcasting & Technology and corporate fixed asset

AOCF
AOCF (deficit) increased $37,181 in 2010 as comp#we2009. The change by segment was as follows:

For the years endec
December 31,

2010 2009 $ change % change
National Networks $419,05: $380,82« $38,221 10%
International and Othe (14,68¢) (13,559 (1,139 8
Inter-segment elimination (3,086 (3,179 87 (©)]
AOCF $401,27¢ $364,09¢ $37,18: 10%

National Networks AOCF increased due to an incréasevenues, net of $98,080, partially offset hyiricrease in operating expenses
resulting primarily from an increase in amortizatiof program rights expense and marketing expensédalthe increase in the number of
original programming premieres, excluding shareeasompensation, and depreciation and amortizatipense, as discussed above.

International and Other AOCF deficit increased grimarily to an increase in operating expensesptimearily to the launch of certain
AMC/Sundance Channel Global services and an ineceasmber of titles being distributed by IFC Ergemtnent, partially offset by an
increase in revenues, net, excluding share-basagemsation, and depreciation and amortization esgeas discussed above.

Interest expense, net
The net decrease in interest expense, net iswgtbke to the following:

Loss on interest rate swap contracts, $(3,237)
Lower average RNS debt balan: (1,699
Increase in interest incon (2,552
Interest on the promissory note with MSG repaierch 201C 914
Higher average interest rates on RNS indebtec 21
Other 22

$(5,53(
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Loss on interest rate swap contracts, net was $3@3he year ended December 31, 2009. The irttemss swap contracts effectively
fixed the borrowing rates on a substantial poroabthe Company’s floating rate debt to limit thepesure against the risk of rising rates. The
loss on interest rate swap contracts resulted &ahift in the yield curve over the life of the gw@ontracts. The interest rate swap contracts
matured in November 2009.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense attributable to continuing dpmra was $88,073 for the year ended December@®0,2epresenting an effective tax
rate of 43%. The effective tax rate differs frore federal statutory rate of 35% due primarily stesincome tax expense of $10,937, tax
expense of $1,398 resulting from an increase irvéiheation allowance with regard to certain locelame tax credit carry forwards, tax
expense of $1,236 for the impact of a change irstae rate used to measure deferred taxes amkpaxse of $1,890, related to uncertain tax
positions, including accrued interest.

Income tax expense attributable to continuing cjimra was $70,407 for the year ended December(@®19,2epresenting an effective tax
rate of 44%. The effective tax rate differs frore federal statutory rate of 35% due primarily ttesincome tax expense of $9,238, tax exp
of $1,309 resulting from an increase in the vahratillowance with regard to certain local incomedeedit carry forwards, tax expense of $
for the impact of a change in the state rate useddasure deferred taxes and tax expense of $3@&fked to uncertain tax positions, including
accrued interest.

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of incomxesafor the years ended December 31, 2010 andr2fie@ts the following items, net
of related income taxes:

For the years endec
December 31,

2010 2009

Net operating results of News 12, RASCO and ottarsferred entities
net of income taxe $(38,559 $(36,96()
Other, net of income tax 465 2,16¢

$(38,090) $(34,79)

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

We generated positive net cash from operating iievfor each of the three years ended Decemhe2(®ill, 2010 and 2009. However,
each of our programming businesses has substamigdlamming acquisition and development expenditeigeirements.

Sources of cash have included primarily cash flamnfthe operations of our businesses and borrowindsr the revolving credit
facilities of RNS, our indirect wholly-owned subisid/ and borrowings under the New AMC Networks Détst discussed below, we
terminated the RNS revolving credit facilities imnmection with the Distribution and replaced thiesslities with a new revolving credit facili
that we entered into in connection with the Disttibn. Although we currently believe that amountaitable under our revolving credit facility
will be available when and if needed, we can previd assurance that access to such funds willephpacted by adverse conditions in the
financial markets. The obligations of the finandiedtitutions under our revolving credit facilityeaseveral and not joint and, as a result, a
funding default by one or more institutions doesmeed to be made up by the others.

Cablevision is not a guarantor of, and does natretlse have any obligations relating to, our reir@\credit facilities or any of our other
indebtedness (see below). During the three yeatstebecember 31, 2011,
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we have serviced our debt exclusively with castvéldrom our own operations or from financing sosrocelependent of Cablevision, except in
connection with the repayment of the RMH Promissgoye in March 2010, as discussed below.

Our principal uses of cash include our debt sentloe acquisition and development of program rigimd the net funding and investment
requirements of our developing services. Our bissieg do not require significant capital expenditubes a percentage of revenues, net, capital
expenditures were less than 2% for each of thetyears ended December 31, 2011. In anticipatidheoDistribution, commencing on
January 1, 2011 we no longer funded the operatibtisose subsidiaries of RMH that were transfetoe@ablevision on December 31, 2010.

As a result of our incurrence of the New AMC Netkwbebt in connection with the Distribution, oumt@ctual debt obligations
(including capital leases) increased to $2,306 &6@f December 31, 2011 from $1,118,875 as of Dbeeil, 2010. We believe that a
combination of cash-on-hand, cash generated frognatipg activities and availability under our rexinf credit facility will provide sufficient
liquidity to service the increased principal antkiest payments on our indebtedness, along witlothar funding and investment requirements
over the next twelve months and over the longen tétowever, we do not expect to generate sufficdash from operations to repay at
maturity the entirety of the then outstanding beénof the New AMC Networks Debt. As a result, wik e dependent upon our ability to
access the capital and credit markets in ordezgay or refinance the outstanding balances oirnbisbtedness. Failure to raise sufficient
amounts of funding to repay these obligations aunitg would adversely affect our business. In sadircumstance, we would need to take
other actions including selling assets, seekingtegjic investments from third parties or reducitigeodiscretionary uses of cash.

Our increased amount of debt could have importansequences on our business including, but notddrid, increasing our vulnerabil
to general adverse economic and industry conditiimging the availability of our cash flow to fdrfuture programming investments, capital
expenditures, working capital, business activitied other general corporate requirements and fighaur flexibility in planning for, or reactil
to, changes in our business and the industry ichvivie operate.

In addition, economic or market disruptions cowdd to lower demand for our services, such as Itavets of advertising. These events
would adversely impact our results of operatiomashcflows and financial position.

Cash Flow Discussion

The following table is a summary of cash flows pded by (used in) continuing operations and disowetd operations for the periods
indicated:

For the years ended December 3;

2011 2010 2009
Continuing operations

Cash flow provided by operating activiti $ 255,23 $ 265,99 $ 204,00:
Cash flow used in investing activiti (15,69) (17,157 (13,169
Cash flow used in financing activiti (104,05) (148,81¢) (132,479
Net increase in cash from continuing operati 135,48! 100,02: 58,35¢

Discontinued operation
Net increase (decrease) in cash flow from discaeftinoperation $ 391 $ (49,89() $ (54,01)
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Continuing Operations
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities amoumted255,233 for the year ended December 31, 20tbrapared to $265,995 for the
year ended December 31, 2010. The December 31,@&hlprovided by operating activities resultednfi$641,055 of net income befc
depreciation and amortization and other non-cashst partially offset by a decrease in cash reguftom the acquisition of and payment of
obligations relating to program rights totaling $3838, an increase in accounts receivable, tradérg $44,750, deferred carriage fee
payments of $3,640 and an increase of other netsag6$5,994.

Net cash provided by operating activities amoumted265,995 for the year ended December 31, 20ttpaced to $204,002 for the year
ended December 31, 2009. The 2010 cash providepénating activities resulted from $571,984 ofinebme before depreciation and
amortization and other non-cash items, a decr@ageepaid expenses and other assets of $17,388meindrease in net other liabilities totaling
$17,821 partially offset by a decrease in cashltiegurom the acquisition of and payment of obtigas relating to program rights totaling
$301,745, an increase in accounts receivable, taiding $36,422 and deferred carriage fee paysnein$3,031.

Net cash provided by operating activities amoumte$204,002 for the year ended December 31, 2008.2D09 cash provided by
operating activities resulted from $486,705 ofinebme before depreciation and amortization andration-cash items, partially offset by the
acquisition of and payment of obligations relatiogrrogram rights totaling $249,951, deferred eayeifee payments of $3,888, an increase in
accounts receivable, trade totaling $27,641, and@ease in net other assets totaling $1,223.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the yearded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $1%69157 and $13,169,
respectively, which consisted primarily of capiapenditures of $15,371, $17,243, and $13,41%@years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively, primarily for the purchab&echnical and transmission related equipment.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities amountedli®4$057 for the year ended December 31, 2011 apa@u to $148,816 for the year
ended December 31, 2010. In 2011, financing as#/itonsisted of proceeds from credit facility def$1,442,364 and proceeds from stock
option exercises of $3,622, which was more thasetfby the repayment of credit facility debt of 3875, payments for the redemption of the
RNS senior notes and senior subordinated notdsidimg tender premiums and fees of $638,365, dedkfinancing costs of $27,414, principal
payments on capital leases of $4,612 and treasoci« acquired from the acquisition of restrictedr&s of $1,677.

Net cash used in financing activities amountedl148$816 for the year ended December 31, 2010 cadpar$132,474 for the year
ended December 31, 2009. In 2010, financing a#/itonsisted of capital contributions from Caldeui of $204,018, repayment of a note
payable to an affiliate of Cablevision (see RMHRissory Note discussion below) of $190,000, capiistributions to Cablevision of $53,7¢
repayment of credit facility debt of $105,000 amohgipal payments on capital leases of $4,080.

Net cash used in financing activities amounted1t82$474 for the year ended December 31, 2009. 09 Zihancing activities consisted
of net capital distributions to Cablevision of $804 repayment of credit facility debt of $120,00@ grincipal payments on capital leases of
$3,034.
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Discontinued Operations

The net effect of discontinued operations on casghcash equivalents amounted to a cash inflow 81 $8r the year ended December
2011 and a cash outflow of $49,890 and $54,011th®rears ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, resgect

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities of discorgthaperations amounted to $359 for the year endm@mber 31, 2011 resulting from an
increase in net assets.

Net cash used in operating activities of discor@thaperations amounted to $30,870 for the yearcecbdeember 31, 2010 compared to
$48,967 for the year ended December 31, 2009. U6 2ash used in operating activities resulted f$&2,287 of loss excluding depreciation
and amortization and other non-cash items and ieedse in accounts payable and other liabilities9423, partially offset by an increase in
cash resulting from a decrease in current and etbszts of $30,840.

Net cash used in operating activities of discor@thaperations amounted to $48,967 for the yearcebdeember 31, 2009. The 2009
cash used in operating activities resulted primdrdm $50,528 of loss excluding depreciation anmbdization and other non-cash items,
partially offset by a net increase in cash resglfiom the net change in assets and liabilitie$19561.

Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities of distbomed operations for the year ended December @11 vas $750, which consisted of
proceeds from the sale of affiliate interests.

Net cash used in investing activities of discorgithoperations for the year ended December 31, 22$310,183 compared to $4,753
the year ended December 31, 2009. The 2010 ingeattivities consisted of capital expenditures 19,344, partially offset by proceeds from
the sale of affiliate interests of $561.

Net cash used in investing activities of discorgithwperations for the year ended December 31, 2@8%4,753, which consisted of
capital expenditures of $7,259, partially offsetfvgceeds from the sale of affiliate interests attér net cash receipts of $2,506.

Debt Financing Agreements
Senior Secured Credit Facility

On June 30, 2011 (the “Closing Date”), AMC Netwqras Borrower, and substantially all of its sulesiiis, as restricted subsidiaries,
entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Rg€)li The Credit Facility provides AMC Networks witenior secured credit facilities
consisting of a $1,130,000 term loan A facilitygtfTerm A Facility”), a $595,000 term loan B fatilithe “Term B Facility”) and a $500,000
revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility” The Term A Facility and the Term B Facility watiscounted $5,650 and $12,986,
respectively, upon original issuance. The Term gilkg matures June 30, 2017, the Term B Facilitgtumes December 31, 2018 and the
Revolving Facility matures June 30, 2016. On thes®lg Date, AMC Networks borrowed $1,130,000 uriierTerm A Facility and $595,000
under the Term B Facility, of which approximately7%,000 was issued to CSC Holdings as partial densiion for the transfer to AMC
Networks of the RMH businesses on June 6, 201lupatgo the Contribution Agreement, among AMC Netgp CSC Holdings an
Cablevision and was in connection with the Distiitau of AMC Networks from Cablevision, which wasnsummated on June 30, 2011. The
issuance of debt to CSC Holdings is reflected dseaned capital distribution in the accompanyingsotidated statement of
stockholders’ (deficiency) equity for the year edd®ecember 31, 2011. CSC Holdings used such New Adtvorks Debt to satisfy and
discharge outstanding CSC Holdings debt.
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The Revolving Facility was not drawn upon on thesiig Date and remains undrawn at December 31,. 2@tal undrawn revolver
commitments are available to be drawn for our galrerporate purposes.

In connection with the Credit Facility, AMC Netwarkncurred deferred financing costs of $26,309ciiare being amortized to interest
expense, utilizing the effective interest methoderahe term of each respective component of tleeliCFacility.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interatsa floating rate, which at the option of AMC Netks may be (1) for the Term A
Facility and the Revolving Facility, either (a) ade rate plus an additional rate ranging from 0.50%25% per annum (determined based on a
cash flow ratio), or (b) a Eurodollar rate plusaatditional rate ranging from 1.50% to 2.25% pernanrfdetermined based on a cash flow ratio)
and (2) for the Term B Facility, either (a) 2.00% pnnum above the base rate, or (b) 3.00% pemaiabove a Eurodollar rate (and subject to
a LIBOR floor of 1.00% per annum). At December 2011, the interest rate on the Term A Facility #relTerm B Facility was 2.03% and
4.00%, respectively, reflecting a Eurodollar raitedach plus the additional rate as described merei

All obligations under the Credit Facility are guateed jointly and severally by substantially all’dfiC Networks’ existing and future
domestic restricted subsidiaries as primary obfigoraccordance with the Credit Facility. All oldigpns under the Credit Facility, including
guarantees of those obligations, are secured tstauially all of the assets of AMC Networks anddé subsidiaries. Cablevision is not a
guarantor of, and does not otherwise have any afidigs relating to, the Credit Facility or any efr@ther indebtedness.

The borrowings under the Term A Facility and Reuav-acility portions of the Credit Facility may keluntarily prepaid without
premiums and penalty at any time (see below faseudsion of voluntary prepayments of the Term dility made during 2011). The Credit
Facility also provides for various mandatory prapawts, including with the proceeds from certairpdgstions of property and borrowings. ~
Term A Facility is required to be repaid in quastenstallments of $14,125 beginning September28a,2 through June 30, 2013, $28,250
beginning September 30, 2013 through June 30, 2021375 beginning September 30, 2014 through 30n2015, $56,500 beginning
September 30, 2015 through March 31, 2017 and $89%n June 30, 2017, the Term A Facility matuwiliye. The Term B Facility is required
to be repaid in quarterly installments of approxieha$1,488 through September 30, 2018 and appateiyn $551,863 on December 31, 2018,
the Term B Facility maturity date. The Term B Faigils not payable before maturity other than tlglouepayments as noted above or throt
refinancing with debt having a maturity date ndieathan December 31, 2018. Any amounts outstandimder the Revolving Facility are due
at maturity on June 30, 2016.

During 2011, we voluntarily prepaid $100,000 of thestanding balance under the Term A Facility,clibwas applied to the earliest
required quarterly installments due. As a resultpiaDecember 31, 2011, the next required quartestallment will be due on December 31,
2013 in the amount of $13,000 with quarterly irlstaihts due under the Term A Facility subsequeltdoember 31, 2013 remaining
unchanged.

In March 2012, we voluntarily prepaid $50,000 of tutstanding balance under the Term A Facilityiciviwas applied to the earliest
required quarterly installments due.

The Credit Facility contains certain affirmativedamegative covenants and also requires AMC Netwirk&mply with the following
financial covenants: (i) a maximum ratio of net thebannual operating cash flow (each defined ex@hnedit Facility) of 7.00:1 initially, and
decreasing in increments to 5.50:1 for periodsrahafter January 1, 2015; and (ii) a minimum rafi@annual operating cash flow to annual
total interest expense (as defined in the CreditliBg of 2.50:1 initially, increasing to 2.75:dff periods on and after January 1, 2014.

AMC Networks was in compliance with all of its caxants under its Credit Facility as of December2gil,1.

The Credit Facility requires AMC Networks to pag@nmitment fee of between 0.25% and 0.50% (detexdhbased on a cash flow
ratio) in respect of the average daily unused camenits under the Revolving
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Facility. AMC Networks is also required to pay ausary letter of credit fees, as well as frontingdeto banks that issue letters of credit
pursuant to the Credit Facility.

We may request an increase in the Term A Facilitf@r Revolving Facility by an aggregate amountexateeding the greater of
$400,000 and an amount, which after giving effectich increase, would not cause the ratio of sefgibt to annual operating cash flow, as
defined, to exceed 4.75:1. As of December 31, 20fELCompany does not have any commitments fonenemental facility.

7.75% Senior Notes due 2021

On June 30, 2011, AMC Networks issued $700,00@gregate principal amount of its 7.75% senior nates of an original issue
discount of $14,000, due July 15, 2021 (the “Notés’'CSC Holdings, as partial consideration for tifa@sfer to AMC Networks of the RMH
businesses on June 6, 2011, which is reflecteddagmed capital distribution in the accompanyingsctidated statement of
stockholders’ (deficiency) equity for the year eddi@ecember 31, 2011. The transfer was made pursudme Contribution Agreement. CSC
Holdings used the Company’s Notes to satisfy asdtdirge outstanding CSC Holdings debt. The redipieinthe Notes or their affiliates then
offered the Notes to investors, through an offerimgmorandum dated June 22, 2011, which ultimagsdylted in the Notes being held by third
party investors.

The Notes were issued under an indenture datetiJame 30, 2011 (the “Indenture”).

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, AM&wbrks incurred deferred financing costs of $1,W8ich are being amortized,
using the effective interest method, to interegtegrse over the term of the Notes.

Interest on the Notes accrues at the rate of 7 @&&nnum and is payable semi-annually in arreakaauary 15 and July 15 of each
year, commencing on January 15, 2C

The Notes may be redeemed, in whole or in pagngttime on or after July 15, 2016, at a redemppidce equal to 103.875% of the
principal amount thereof (plus accrued and unpatierest thereon, if any, to the date of such rediem) declining annually to 100% of the
principal amount thereof (plus accrued and unpaterést thereon, if any, to the date of such rediempbeginning on July 15, 2019.

In addition, if AMC Networks experiences a Chanfi€ontrol (as defined in the Indenture), the hatdefrthe Notes may require AMC
Networks to repurchase for cash all or a portiothefr Notes at a price equal to 101% of the pgatamount thereof (plus accrued and un|
interest thereon, if any, to the date of such relpase).

AMC Networks is a holding company and has no op@mnatof its own. The Notes are guaranteed on asenisecured basis by certair
AMC Networks’ existing and future domestic reseittsubsidiaries (the “Subsidiary Guarantors”),docdance with the Indenture. The
guarantees under the Notes are full and unconditiamd joint and several. Cablevision is not a gatr of, and does not otherwise have any
obligations relating to, the Notes.

The Indenture contains certain affirmative and tiggaovenants applicable to AMC Networks and itb$Sdiary Guarantors including
restrictions on their ability to incur additionaldebtedness, consummate certain assets salesjmaakenents in entities that are not
“Restricted Subsidiaries” (as defined in the Indee}, create liens on their assets, enter int@iredffiliate transactions and make certain
restricted payments, including restrictions on AM&tworks’ ability to pay dividends on, or repurcbags common stock.

AMC Networks was in compliance with all of its caxants under its Indenture as of December 31, 2011.
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AMC Networks entered into a registration rightsesgnent, dated as of June 30, 2011 (the “Registr&ights Agreement”), among
AMC Networks, the Subsidiary Guarantors and thgahpurchasers of the Notes, pursuant to which ANKIworks agreed to file a registrat
statement with the SEC with respect to an offeaxtthange the Notes for registered notes whichhaile terms identical in all material respt
to the Notes except that the registered notesnetlicontain terms that provide for restrictionstamsfer, and use its commercially reasonable
best efforts to cause the exchange offer registratiatement to be declared effective by the SEQuby1, 2012. In certain circumstances,
AMC Networks may be required to file a shelf regitibn statement with the SEC registering the seshthe Notes by the holders thereof, in
lieu of an exchange offer to such holders. AMC Nwtsg will be required to pay specified additiongtkirest on the Notes if it fails to comply
with its registration obligations under the Regittn Rights Agreement.

RNS Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes Regkbon
RNS Senior Notes

In April 2011, RNS, a wholly-owned indirect subsidi of the Company, issued a notice of redemptiomolders of its 8.75% senior
notes due September 2012. In connection therewitiiay 13, 2011 RNS redeemed 100% of the outstgraBnior notes at a redemption p
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the nate$300,000, plus accrued and unpaid interest (¥3bto the redemption date. In order to
fund the May 13, 2011 redemption, the Company keeb$300,000 under its $300,000 revolving crediilitsg which existed prior to the
closing date. The Company used cash on hand tothengdayment of accrued and unpaid interest of3kb, connection with the redemption,
the Company recorded a write-off of the relatedniorized deferred financing costs and a loss oly eatinguishment of debt of $1,186 and
$350, respectively, in the consolidated stateméirtamme for the year ended December 31, 2011.

RNS Senior Subordinated Notes (tender prices petenia dollars)

On June 15, 2011, RNS announced that it commencadtatender offer (the “Tender Offer”) for allitsf outstanding $325,000
aggregate principal amount 10.375% senior subotgihaotes due 2014 (the “RNS Senior SubordinateddNpfor total consideration of
$1,039.58 per $1,000 principal amount of noteséesd for purchase, consisting of tender offer aersition of $1,029.58 per $1,000 principal
amount of notes plus an early tender premium ofg#0$1,000 principal amount of notes. The Tend&rQvas made in connection with the
Distribution of AMC Networks by Cablevision and wsasbject to certain conditions, including the coatipin of the Distribution.

In connection with the Tender Offer, on June 30d,220RNS redeemed 100% of the outstanding $325,8§fegate principal amount of
the RNS Senior Subordinated Notes. The Company psegeds from borrowings under the Credit Facititfund the redemption and
payment of fees and accrued and unpaid interekt bfl46. Tender premiums aggregating $12,864, aldthgaccretion to the principal amoi
and other transaction costs of $1,321 have be@nmded in loss on early extinguishment of debt e ¢bnsolidated statement of income for the
year ended December 31, 2011. The related unaredrieferred financing costs aggregating approxim&®,455 were written off an
recorded in write-off of deferred financings castshe consolidated statement of income for the gealed December 31, 2011.

RNS Credit Facility Repayment

In connection with the Distribution, RNS repaid amts then outstanding under its RNS credit facaityjune 30, 2011 of $412,500 un
its term A loan facility and $300,000 under itsakaing credit facility which aggregated $713,784cluding accrued and unpaid interest and
fees to the repayment date of June 30, 2011. Tihep@ny used proceeds from borrowings under the Credility to fund the repayment. The
related unamortized deferred financing costs aggieg approximately $2,062 were written off andoreled in write-off of deferred financing
costs in the consolidated statement of incomehferyear ended December 31, 2011.
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RMH Promissory Note

At December 31, 2009, RMH had a $190,000 intercampeyable to Madison Square Garden, L.P., a siglpgidf MSG, an affiliate of
Cablevision, in the form of a non-interest beaiglyance. On January 28, 2010, in connection walspin-off of MSG from Cablevision, the
intercompany advance was replaced with a promissoty having a principal amount of $190,000, aar&st rate of 3.25% and a maturity ¢
of June 30, 2010. In March 2010, the $190,000 d¢lrtedness was repaid, including $914 of intermstu@d from January 28, 2010 through
date of repayment, which was funded by a capitatrdmution from Cablevision.

Contractual Obligations and Off Balance Sheet Comntinents
Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2r#lsummarized in the following table:

Years Years More than
Year 1 2-3 4-5 5 years Total
Off balance sheet arrangemet
Purchase obligations(; $147,22¢ $ 4584. $ 151¢ $ 615 $ 195,19¢
Operating lease obligations( 14,44¢ 30,98( 31,43« 21,86: 98,72¢
Guarantee® 49,48¢ 158 — — 49,63¢
211,16¢ 76,974 32,95( 22,47¢ 343,56¢
Contractual obligations reflected on the balanaet!
Debt obligations(4 105,20¢ 362,19¢ 618,00: 2,007,52 3,092,93.
Program rights obligatior 146,33¢ 267,58¢ 173,99( 31,11 619,02¢
Capital lease obligations( 2,79¢ 5,592 5,592 9,00¢ 22,98¢
Contract obligations(€ 2,65 383 143 — 3,18:
257,00: 635, 76( 797,72 2,047,641 3,738,13.
Total $468,16¢ $712,73: $830,67° $2,070,12.  $4,081,69

(1) Purchase obligation amounts not reflected on themloa sheet consist primarily of Ic-term program rights obligations that have not
met the criteria to be recorded in the balancets

(2) Operating lease commitments represent future mimimpayment obligations on various l-term, noncancelable leases for office sf
and office equipmen

(3) Consists primarily of a guarantee of payments pooauction service company for certain productielated costs

(4) Includes future payments of principal and inteckst on the Compa’'s credit facility debt and senior notes. Interestariable rate det
is calculated based on the prevailing interestaatef December 31, 201

(5) Reflects the principal amount of capital leasegdtions, including interes

(6) Represents primarily lo-term carriage fees payable to distributors andtexi@il annual required payments relating to theuaitipns of
film website businesses in 2008 and 2(

The contractual obligations table above does ritide any liabilities for uncertain income tax pgimsis due to the fact that we are une
to reasonably predict the ultimate amount or tindhgettlement of our liabilities for uncertain ore tax positions. At December 31, 2011, the
liability for uncertain tax positions was $10,4@xcluding the related accrued interest liability$8f216 and deferred tax assets of $4,484. See
Note 12 to the accompanying consolidated finarate@lements for further discussion of the Com['s income taxes.

DISH Network was issued a 20% interest in VOOM Hizz Company’s subsidiary operating VOOM, and tt@@banterest will not be
diluted until $500,000 in cash has been invested®®M HD by the Company. On the fifth or eighth amemsary of the effective date of the
investment agreement, the termination of the affon
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agreement by DISH Network, or other specified esebtSH Network has a put right to require a whallyned subsidiary of RMH to
purchase all of its equity interests in VOOM HIXait value. On the seventh or tenth anniversarhefeffective date of the investment
agreement, or the second anniversary date of thertation of the affiliation agreement by DISH Neik, a wholly-owned subsidiary of RMH
has a call right to purchase all of DISH Networ&ignership in VOOM HD at fair value. The table abala®s not include any future payments
that would be required upon the exercise of thisrigit, if any. See “Business—Legal Proceedings-SiBNetwork Contract Dispute.”

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In preparing our financial statements, we are meguio make certain estimates, judgments and agamaphat affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date efittancial statements and the reported amounsvehues and expenses during the periods
presented. These judgments can be subjective anplew and, consequently, actual results could diffaterially from those estimates and
assumptions. We base our estimates on historip@reence and various other assumptions believee reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis for making jondgnts about the carrying values of assets andifiabithat are not readily apparent from
other sources. As with any set of assumptions atithates, there is a range of reasonably likelywant®that may be reported.

The following critical accounting policies have bddentified as those that affect the more sigaifiudgments and estimates used ir
preparation of the consolidated financial stateistent

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Asset

Our long-lived and indefinite-lived assets at Deben31, 2011 include property and equipment, n&68,814, amortizable intangible
assets, net of $285,773, identifiable indefiniteedl intangible assets of $19,900 and goodwill &,$83. These assets accounted for
approximately 21% of our consolidated total asastef December 31, 2011.

We review long-lived assets (property and equipnagtintangible assets subject to amortizationahade from acquisitions) for
impairment whenever events or circumstances inglitett the carrying amount of an asset may notbaverable. If the sum of the expected
cash flows, undiscounted and without interestess ithan the carrying amount of the asset, an impat loss is recognized as the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceedsiityalue.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets,igthrepresent Sundance Channel trademarks of $1,9696 tested annually for
impairment during the first quarter (“annual impaént test date”) and upon the occurrence of ceetamts or substantive changes in
circumstances.

We are required to determine goodwill impairmernhgs two-step process. The first step of the galbiwpairment test is used to
identify potential impairment by comparing the fe@lue of a reporting unit with its carrying amountcluding goodwill utilizing an enterprise-
value based premise approach. If the carrying amafus reporting unit exceeds its fair value, theand step of the goodwill impairment tes
performed to measure the amount of goodwill impaintrioss, if any. The second step of the goodwipairment test compares the implied
value of the reporting unit's goodwill with the cgng amount of that goodwill. If the carrying ammwf the reporting unit’'s goodwill exceeds
the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impaient loss is recognized in an amount equal to thegss. The implied fair value of goodwill is
determined in the same manner as the amount ofwgthdidat would be recognized in a business comtiama For the purpose of evaluating
goodwill impairment at the annual impairment testtedd we had five reporting units, which recognigeddwill. These reporting units are AV
WE tv, IFC and Sundance Channel, which are includele National Networks reportable segment andCANEtworks Broadcasting &
Technology, which is included in the Internatioaatl Other reportable segment.
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The goodwill balance as of December 31, 2011 bgnteym unit is as follows:

Reporting Unit

AMC $34,25!
WE tv 5,214
IFC 13,58:
Sundance Chann 28,93(
AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technoloi 1,19¢

$83,17:

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill andeotlong-lived assets, we must make assumptionsdigggestimated future cash flows
and other factors to determine the fair value efréspective assets. These estimates and assusngbiald have a significant impact on whe
an impairment charge is recognized and also thenituale of any such charge. Fair value estimatesnaide at a specific point in time, based
on relevant information. These estimates are stibbgen nature and involve uncertainties and mattdrsignificant judgments and therefore
cannot be determined with precision. Changes inmapons could significantly affect the estimatéstimates of fair value are primarily
determined using discounted cash flows and comjemaérket transactions. These valuations are basedtimates and assumptions incluc
projected future cash flows, discount rate andrdgteation of appropriate market comparables andrdghation of whether a premium or
discount should be applied to comparables. Thelsatians also include assumptions for the projeatemhber of subscribers and the projected
average rates per basic and viewing subscribergavah in fixed price contractual arrangementsusedetermine affiliation fee revenue,
access to program rights and the cost of such anogights, amount of programming time that is atiser supported, number of advertising
spots available and the sell through rates foratspots, average fee per advertising spot and tipgraargins, among other assumptions. If
these estimates or material related assumptiormgyehia the future, we may be required to recordaiimmpent charges related to our long-lived
assets.

Based on our annual impairment test during thé diusirter of 2011, our reporting units had sigmifitsafety margins, representing the
excess of the estimated fair value of each repprtimit over its respective carrying value (inclugligoodwill allocated to each respective
reporting unit). In order to evaluate the sendiiwf the estimated fair value calculations of ceporting units on the annual impairment
calculation for goodwill, we applied a hypotheti@8% decrease to the estimated fair values of esgmdrting unit. This hypothetical decrease
would have no impact on the goodwill impairmentlgsia for any of our reporting units.

The impairment test for identifiable indefinitedig intangible assets consists of a comparisoneoéstimated fair value of the intangible
asset with its carrying value. If the carrying \alf the indefinite-lived intangible asset exceiesl§air value, an impairment loss is recognized
in an amount equal to that excess.

Our indefinite-lived trademark intangible assetateeto Sundance Channel trademarks, which weresdalsing a relief-from-royalty
method in which the expected benefits are valuedifigyounting estimated royalty revenue over pre@cevenues covered by the trademarks.
The Sundance Channel related trademarks were etardune 2008 when the transactions were contpleéd resulted in the 100%
acquisition of Sundance Channel L.L.C. Significaagments inherent in a valuation include the dedacf appropriate discount and royalty
rates, estimating the amount and timing of estich&déure cash flows and identification of approtgiaontinuing growth rate assumptions. The
discount rates used in the analysis are intendeeflect the risk inherent in the projected futaesh flows generated by the respective
intangible assets.

Based on our annual impairment test during theé diusirter of 2011, the Sundance Channel relatelétnarks identifiable indefinite-lived
intangible assets had significant safety margiegrasenting the excess of the identifiable indefitived intangible assets estimated fair value
over their respective carrying values. In ordegvaluate the sensitivity of the fair value calcialas of our identifiable indefinite-lived
intangible assets,
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we applied a hypothetical 30% decrease to the atiirfair value of the identifiable indefinite-ldéntangible assets. This hypothetical
decrease in estimated fair value would have resiutten impairment charge of approximately $400.

Useful Lives of Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

We have recognized intangible assets for affilimtigreements and affiliate relationships, advertisiationships and other intangible
assets as a result of our accounting for businepsisitions. We have determined that such intaegisisets have finite lives. The estimated
useful lives and net carrying values of these igitale assets at December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Net Carrying

Value at Estimated
December 31 Useful Lives

2011 in Years
Affiliation agreements and affiliate relationshi $ 273,96 4 to 2¢
Advertiser relationship 11,557 3to 1(
Other intangible asse 253 4 to 1(

The useful lives for the affiliation agreements affiliate relationships were determined based ugnmanalysis of the weighted average
remaining terms of existing agreements we hadaoeivith our major customers at the time that pasetaccounting was applied, plus an
estimate for renewals of such agreements. We heae successful in renewing our major affiliatiomesgnents and maintaining customer
relationships in the past and believe we will bkeab renew our major affiliation agreements andntan those customer relationships in the
future. However, it is possible that we will notsassfully renew such agreements as they expiteabif we do, the net revenue earned may
not equal or exceed the net revenue currently besnged, which could have a significant adverseachpn our business.

There have been periods when an existing affiliatigreement has expired and the parties havenadizid negotiations of either a
renewal of that agreement or a new agreement fetatingperiods of time. In substantially all thesstances, the affiliates continued to carry
pay for the service under oral or written interigregements until execution of definitive replacemagrteements or renewals. If an affiliate w
to cease carrying a service on an other than teampbasis, we would record an impairment chargeHferthen remaining carrying value of t
affiliation agreement intangible asset. If we wereenew an affiliation agreement at rates thatipced materially less net revenue compart
the net revenue produced under the previous agréeme would evaluate the impact on our cash flamg, if necessary, would further
evaluate such indication of potential impairmenfdfjowing the policy described above under “Impaént of Long-Lived and Indefiniteived
Assets” for the asset group containing that inthlegasset. We also would evaluate whether the réntauseful life of the affiliate relationship
intangible asset remained appropriate. Based oerbeer 31, 2011 carrying values, if the estimatedaiaing life of all affiliation agreements
and affiliate relationships were shortened by 189 ,effect on amortization for the year ending Deloer 31, 2012 would be to increase our
annual amortization expense by approximately $4,726

Program Rights

Rights to programming, including feature films aqisodic series, acquired under license agreeraeatstated at the lower of amortized
cost or net realizable value. Such licensed righiag with the related obligations are recordetthatcontract value when a license agreement is
executed, unless there is uncertainty with resjpeeither cost, acceptability or availability. lfch uncertainty exists, those rights and
obligations are recorded at the earlier of wherutleertainty is resolved or when the license pebiegins. Costs are amortized
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to technical and operating expense on a straigbtbiasis over a period not to exceed the respdatamrse periods.

Our owned original programming is primarily prodddsy independent production companies, with theaiader produced by us. Own
original programming costs, including estimatediparation and residual costs, qualifying for capi#ation as program rights are amortized to
technical and operating expense over their estunadeful lives, commencing upon the first airingséd on attributable revenue for airings to
date as a percentage of total projected attribetaenue, or ultimate revenue (film-forecast-cotapon method). Projected program usage is
based on the historical performance of similar enttEstimated attributable revenue can changelhgsen programming market acceptance,
levels of affiliation fee revenue and advertisiegenue and program usage. Accordingly, we peritidiceview revenue estimates and planned
usage and revise our assumptions if necessaryhwbigld impact the timing of amortization expenseesult in a write-down to net realizable
value.

We periodically review the programming usefulnesswr licensed and owned original program rightsdzhon a series of factors,
including ratings, type and quality of program nmetle standards and practices and fitness for étiib If it is determined that film or other
program rights have no future programming usefidnasvrite-off of the unamortized cost is recordetechnical and operating expense.
Program rights write-offs of $18,332, $1,122 andr$8 were recorded for the years ended Decemb&0d1l,, 2010 and 2009.

Income Taxes

Judgment is required in determining the provisimnificome taxes and related accruals, deferredgsgts and liabilities. Consequently,
changes in our estimates with regard to uncergdpositions and the realization of deferred tasetswill impact our results of operations and
financial position. Deferred tax assets are evetliguarterly for expected future realization arduceed by a valuation allowance to the extent
management believes it is more likely than not ghportion will not be realized. At December 31120we had a valuation allowance of
$8,781 for certain local income tax credit carrgwfards.

Recently Issued But Not Yet Adopted Accounting Pooncements

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stadel&oard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdaASU”) No. 2011-08,
Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testi@godwill for Impairment (ASU 2011-08), to allowtéres to use a qualitative approach
to test goodwill for impairment. ASU 2011-08 persnéin entity to first perform a qualitative assessn@ determine whether it is more likely
than not that the fair value of a reporting uniteiss than its carrying value. If it is conclud&dttthis is the case, it is hecessary to perfoem th
currently prescribed two-step goodwill impairmegstt Otherwise, the two-step goodwill impairmest e not required. ASU 2011-08 is
effective for us on January 1, 2012 and earliep#do is permitted. We will evaluate performing @atjtative assessment in 2012.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Getgnsive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Cem@nsive Income. The
provisions of ASU 2011-05 provide that an entitgttteports items of other comprehensive incometmasption to present comprehensive
income as (i) a single statement that presentsdhgonents of net income and total net incomegtmeponents of other comprehensive
income and total other comprehensive income awtehfor comprehensive income or (ii) in a two-staent approach, whereby an entity must
present the components of net income and totdhnetne in the first statement and that statemeimisediately followed by a financial
statement that presents the components of othepradransive income, a total for other compreherisiseme and a total for comprehensive
income. The option in current GAAP that permits pinesentation of other comprehensive income irstatement of stockholders’ equity has
been eliminated. ASU 2011-05 is to be applied sgteatively and early adoption is permitted. In Deber 2011, the FASB issued ASU
No. 201:-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendmetatshe Presentation of
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Reclassification of Items Out of Accumulated OtB@mprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update2011-05 (ASU 2011-12).

ASU 2011-12 defers the requirement in ASU 2011eé0present reclassification adjustments for eachpamant of accumulated other
comprehensive income (“AOCI") in both other comprebive income and net income on the face of thenfiral statements and the
presentation of reclassification adjustments israqtired in interim periods. We expect to contit@resent amounts reclassified out of A(

on the face of the financial statements or discthese amounts in the notes to the financial statésn The effective dates of ASU 2011-12 are
consistent with the effective dates of ASU 2@Bl-which is effective for us on January 1, 2012 Néve not yet determined which presentz:
method we will adopt.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Kailue Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achi@emmon Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in GAAPIBR&s (ASU 2011-04). ASU 2011-04 provides amendmenTopic 820 that change
the wording used to describe many of the requiresni@nGAAP for measuring fair value and for disétasinformation about fair value
measurements. ASU 2011-04 is to be applied prosedcand is effective for us on January 1, 2012.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk.
Fair Value of Debt

Based on the level of interest rates prevailinBetember 31, 2011, the fair value of our fixed bt of $761,250 was more than its
carrying value of $686,434 by $74,816. The faiueabf these financial instruments is estimated dhasereference to quoted market prices for
these or comparable securities. A hypotheticalld@¥)s point decrease in interest rates prevailiri@eaember 31, 2011 would increase the
estimated fair value of our fixed rate debt by appnately $35,400 to approximately $796,700.

Managing our Interest Rate Risk

To manage interest rate risk, we enter into inter@s swap contracts from time to time to adjbhstamount of total debt that is subject to
variable interest rates. Such contracts effectifizlyhe borrowing rates on floating rate debtitoit the exposure against the risk of rising ra
We do not enter into interest rate swap contramtseculative or trading purposes and we onlyrénte interest rate swap contracts with
financial institutions that we believe are creditthy counterparties. We monitor the financial ingtons that are counterparties to our interest
rate swap contracts and to the extent possiblesifyeour swap contracts among various counterpaitth mitigate exposure to any single
financial institution.

As of December 31, 2011, we have $2,291,280 of detstanding (excluding capital leases), of whitt6$4,846 outstanding under our
Credit Facility is subject to variable interestesmtA hypothetical 100 basis point increase inr@gterates prevailing at December 31, 2011 ¢
increase our annual interest expense approxim$fedy000.

As of December 31, 2011, we have interest rate wafracts outstanding with notional amounts agafiag $935,000, which includes
swap contracts with notional amounts aggregatir@¥00 that are effective beginning July 2012. aggregate fair values of interest rate
swap contracts at December 31, 2011 was a lialoifi§y19,091 (included in other liabilities). Acculated other comprehensive loss consists of
$12,027 of cumulative unrealized losses, net afdaxthe floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps.ay®sult of these transactions, the interest rate
paid on approximately 62% of our debt (excludinpita leases) as of December 31, 2011 is effegtifieéd (30% being fixed rate obligations
and 32% effectively fixed through utilization ofetbe interest rate swap contracts). At Decembe2(@l1, our interest rate cash flow hedges
were highly effective, in all material respects.
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ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Date

The Financial Statements required by this Item@eap beginning on page 72 of this Annual Repod, ae incorporated by reference
herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried out under the supervisioth with the participation of the Company’s mamaget, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, bteffectiveness of the design and operation oflaalosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeB#wurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Bagend that evaluation as of
December 31, 2011, the Company’s Chief Executiic@fand Chief Financial Officer concluded that bompany’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(&) Managemer's annual report on internal control over finanoggdorting.
This annual report does not include a report of agament’s assessment regarding internal contrelfmancial reporting or an

attestation report of the Company’s registered ipudgcounting firm due to a transition period ebtlled by rules of the SEC for newly public
companies.

(b) Attestation report of the registered public accounfirm.

See Item 9A.(a) above.
(c) Changes in internal control over financial repagti

See Item 9A.(a) above.

Iltem 9B.  Other Information.

At the request of the CompaisyCompensation Committee, on March 13, 2012, theg@msation Committee of the Board of Director
Cablevision amended the three year performancedmthat were granted in 2010 to certain employéédvtC Networks including Messrs.
Joshua Sapan, our President and Chief ExecutiveedfEdward Carroll, our Chief Operating OfficBean Sullivan, our Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, and Jamda@Giger, our Executive Vice President and GenemlrBel. As amended, these awards have
performance objectives that are based upon thenpeshce of AMC Networks rather than the performasfo€ablevision. The form of
amended award agreement is filed as Exhibit 10n82isiincorporated herein by reference in its etirThe three year performance award that
was granted in 2010 to Mr. Charles Dolan, our ExgeuChairman, was not amended.
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Part Ill

Iltem 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

Information relating to our directors, executivéiadrs and corporate governance will be includedundefinitive Proxy Statement for
our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which i filed within 120 days of the year ended Decantie 2011 (the “2012 Proxy
Statement”), which is incorporated herein by refese

ltem 11. Executive Compensation
Information relating to executive compensation wél included in the 2012 Proxy Statement, whidhdsrporated herein by reference.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Information relating to the beneficial ownershipoair common stock will be included in the 2012 Br&tatement, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.

Information relating to certain relationships aethted transactions and director independencebwiihcluded in the 2012 Proxy
Statement, which is incorporated herein by refezenc

Iltem 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information relating to principal accounting feeslaervices will be included in the 2012 Proxy &tagnt, which is incorporated herein
by reference.
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Part IV

ltem 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of the Form 10-K:

The following items are filed as part of this Anh&eport:
(1) The financial statements as indicated in the ireXorth on page 7
(2) Financial statement schedu

Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules other than that listed above have bedtedirsince they are either not applicable, nquieed or the information is included
elsewhere herein.

(3) Exhibits:
The exhibits listed in the accompanying Exhibitdrdare filed or incorporated by reference as plttiie Annual Report.
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Exhibit

Numbel
2.1
3.1(i)
3.1(ii)

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description of Exhibi

Distribution Agreement between Cablevision Syst€ugooration and AMC Networks Inc. (incorporatedrbference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Compar's Amendment No. 6 to Registration Statement on Fdrfiled on June 10, 2011

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioAMC Networks Inc. (incorporated by reference tchibit 99.4 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on July 1, 2011)

Amended and Restated -Laws of AMC Networks Inc. (incorporated by refererto Exhibit 99.5 to the Compg’s Curren
Report on Form -K filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Registration Rights Agreement between AM&works Inc. and The Charles F. Dolan Children &
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to therpany’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statemerffam 10 filed on
June 6, 2011

Form of Registration Rights Agreement between AM&works Inc. and The Dolan Family Affiliates (inporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.6 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fifrfiled on June 6, 2011

Indenture dated as of June 30, 2011, by and am&mg Networks Inc., as Issuer, each of the guarargarty thereto an
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, retattnthe AMC Networks Inc. 7.75% Senior Notes duly 15, 2021
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to thmrpanys Current Report on Forn-K filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Transition Services Agreement between Gaditn Systems Corporation and AMC Networks Innc@rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of Tax Disaffiliation Agreement between Calidéan Systems Corporation and AMC Networks Incc@irporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of Employee Matters Agreement between CalitaviSystems Corporation and AMC Networks Inc. (ipavated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of Equity Administration Agreement between Thadison Square Garden Company and AMC Networks
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to tr@panys Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled or
June 6, 2011

Form of Standstill Agreement by and among AMC Netgdnc. and The Dolan Family Group (incorporatgddference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Compa’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled on June 6, 2011

AMC Networks Inc. 2011 Employee Stock Plan (incagted by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Comj's Amendmen
No. 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 filedone 6, 2011

AMC Networks Inc. 2011 Stock Plan for N-Employee Directors (incorporated by reference thikik10.7 to the
Compan’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fi@rfiled on June 6, 2011

AMC Networks Inc. 2011 Cash Incentive Plan (incogted by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Compa#iyteendment
No. 5 to Registration Statement on Form 10 filedone 6, 2011
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Exhibit

Numbel

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Description of Exhibi

Form of Time Sharing Agreement between Rainbow éthldings LLC and CSC Transport, Inc. (incorpodaty reference 1
Exhibit 10.9 to the Compa’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fdrfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of Time Sharing Agreement between Rainbow lsléthldings LLC and Dolan Family Office, LLC (incamated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fii@rfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of Aircraft Dry Lease Agreement between Raimiddedia Holdings LLC and New York Aircam Corp. (orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fiidrfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of Aircraft Management Agreement between RanMedia Holdings LLC and CSC Transport, Inc. (ipmrated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fii@rfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of Employment Agreement by and between AMOaeks Inc. and Charles F. Dolan (incorporated bgremce to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Compa’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of Employment Agreement by and between AMOaeks Inc. and Joshua W. Sapan (incorporated lgreate tc
Exhibit 10.14 to the Compa’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled on June 6, 2011

Employment Agreement by and between Rainbow Medtiaffrises, Inc. and Edward A. Carroll (incorpodaly reference t
Exhibit 10.15 to the Compa’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fi@rfiled on June 6, 2011

Employment Offer Letter from Cablevision Systemspg@wation to Sean S. Sullivan (incorporated byneziee to Exhibit 10.16
to the Compar’'s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of AMC Networks Inc. Option Agreement in respef Cablevision Options granted on and prior tovdmber 8, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to@wmpany’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Staternarfform 10 filed on
June 6, 2011

Form of AMC Networks Inc. Rights Agreement (incorgied by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Com|'s Amendment No.
to Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on J&yr2011).

Form of AMC Networks Inc. Option Agreement in respef Vested Cablevision Options granted on Jur086 and October
19, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2ad the Company’s Amendment No. 5 to Registratatement on Form 10
filed on June 6, 2011

Form of AMC Networks Inc. Option Agreement in respef Cablevision Options granted on January 2092Mcorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fi@rfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of AMC Networks Inc. Option Agreement in respef Cablevision Options granted on March 5, 2(88orporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Comp’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fidrfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of AMC Networks Inc. Non-Employee Director AmlaAgreement (incorporated by reference to ExHiBiR2 to the
Compan’s Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fii@rfiled on June 6, 2011

Form of AMC Networks Inc. Restricted Shares Agreet{scorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23He Company’s
Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fddrfildd on June 6, 2011

Form of AMC Networks Inc. Performance Award Agreemg@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24he Compan’s
Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fddrfildd on June 6, 2011
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Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibi

10.25 Form of Letter Agreement from CSC Holdings, LLCAMC Networks Inc. regarding VOOM Litigation (incorpated
by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Adraent No. 5 to Registration Statement on Form I&@ fon June 6,
2011).

10.26 Form of Termination Agreement among CSC Holdinds<C] American Movie Classics Company LLC and WE:

Women'’s Entertainment LLC (incorporated by refereta Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s Amendment Nt 5
Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on Jur0@,1).

10.27 Credit Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2011, arAdM@ Networks Inc., as the borrower, certain sulzgidis of AMC
Networks Inc., as restricted subsidiaries, J.P.ddorChase Bank, National Association, as admitiggragent
collateral agent and letter of credit issuer, MBrgan Securities LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Feng@eSmith
Incorporated, as joint lead arrangers and joinkbaaners, BNP Paribas, CitiCorp North America, laed The Bank of
Nova Scotia as joint bookrunners an-documentation agents, Bank of America, N.A., agifyation agent and the
lenders parties thereto (incorporated by referémdexhibit 99.3 to the Company’s Current Reportramm 8-K filed on

July 1, 2011)

10.28 Form of AMC Networks Inc. Nc-Employee Director Agreement (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 10.1 to th
Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20

10.29 Form of Executive Officer Restricted Shares Agreenfimcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te @ompany’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

10.30 Form of Performance Award Agreement under the ZD44h Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencextutiit 99.1
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 6, 2012]

10.31 Form of Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement urttle 2011 Employee Stock Plan (incorporated bgresfce to
Exhibit 99.2 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 6, 2012

10.32 Form of Cablevision Amended and Restated Perform&weard Agreemer

12 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg:

21 Subsidiaries of the Registra

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamt $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chlghancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of tlaefne-Oxley Act
of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 13t

**101.INS XBRL Instance Documen

**101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documg

**101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntn

**101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas

**101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documt

**101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenit

**  Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, thaderliactive data files are deemed not filed or phd registration statement or prospectus
for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securfietsof 1933, are deemed not filed for purposeseaftion 18 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, and otherwise are not subject to ligbinder those section
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causeddiport to be signed on their behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

AMC Networks Inc.

Date: March 15, 201 By: /s/ Sean S. Sulliva
Sean S. Sulliva
Executive Vice President and Ch
Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personost signature appears below constitutes and agptmshua W. Sapan
and Sean S. Sullivan, and each of them, his trddeamful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with fulMper of substitution and resubstitution, for
him in his name, place and stead, in any and ptciies, to sign this report, and file the sami¢h all exhibits thereto, and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities and ExggaCommission, granting unto said attorneys-itdacd agents, full power and authority to
do and perform each and every act and thing requasid necessary to be done as fully to all intentspurposes as he might or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all thatlsatorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them taagfully do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and oré#tes indicated.

Name Title Date
/sl Joshua W. Sapi President and Chief Executive Officer (Princi March 15, 201:
Joshua W. Sape Executive Officer)
/s/ Sean S. Sulliva Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi March 15, 201:
Sean S. Sulliva (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ John P. Girald Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accountir March 15, 201:
John P. Giraldt Officer)
/s/ Charles F. Dolan Chairman of the Board of Directors March 15, 2012
Charles F. Dolal
/s/ Neil Ashe Director March 15, 2012
Neil Ashe
/s/ William J. Bell Director March 15, 2012
William J. Bell
/s/ James L. Dolan Director March 15, 2012
James L. Dolal
/s/ Kristin A. Dolan Director March 15, 2012

Kristin A. Dolan
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Name

/s/ Marianne Dolan Weber

Marianne Dolan Webe

/s/ Patrick F. Dolan

Patrick F. Dolar

/s/ Thomas C. Dolan

Thomas C. Dolai

/s/ Alan D. Schwart;

Alan D. Schwart:

/s/ Brian G. Sweene

Brian G. Sweene

/s/ Leonard Tov

Leonard Tow

/s/ Robert Wrigh

Robert Wright

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 15, 2012

March 15, 2012

March 15, 2012

March 15, 201:

March 15, 201:

March 15, 201:

March 15, 201:
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements as of December, 3011 and 2010 and for the years ended December, 2011, 2010 and 20(
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&td 201(

Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearsaéicember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2

Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ (Deficiency) Equity for the years ended Decembey 2811, 2010 and 20(

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Schedule —Valuation and Qualifying Accoun
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
AMC Networks Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of AMC Networks Inc. and subsidiaries @Gompany) as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related cdiasetl statements of income, stockholders’ (defayigequity and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthe2®.1. In connection with our audits of the cditsted financial statements, we also have
audited the related consolidated financial staté¢raeimedule as listed in the index to Item 15. Toesesolidated financial statements and
consolidated financial statement schedule aregsgansibility of the Company’s management. Ouragesibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements and cafeeli financial statement schedule based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tlasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disi#s in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and mignifestimates made by management, as well agaia] the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the consolidated financial
position of AMC Networks Inc. and subsidiaries &®ecember 31, 2011 and 2010, and the resultsedf dperations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period endegber 31, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generaltgepted accounting principles. Also, in
our opinion, the related consolidated financiatesteent schedule referred to above, when considenedation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty,fai all material respects, the information &eth therein.

/sl KPMG LLP

New York, New York
March 15, 2012
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, trade (less allowance for tfallaccounts of $3,092 and $8,3:
Amounts due from related parties, |
Program rights, ne
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Deferred tax asset, n
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Program rights, ne
Amounts due from related parties, |
Note receivable from related pa
Deferred tax asset, n
Deferred carriage fees, r
Amortizable intangible assets,
Indefinite-lived intangible asse:
Goodwill
Other asset
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amatitn of $2,490 and $16,3:
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ (DEFICIENCY) EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities:
Interest
Employee related cos
Deferred carriage fees payal
Other accrued expens
Amounts due to related parties,
Program rights obligatior
Deferred revenu
Credit facility debt
Capital lease obligatior
Total current liabilities
Program rights obligatior
Senior note!
Senior subordinated not
Credit facility debt
Capital lease obligatior
Deferred tax liability, ne
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder’ (deficiency) equity
Class A Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 360,000sb@0es authorized, 58,628,764 shares issued a#845804 shares outstandi
Class B Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 90,000,88fes authorized, 13,534,408 shares issued an@ioditsy
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 45,000,000 staré®rized; none issur
Paic-in capital
Accumulated defici
Treasury stock, at cost (194,060 shares Class An@onStock]
Accumulated other comprehensive I

Total stockholder’ (deficiency) equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ (deficiency) equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigstents.
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2011 2010
$ 21583 $ 79,96(
286,81 242 69
5,54( 6,84(
235,17 186,47
67,37( 42,95(
59,27: 7,51¢
869,99¢ 566,44(
63,81 68,97
765,60¢ 597,35t
3,21¢ 3,50:

= 16,83:

— 41,25(
47,30¢ 69,34:
285,77 364,88:
19,90( 19,90(
83,17: 83,17:
20,72¢ 15,04
24,42( 7,19¢
$2,18393  $1,853,89
$ 61608 $ 4645
31,25¢ 20,04¢
57,16( 44,57¢
1,213 2,21¢
10,16¢ 23,88¢
5,33¢ 10,67¢
146,33 116,19(
23,85: 17,85¢
5,95( 50,00(
1,31¢ 4,57t
344,19¢ 336,49;
472,69( 338,63
686,43 299,55;
— 324,07
1,598,891 425,00(
14,36 15,67
51,90¢ =
52,44t 89,63¢
3,220,92! 1,829,06!
58€ —

138 —

5,947 181,72
(1,029,95) (156,89))
(1,677 —
(12,02) —
(1,036,99) 24,83:
$2,183,93  $1,853,89
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2011 2010 2009

Revenues, net (including revenues, net from relpgeties of $31,885, $29,203 and $31,7
respectively’ $1,187,74. $1,078,30! $973,64:
Operating expense
Technical and operating (excluding depreciation amertization shown below and
including charges (credits) from related partie$5040, $3,971 and $(2,043),

respectively, 425,96: 366,09: 310,36!
Selling, general and administrative (including desr from related parties of $57,004,
$100,230 and $87,239, respective 335,65t 328,13« 313,90
Restructuring (credit) expen (240) (2,21%) 5,162
Depreciation and amortizatic 99,84¢ 106,45! 106,50
861,22! 798,46 735,93!
Operating incomi 326,51¢ 279,83t 237,70¢
Other income (expense
Interest expens (95,870 (75,800 (79,779
Interest incomt 1,074 2,38¢ 83¢
Write-off of deferred financing cos (6,247 — —
Loss on extinguishment of de (14,726 — —
Miscellaneous, ne (137) (162) 187
(115,900 (73,579 (78,759
Income from continuing operations before incomess 210,61( 206,26: 158,95
Income tax expens (84,249 (88,079) (70,407
Income from continuing operatiol 126,36: 118,18t 88,541
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, néhodme taxe: 92 (38,090 (34,79)
Net income $ 126,45: $ 80,09¢ $ 53,75¢

Basic net income (loss) per she

Income from continuing operatiol $ 1.82 $ 1.71 $ 1.2¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ — $ (0.55) $ (0.50)
Net income $ 1.8t $ 1.1¢€ $ 0.7¢
Diluted net income (loss) per sha

Income from continuing operatiol $ 1.7¢ $ 1.71 $ 1.2¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatis $ — $ (059 $ (0.50
Net income $ 1.7¢ $ 1.1¢€ $ 0.7¢
Weighted average common shal

Basic weighted average common shg 69,28 69,16: 69,16:
Diluted weighted average common she 70,73! 69,16: 69,16:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIENC Y) EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Balance, January 1, 20!

Net Income

Cash capital contributions from Cablevisi
Cash capital distributions to Cablevisi

Non-cash capital distribution related to the

utilization of Company tax losses by
Cablevision

AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars in thousands)

Accumulated

Non-cash capital contribution related to the

allocation of Cablevision share-based
compensation expen:
Other norcash capital distributions, n
Balance, December 31, 20
Net Income
Cash capital contributions from Cablevisi
Cash capital distributions to Cablevisi
Non-cash capital contribution related to
utilization of Cablevision tax lossi

Distribution of net assets to Cablevision (see I

5)

Non-cash capital contribution related to the

allocation of Cablevision share-based
compensation expen
Other nor-cash capital distributions, n
Balance, December 31, 20
Net income
Other comprehensive loss (see Note
Comprehensive incorn
Cash capital contributions from Cablevisi
Cash capital distributions to Cablevisi

Non-cash capital distribution to Cablevision
related to employee benefit plans as a result of

the Distribution (see Note .

Non-cash capital distribution associated with th

issuance of debt to Cablevision (see Not — —

Non-cash capital contribution, net related to

adjustments to liability for uncertain tax

positions and net deferred tax assets as a result

of the Distribution (see Note 1

Non-cash capital contribution related to the
utilization of Cablevision tax losses (see Not

12)

Non-cash capital distribution related to tax cre:

utilized by Cablevision (see Note 1

Non-cash capital distribution of promissory note

receivable to Cablevision (see Note

Non-cash capital contribution related to the

allocation of Cablevision share-based
compensation expen

Reclassification of common stock in connectior

with the Distribution

Shar-based compensation expense subsequ

the Distribution
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Treasury stock acquired from forfeitures ¢

Class A Class B Other
Common Common Treasury Comprehensive
Paid-in Accumulated
Stock Stock Capital Deficit Stock Loss Total
$ — $ — $ — $(27850) $ — $ — $ (278,50)
— — — 53,75¢ — — 53,75¢
— — 682 — — — 682
— — (10,129 — — — (10,129
— — (7,820) (12,246 — — (20,066
— — 17,59¢ — — — 17,59¢
— — (336) — — — (336)
— — — (236,997 — — (236,99))
— — — 80,09¢ — — 80,09¢
— — 204,01¢ — — — 204,01¢
— — (53,759 — — — (53,759
— — 52,82« — — — 52,82«
- - (41,279 - - - (41,279
— — 20,55¢ — — — 20,55¢
- - (650) - - - (650)
— — 181,72 (156,89) — — 24,83
— — — 126,45: — — 126,45
— — — — — (12,027 (12,02))
114,42°
— — 20,81 — — — 20,81
— — (20,819 — — — (20,819
— — (6,317 — — — (6,31%)
(250,48 (999,519 - - (1,250,001
— — 44,59¢ — — — 44,59¢
— — 36,867 — — — 36,867
— — (2,586 — — — (2,586)
— — (17,119 — — — (17,119
_ — 8,34: — — — 8,34:
57€ 13E (713 - - - -
— — 7,66¢ — — — 7,66¢
8 — 3,61 — — — 3,62



acquisition of restricted shares (see Note — — — — (1,677) — (1,677)
Other nol-cash capital contributions, r — — 337 — — — 337

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 586 $ 135 $ 5094: $(1,029,95) $(1.67) $ (12,027 $(1,036,99)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigstents.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Income from continuing operatiol
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing rgpiens to net cash provided by operat
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Non-cash restructuring (credit) exper
Shar-based compensation expense related to equity fadaisaivards
Amortization and writ-off of program right:
Amortization of deferred carriage fe
Amortization and writ-off of deferred financing costs and discounts ateltednes
Loss on extinguishment of de
Provision for doubtful accoun
Deferred income taxe
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivable, trac
Amounts due from/to related parties,
Prepaid expenses and other as
Program rightt
Deferred carriage fee
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheriitiied
Program rights obligatior
Deferred carriage fees payal
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure
Payment for acquisition of a busine
Proceeds from sale of equipment, net of costsspfadial
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Capital contributions from Cablevisic
Capital distributions to Cablevisic
Repayment of credit facility de
Redemption of senior not
Redemption of senior subordinated notes, inclutémgler premium and fe:
Payments for financing cos
Proceeds from credit facility de
Purchase of treasury sto
Proceeds from stock option exerci:
Repayment of note payable to related p
Principal payments on capital lease obligati
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents fromraong operation:
Cash flows from discontinued operatio
Net cash used in operating activit
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Net cash used in financing activiti
Effect of change in cash related to net assetshlistd to Cablevisio
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisdient discontinued operatio
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

2011 2010 2009
$ 126,36: $118,18¢ $ 88,54
99,84¢  106,45: 106,50
(240) — 1,731
16,01 16,267 13,71¢
278,72t  219,85¢ 184,00
23,96 25,21 23,64¢
12,15¢ 3,77¢ 3,96:
14,72¢ — —
33¢ 1,48¢ 2,52¢
69,16( 80,74 61,97
(44,750  (36,42) (27,64
(9,607) 5,04¢ 4,001
(30,930) 17,38¢ (4,220)
(495,879  (321,08)  (222,11)
(1,929) (2,930) (58E)
34,53¢ 12,77: (1,007)
164,44( 19,33’ (27,840
(1,717 (102) (3,309)
25523, 265,99  204,00;
(15,37) (17,249 (13,419
(320) (320) (470)
— 40€ 72C
(15,69) (17,150 (13,169
20,81 204,01 682
(20,819 (53,759 (10,127
(877,97) (105,000 (120,000
(300,00() — —
(338,36 — —
(27,419 — —
1,442,36. — —
(1,677) — —
3,62z — —
— (190,00() —
(4,617) (4,080) (3,03¢)
(104,05 (148,810 (132,47,
135,48° 100,02 58,35¢
(35¢)  (30,87() (48,96
75C (10,189) (4,759
— (8,83) (291)
391 (49,890  (54,01)
79,96( 29,82t 25,48(
$ 21583t $ 79,96( $ 29,82

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Basis of Preseniah
Nature of Operations

AMC Networks Inc. (“AMC Networks”) and collectivelyith its subsidiaries (the “Company”) own and agerentertainment businesses
and assets. On June 30, 2011, Cablevision Systenp®@tion (Cablevision Systems Corporation andutssidiaries are referred to as
“Cablevision”) spun off the Company (the “Distribt”) and the Company became an independent pabligpany. The Company has two
reportable segments:

» National NetworksIncludes four nationally distributed programmindwerks: AMC, WE tv, IFC and Sundance Channel. These
programming networks are distributed throughoutUhé&ed States (“U.S.”) via cable and other muléichel video programming
distribution platforms, including direct broadcaatellite (“DBS”) and platforms operated by telecoumications providers (we
refer collectively to these cable and other muliiwhel video programming distributors as “multichelinrideo programming
distributor” or “distributor¢); and

» International and OtherPrincipally includes AMC/Sundance Channel Globat €ompany’s international programming business;
IFC Films, the Company’s independent film distribatbusiness; and AMC Networks Broadcasting & Tedbgy, the Company’s
network technical services business, which supgkeegices primarily to the programming networkshaf Company. AMC and
Sundance Channel are distributed in Canada andaBuadChannel and WE tv are distributed in othenti@s throughout Europe
and Asia. The International and Other reportabigrent also includes VOOM HD Holdings LLC (“VOOM HR'Wwhich the
Company is in the process of winding down, and Witiontinues to sell certain limited amounts of pamgming internationally
through program license agreeme

In connection with the Distribution, Cablevisionntdbuted all of the membership interests of Raimiddedia Holdings LLC (“RMH”)to
the Company. RMH owned, directly or indirectly, thesinesses included in Cablevision’s Rainbow Medigment. On June 30, 2011,
Cablevision effected the Distribution of all of AM@etworks’ outstanding common stock. In the Disttibn, each holder of Cablevision NY
Group (“CNYG”) Class A Common Stock of record omdu6, 2011 received one share of AMC Networkssda€ommon Stock for every
four shares of CNYG Class A Common Stock held enrdtord date, which resulted in the issuance pfagimately 57,813,000 shares of
Class A Common Stock. Each record holder of CNY&sEIB Common Stock received one share of AMC NéisvGiass B Common Stock
for every four shares of CNYG Class B Common Stoekl on the record date, which resulted in theaissa of approximately 13,534,000
shares of Class B Common Stock. Immediately pddhé Distribution, the Company was an indirect ifhowned subsidiary of Cablevision.
The Company became an independent public compadyrma 30, 2011, the date of the Distribution. Boéblevision and AMC Networks
continue to be controlled by Charles F. Dolan,aiartmembers of his immediate family and certainifanelated entities (collectively the
“Dolan Family”).

As part of the Distribution, the Company incurré}4®25,000 of debt (the “New AMC Networks Debt”) nasisting of $1,725,000
aggregate principal amount of senior secured teemd and $700,000 aggregate principal amount dfrsensecured notes (see Note 8).
Approximately $1,063,000 of the proceeds of the M@C Networks Debt was used to repay all pre-Diattion outstanding Company debt
(excluding capital leases), including principal awtrued and unpaid interest to the date of repatraad, as partial consideration for
Cablevision’s contribution of the membership inggsen RMH to the Company, $1,250,000, net of distpof New AMC Networks Debt was
issued to CSC Holdings, LLC (“CSC Holdings”), a Wipie@wned subsidiary of Cablevision, which is refled as a deemed capital distribution
in the consolidated statement of stockholders’i¢igicy) equity for the year ended December 3112@ISC Holdings used such New AMC
Networks Debt to satisfy and discharge outstan@8g Holdings debt, which ultimately resulted inlsidew AMC Networks Debt being he
by third party investors.
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Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

These consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with U.S. generally accemtedunting principles (“GAAP”).
The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent liabilities at the date of fheancial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reported pekidal results could differ from those estimates.

The Company'’s consolidated financial statementgésiods prior to the Distribution have been detifrem the consolidated financial
statements and accounting records of Cablevisidiraftect certain assumptions and allocations. firfencial position, results of operations
and cash flows of the Company for those periodsdcdiffer from those that might have resulted hlael Company been operated autonomc
or as an entity independent of Cablevision. The gam’s consolidated financial statements aftetstribution reflect certain revenues and
expenses related to transactions with or charges €ablevision and other related parties as desttiiito Note 19.

Discontinued Operation

On December 31, 2010, RMH transferred its memberisitérests in News 12 (regional news programmaergises), Rainbow
Advertising Sales Corporation (“RASCQO”) (a cablktWsion advertising company) and certain otheiifesses to wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Cablevision in contemplation of the DistributioFhe operating results of these transferred estitirough the date of the transfer have been
presented in the consolidated statements of in@sriscontinued operations for the years endedrbleee31, 2010 and 2009. Additionally,
the net operating results following the sale of awnership interests in the Lifeskool and Sport$kideo-on-demand services in September
and October 2008, respectively, which were recordeter the installment sales method, have beesifitabas discontinued operations for all
periods presented.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2010, the Financial Accounting Stansl&alard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Updad&sU”) No. 2010-28,
Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): WherPerform Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairment TestRaporting Units with Zero or
Negative Carrying Amounts (ASU 2C-28). ASU 2010-28 modifies Step 1 of the goodwiibiairment test for reporting units with zero or
negative carrying amounts. For those reportingsyait entity is required to perform Step 2 of thedyvill impairment test if it is more likely
than not that an impairment of goodwill existsditermining whether it is more likely than not thatimpairment of goodwill exists, an entity
should consider whether there are any adversetatiradi factors indicating that an impairment maisexrhe Company adopted ASU 2010-28
effective January 1, 2011. The adoption of thidharitative guidance did not have any impact toGenpany’s annual impairment test during
the first quarter of 2011.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2060+air Value Measurements and Disclosures (T8p®): Improving Disclosures abc
Fair Value Measurement, that outlines certain nmseldsures and clarifies some existing disclosatpiirements about fair value measurement
as set forth in Accounting Standards Codificati@pi€ 820-10 which became effective and was adolpyettie Company on January 1, 2011.
The adoption of this authoritative guidance did iImate any impact on the Company’s consolidatecfizd statements.
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In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-18ltidle-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (ASU 2A39- which provides
amendments that (a) update the criteria for sepgrabnsideration in multiple-deliverable arrangeise (b) establish a selling price hierarchy
for determining the selling price of a deliveratdad (c) replace the term “fair value” in the reverallocation guidance with the term “selling
price” to clarify that the allocation of revenuebiased on entity-specific assumptions. ASU 208%liminates the residual method of alloca
arrangement consideration to deliverables, reqtiresise of the relative selling price method aglires that a vendor determine its best
estimate of selling price in a manner consistetth Wiat used to determine the price to sell theveedble on a stand-alone basis. ASU 2009-13
requires a vendor to significantly expand the disates related to multiple-deliverable revenuergreanents with the objective to provide
information about the significant judgments made ananges to those judgments and how the applicafithe relative selling-price method
affects the timing or amount of revenue recogniti®8U 2009-13 was adopted on a prospective basesvenue arrangements entered into or
materially modified on or after January 1, 2011e Haoption of this authoritative guidance did nmtdnany impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued But Not Yet Adopted Accounting Proouncements

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011+08ngibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Tegti@oodwill for Impairment
(ASU 2011-08), to allow entities to use a qualtatapproach to test goodwill for impairment. ASUL2808 permits an entity to first perform a
gualitative assessment to determine whether itoertikely than not that the fair value of a refrogtunit is less than its carrying value. If it is
concluded that this is the case, it is necessapgtform the currently prescribed two-step goodimilbairment test. Otherwise, the two-step
goodwill impairment test is not required. ASU 2008 is effective for the Company on January 1, 281@ earlier adoption is permitted. The
Company will evaluate performing a qualitative asseent in 2012.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Gehgnsive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Cem@nsive Income. The
provisions of ASU 2011-05 provide that an entitgittheports items of other comprehensive incomehmsption to present comprehensive
income as (i) a single statement that presentsdhmonents of net income and total net incomectimeponents of other comprehensive
income and total other comprehensive income aitbafor comprehensive income or (ii) in a two-staent approach, whereby an entity must
present the components of net income and totahneme in the first statement and that statemeimiisediately followed by a financial
statement that presents the components of othepretransive income, a total for other comprehensieeme and a total for comprehensive
income. The option in current GAAP that permits phesentation of other comprehensive income irsthaezment of stockholders’ equity has
been eliminated. ASU 2011-05 is to be applied sgteatively and early adoption is permitted. In Deber 2011, the FASB issued ASU
No. 201:-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendmetatshe Presentation of Reclassification of Items @Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update2011-05 (ASU 2011-12). ASU 2011-12 defersréguirement in ASU 2011-05 to
present reclassification adjustments for each corapbof accumulated other comprehensive income CRYIn both other comprehensive
income and net income on the face of the finarsteEtements and the presentation of reclassificatifusstments is not required in interim
periods. The Company expects to continue to presaounts reclassified out of AOCI on the face effihancial statements or disclose those
amounts in the notes to the financial statemeriis. éfffective dates of ASU 2011-12 are consistetit thie effective dates of ASU 2011-05,
which is effective for the Company on January 1,20rhe Company has not yet determined which ptaien method it will adopt.
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In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Failue Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achi@emmon Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in GAAPIBR&s (ASU 2011-04). ASU 2011-04 provides amendmenTopic 820 that change
the wording used to describe many of the requiresn@nGAAP for measuring fair value and for disétmsinformation about fair value
measurements. ASU 2011-04 is to be applied prosedcand is effective for the Company on Januargdi?2.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its wholly-owned subsids. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances are elipdriatconsolidation.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidencsata arrangement exists, delivery occurs oraes\are rendered, the sales price is
fixed or determinable and collectability is readogaassured. Revenue recognition for each sourtieeo€ompany’s revenue is based on the
following policies:

Affiliation Fee

The Company recognizes affiliation fee revenue fdistributors that carry the Company’s programmnsegvices under multi-year
contracts, commonly referred to as “affiliation egments.The programming services are delivered throughwatérms of the agreements .
the Company recognizes revenue as programmingyisdad.

Advertising

Advertising revenues are recognized when commaereia aired. In certain advertising sales arrangesnthe Company’s programming
businesses guarantee specified viewer ratingshé&r programming. For these types of transactiaqmrtion of such revenue is deferred if the
guaranteed viewer ratings are not met and is sulesgly recognized either when the Company provilesequired additional advertising
time, the guarantee obligation contractually expoeperformance requirements become remote.

Other Revenue

Revenue from the licensing of original programmiogforeign and digital distribution is recognizedon availability for distribution by
the licensee. Revenue from video-on-demand andasipey-per-view arrangements is recognized asrproguing is exhibited based on end-
customer purchases as reported by the distribRrenue derived from other sources is recognizeshwdelivery occurs or the services are
rendered.

Multiple-Element Transactions

If there is objective and reliable evidence of fatue for all elements of accounting in a multiplement arrangement, the arrangement
consideration is allocated to the separate elentératscounting based on relative fair values. Timeag be cases in which there is objective
reliable evidence of the fair value of undeliverains in an arrangement but no such evidence &dé#livered items. In those cases, the
Company uses the relative selling price methodlteza@te the arrangement consideration. Under tlaive selling price method, the Company
determines its best estimate of selling price amner consistent with that used to determine tive jpo sell the deliverable on a stand-alone
basis.
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Technical and Operating Expenses

Costs of revenues, including but not limited t@fise fees, amortization of program rights, paritgn and residual costs and
programming and production costs, origination, graission, uplinking and other operating costs ctassified as technical and operating
expenses in the consolidated statements of income.

Advertising and Distribution Expenses

Advertising costs are charged to expense wheniiedwand are recorded to selling, general and adtrétive expenses in the
consolidated statements of income. Advertisingsagre $105,068, $92,184 and $86,728 for the ysaied December 31, 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively. Marketing, distribution and geth and administrative costs related to the etquion of owned original programming are
expensed as incurred and are recorded to sellergrgl and administrative expenses in the congelidstatements of income.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company measures the cost of employee semdces/ed in exchange for an award of equity-basstiiments based on the grant
date fair value of the portion of awards that dtienately expected to vest. The cost is recogninegbrnings over the period during which an
employee is required to provide service in exchdong¢he award, except for restricted stock unienged to noremployee directors which ve
100%, and are expensed, at the date of grant.téck appreciation rights (“SARs”), the Company rgiaes expense based on the estimated
fair value at each reporting period using the Bi&ckoles valuation model.

For periods prior to the Distribution date, Cabstwin charged the Company its proportionate shaexpénses or benefits related to
Cablevision’s employee stock plans and Cablevisitorig-term incentive plans (see Note 19). Amoémtshare-based compensation expense
are included in selling, general and administraéi¥penses in the consolidated statements of income.

See Note 16 for further discussion of the Compaeylsity plans.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company'’s cash investments are placed with gnovagket funds and financial institutions that emeestment grade as rated by
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Servicee Tompany selects money market funds that predaiyniavest in marketable, direct
obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. gowent or its agencies, commercial paper, fully ¢elaized repurchase agreements,
certificates of deposit, and time deposits.

The Company considers the balance of its investineiuihds that substantially hold securities thatumne within three months or less
from the date the fund purchases these securities tash equivalents. The carrying amount of aashcash equivalents either approximates
fair value due to the short-term maturity of thesgruments or are at fair value.

Accounts Receivable, Trade

The Company periodically assesses the adequaaudition allowances for uncollectible accounts refgle by evaluating the
collectability of outstanding receivables and gahé&ctors such as length of time individual reedies are past due, historical collection
experience, and the economic and competitive enrrient.
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Program Rights

Rights to programming, including feature films aqsodic series, acquired under license agreeraeatstated at the lower of amortized
cost or net realizable value. Such licensed righieg with the related obligations are recordetth@tcontract value when a license agreement is
executed, unless there is uncertainty with resjpeeither cost, acceptability or availability. lfch uncertainty exists, those rights and
obligations are recorded at the earlier of wherutleertainty is resolved or the license period begCosts are amortized to technical and
operating expense on a straight-line basis overiag not to exceed the respective license periods.

The Company’s owned original programming is prifygoroduced by independent production companieth thie remainder produced
by the Company. Owned original programming cosisluiding estimated participation and residual captslifying for capitalization as
program rights are amortized to technical and dpey@&xpense over their estimated useful lives, ro@mcing upon the first airing, based on
attributable revenue for airings to date as a peacge of total projected attributable revenue,lttmate revenue (film-forecast-computation
method). Projected program usage is based on sharical performance of similar content. Estimaagtdbutable revenue can change based
upon programming market acceptance, levels ofatifih fee revenue and advertising revenue, angrpro usage. Accordingly, the Company
periodically reviews revenue estimates and plausadje and revises its assumptions if necessarghwbuld impact the timing of
amortization expense or result in a write-downdbnealizable value. Owned original program rightt$70,727 at December 31, 2011 is
included as a component of long-term program righés$ in the consolidated balance sheet. The Coyngstimates that approximately 92% of
unamortized owned original programming costs, a3efember 31, 2011, will be amortized within thetriree years. The Company expects
to amortize $39,379 of unamortized owned origimagpamming costs, during the next twelve months.

The Company periodically reviews the programmingfulsiess of its licensed and owned original prograyhts based on a series of
factors, including ratings, type and quality of gram material, standards and practices, and fitioesexhibition. If it is determined that film or
other program rights have no future programmindulsess, a write-off of the unamortized cost isoreled in technical and operating expense.
Program rights write-offs of $18,332, $1,122 and7$8 were recorded for the years ended Decemb&03d1l,, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Assets

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Equipmeder capital leases is recorded at the presdme of the total minimum lease
payments. Depreciation is calculated on a strdigbtbasis over the estimated useful lives of theets or, with respect to equipment under
capital leases and leasehold improvements, amadrtizer the shorter of the lease term or the asas&ful lives and reported in depreciation
and amortization in the consolidated statemenisaaime.

Intangible assets established in connection wilirtass acquisitions primarily consist of affiliatiagreements and affiliate relationships,
advertiser relationships and goodwill. Amortizaisiangible assets are amortized on a straightHasss over their respective estimated useful
lives. Goodwill and identifiable intangible ass#tat have indefinite useful lives are not amortized

Impairment of Lon-Lived and Indefinite Lived Assets

The Company'’s long-lived and indefinite-lived assat December 31, 2011 include property and equipmet of $63,814, amortizable
intangible assets, net of $285,773, identifiabbefmite-lived intangible assets of $19,900 anddyeitl of $83,173. These assets accounted for
approximately 21% of the Company’s consolidatedltassets as of December 31, 2011.
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The Company reviews its long-lived assets (propanty equipment, and intangible assets subject trtamation that arose from
acquisitions) for impairment whenever events acwinstances indicate that the carrying amount afsset may not be recoverable. If the sum
of the expected cash flows, undiscounted and withuerest, is less than the carrying amount ofabget, an impairment loss is recognized as
the amount by which the carrying amount of the tasseeeds its fair value.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets,iethrepresent Sundance Channel trademarks of $1.9698 tested annually for
impairment during the first quarter (“annual impaént test date”) and upon the occurrence of ceetagmts or substantive changes in
circumstances.

Goodwill impairment is determined using a two-spepcess. The first step of the goodwill impairmest is used to identify potential
impairment by comparing the fair value of a repuagtunit with its carrying amount, including goodwitilizing an enterprise-value based
premise approach. If the carrying amount of a répgunit exceeds its fair value, the second sfapegoodwill impairment test is performed
to measure the amount of goodwill impairment Iifsany. The second step of the goodwill impairmiest compares the implied fair value of
the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying aomd of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of treporting unit's goodwill exceeds the
implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairmdoss is recognized in an amount equal to that esxddse implied fair value of goodwill is
determined in the same manner as the amount ofwgthdigdat would be recognized in a business comtiama For the purpose of evaluating
goodwill impairment at the annual impairment testted the Company had five reporting units, whidogmnized goodwill. These reporting ur
are AMC, WE tv, IFC and Sundance Channel, whichrasckided in the National Networks reportable segimand AMC Networks
Broadcasting & Technology, which is included in theernational and Other reportable segment.

The goodwill balance as of December 31, 2011 bgnteyy unit is as follows:

Reporting Unit

AMC $34,25
WE tv 5,21¢
IFC 13,58:
Sundance Chann 28,93(
AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technoloy 1,19¢

$83,17:

In assessing the recoverability of the Companytdgall and other long-lived assets, the Companytrmeke assumptions regarding
estimated future cash flows and other factors terd@ne the fair value of the respective assetss&lestimates and assumptions could have a
significant impact on whether an impairment chasgeecognized and also the magnitude of any sualgeh Fair value estimates are made at a
specific point in time, based on relevant inforroatiThese estimates are subjective in nature arudvim uncertainties and matters of signific
judgments and therefore cannot be determined wébigion. Changes in assumptions could signifigeafflect the estimates. Estimates of -
value are primarily determined using discountedhdlmsvs and comparable market transactions. Thaketions are based on estimates and
assumptions including projected future cash fladisgount rate, and determination of appropriateketatomparables and determination of
whether a premium or discount should be appliezbtoparables. These valuations also include assangptor the projected number of
subscribers and the projected average rates pierdvast viewing subscribers and growth in fixed praontractual arrangements used to
determine affiliation fee revenue, access to pnogrights and the cost of such program rights, arhofiprogramming time that is advertiser
supported,
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number of advertising spots available and thetkatlugh rates for those spots, average fee pertiging spot, and operating margins, among
other assumptions. If these estimates or matesialad assumptions change in the future, the Coynpeay be required to record impairment
charges related to the Company’s long-lived assets.

Based on the Company’s annual impairment test duha first quarter of 2011, the Company’s repagrtimits had significant safety
margins, representing the excess of the estimategidlue of each reporting unit over its respextarrying value (including goodwill allocat
to each respective reporting unit). In order toleai the sensitivity of the estimated fair valaécalations of the Company’s reporting units on
the annual impairment calculation for goodwill, iempany applied a hypothetical 30% decrease tegtimated fair values of each reporting
unit. This hypothetical decrease would have no ichpa the goodwill impairment analysis for any loé tCompany’s reporting units.

The impairment test for identifiable indefinitedigl intangible assets consists of a comparisoneoéstimated fair value of the intangible
asset with its carrying value. If the carrying \alf the indefinite-lived intangible asset exceisléair value, an impairment loss is recognized
in an amount equal to that excess.

The Company’s indefinite-lived trademark intangibksets relate to the Company’s Sundance Chamadenarks, which were valued
using a relief-from-royalty method in which the exped benefits are valued by discounting estimatgalty revenue over projected revenues
covered by the trademarks. The Sundance Chanmgtdetrademarks were recorded in June 2008 whe@dhgany completed transactions
which resulted in the 100% acquisition of Sunda@bannel L.L.C. Significant judgments inherent imaduation include the selection of
appropriate discount and royalty rates, estimatiegamount and timing of estimated future cash $lewd identification of appropriate
continuing growth rate assumptions. The discoutesrased in the analysis are intended to reflectitk inherent in the projected future cash
flows generated by the respective intangible assets

Based on the Company’s annual impairment test duha first quarter of 2011, the Company’s Sunda®icannel related trademarks
identifiable indefinite-lived intangible assets ragnificant safety margins, representing the exodéghe identifiable indefinite-lived intangible
assets estimated fair value over their respectivgying values. In order to evaluate the sensjtigitthe fair value calculations of the
Company'’s identifiable indefinite-lived intangibdssets, the Company applied a hypothetical 30%gdserto the estimated fair value of the
Company'’s identifiable indefinite-lived intangibdessets. This hypothetical decrease in estimateadhie would have resulted in an
impairment charge of approximately $400.

Deferred Carriage Fees

Deferred carriage fees represent amounts pringipalld or payable to multichannel video distribstty obtain additional subscribers
and/or guarantee carriage of certain programmingcas and are amortized as a reduction of reveraethe period of the related guarantee
arrangement (4 to 13 years).

Deferred Financing Costs

Costs incurred to obtain debt are deferred and twedrto interest expense using the effective @gerate method over the term of the
related debt.
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Program Rights Obligations
Amounts payable subsequent to December 31, 204tedeio program rights obligations included in ¢besolidated balance sheet are as
follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2012 $146,33¢
2013 139,04¢
2014 128,54:
2015 109,49:
2016 64,497
Thereaftel 31,111

$619,02¢

Off balance sheet program rights obligations atdbdwer 31, 2011 that have not yet met the critertaetrecorded in the consolidated
balance sheet are $156,982, which are payable;,®121in 2012 and $35,288 in 2013.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Company distributes programming in certaintemies outside of the U.S. Accordingly, it hadraited number of trade receivables
denominated in a foreign currency, primarily Caaadilollars. The Company recognized $(130), $(1h6)%&291 of foreign currency
transaction (losses) gains for the years endedrleee31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, relatedose receivables denominated in a
foreign currency from affiliation agreements witiréign distributors. Such amounts are included isceilaneous, net in the consolidated
statements of income.

Income Taxes

The Company'’s provision for income taxes is basedwrent period income, changes in deferred tagtasand liabilities and estimates
with regard to the liability for unrecognized tagrefits resulting from uncertain tax positions. &efd tax assets are evaluated quarterly for
expected future realization and reduced by a vignailowance to the extent management believisstitore likely than not that a portion will
not be realized. The Company provides deferredstéotethe outside basis difference for its investtrie partnerships. Interest and penalties, if
any, associated with uncertain tax positions ackided in income tax expense.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s derivative financial instruments r@eorded as either assets or liabilities in thesobdated balance sheet based on their
fair values. The Company’s embedded derivativenfinea instruments are clearly and closely relatethe host contracts; therefore, such
derivative financial instruments are not accouritedn a stand-alone basis. In 2011, changes ifaihgalues are reported in earnings or other
comprehensive income depending on the use of thieatige and whether it qualifies for hedge accanmtDerivative instruments are
designated and accounted for as either a hedgeeabgnized asset or liability (fair value hedgepdedge of a forecasted transaction (cash
flow hedge). Prior to 2011, derivative instrumentye not designated as hedges and changes irafags/were recognized in income and
included in interest expense in the consolidatatestent of income. For derivatives designated festafe cash flow hedges, changes in fair
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values are recognized in other comprehensive ind¢émas). Changes in fair values related to faiuedtedges as well as the ineffective portion
of cash flow hedges are recognized in earningsn@min the fair value of the underlying hedgenhitef a fair value hedge are also recogni
in earnings. See Note 10 for a further discussfch@Company’s derivative financial instruments.

Commitments and Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising fromiofs, assessments, litigation, fines and penaltidsother sources are recorded when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred andaim®unt of the contingency can be reasonably estona

Net Income (Loss) per Share

The consolidated statements of income present hasicliluted net income (loss) per share. Basitnoeime (loss) per share (“‘EPS”) is
based upon net income (loss) divided by the wegyhteerage number of shares outstanding duringehiedh Diluted EPS reflects the dilutive
effects of Company stock options (including thoskltby directors and employees of related partiegkedCompany) and Company restricted
shares (including those held by employees of rélptaties of the Company).

For the year ended December 31, 2011, diluted BEI8des the dilutive effect of 510,000 stock opsi@amd 938,000 restricted shares.
number of shares used to compute basic and dilntetne per share for the years ended Decembel03D, @hd 2009 of approximately
69,161,000, represents the number of shares of @ayngommon stock issued to Cablevision shareholaethe Distribution date, and
excludes unvested outstanding restricted sharsedan a distribution ratio of one share of AMCwWatks common stock for every four she
of Cablevision common stock outstanding. The dikigffect of the Company’s share-based awardsatbet issued in connection with the
adjustment or conversion of Cablevision’s shareedasvards upon the Distribution (including Cablernsstock options and restricted share
awards previously granted prior to the Distribujiand subsequent Company grants, are includecindmputation of diluted net income per
share in periods subsequent to the Distribution.

Approximately 192,000 restricted shares have be&eluded from the diluted weighted average shar¢standing for the year ended
December 31, 2011 since the performance criterithese awards has not yet been satisfied.

Common Stock of AMC Networks

Each holder of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock biae vote per share while holders of AMC Netwdkass B Common Stock
have ten votes per share. AMC Networks Class Beshean be converted to AMC Networks Class A ComBtoiek at anytime with a
conversion ratio of one AMC Networks Class A commsbare for one AMC Networks Class B common shahne. AMC Networks Class A
stockholders are entitled to elect 25% of the CamyfzaBoard of Directors. AMC Networks Class B stholders have the right to elect the
remaining members of the Company’s Board of Dinecttn addition, AMC Networks Class B stockholdars parties to an agreement which
has the effect of causing the voting power of the8KC Networks Class B stockholders to be cast boek.

Shares Outstandir

Class A Common Sto Class B Common Sto
Balance at June 30, 2011 (date
Distribution) 57,813,26 13,534,40
Employee and non-employee
director stock transaction: 621,43 —
Balance at December 31, 20 58,434,70. 13,534,40
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* Primarily includes issuances of common stock innemtion with employee stock option exercises astticted shares granted to employ
partially offset by shares acquired by the Compargonnection with the fulfillment of employeesasitory tax withholding obligations for
applicable income and other employment taxes aridifed employee restricted shar

Note 3. Restructuring

In 2008, the Company decided to discontinue fundirggdomestic programming business of VOOM HD.002 the Company decided
to discontinue funding certain international VOOND lgrogramming. In connection with these decisidres€ompany recorded restructuring
(credit) expense for each of the three years ebdmgmber 31, 2011.

The following table summarizes the VOOM HD restuuittg expense (credit) recognized during 2009, 201 2011:

Contractual
Employee Other
Program

Severanc Rights Costs Total
Restructuring liability at December 31, 2008 $ 5,711 $ — $ 37 $ 5,74¢
Charges incurre 57<(a) 4,57%b) 11 5,16
Write-down of assets and other I-cash item: — (1,712 7 (2,70¢
Payment: (6,019 (2,390 — 8,40¢
Restructuring liability at December 31, 2C 277 47C 55 80z
Credits recognize (249) (1,969 (b) — (2,219
Other adjustment 22 2,04¢(c) — 2,07(
Payment: (47 (549 — (596
Restructuring liability at December 31, 2C 3 — 55 58
Credits recognize — (191)(b) (49) (240
Other adjustment — 191(c) (6) 18t
Payment: — — — —
Restructuring liability at December 31, 2C $ 3 $ — — $ 3

(@) Employee severance related to the eliminationwef fiositions at VOOM HLC
(b) Represents unfavorable (favorable) negotiatedesatthts of contractual obligations with vend:
(c) Represents a reclassification of program rightgyabibns to accrued restructuring liabili

At December 31, 2011, aggregate restructuringliieds of $3 were classified in other accrued e)ga@nin the consolidated balance sheet.
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Note 4. Cash Flows
During 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company’s non-gagksting and financing activities and other supmatal data were as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activitie
Continuing Operations
Deemed capital contributions (distributions) retate the utilization of Cablevision t¢
losses (Company tax losses by Cablevision) (see h2) $ 36,86 $52,82¢ $(20,06¢)
Deemed capital distribution associated with thaasse of debt to Cablevision (see N
1) (1,250,001) — —
Deemed capital contribution, net related to adjestts to liability for uncertain tax
positions and net deferred tax assets as a résghi @istribution (see Note 1. 44,59¢ — —
Capital distribution for the transfer of a promigsaote receivable to Cablevision (see
Promissory Note discussion belo (17,119 — —
Deemed capital distribution to Cablevision relai@@mployee benefit plans as a re:
of the Distribution (see Employee Matters Agreentistussion below (6,319) — —
Deemed capital distribution related to tax credttbzed by Cablevision (see Note 1 (2,58¢€) — —
Leasehold improvement paid by landlc 15C 554 —
Increase (decrease) in capital lease obligatiodgelated asse 39 (279 6,53¢
Capital distribution related to the entities traamséd to Cablevision on December
2010 (see Note £ — 41,27: —
Deemed capital contribution related to the allaratf Cablevision share-based
compensation expen: 8,34: 16,26 13,71¢
Discontinued Operations
Deemed capital contribution related to the allaratf Cablevision sha-basec
compensation expen: — 4,29 3,88(
Supplemental Date
Cash interest pa—continuing operation 78,71« 72,33t 72,91¢
Cash interest pa—discontinued operatior — — 541
Income taxes paid, r—continuing operation 11,56¢ 5,21 3,76¢
Income taxes refunded, —discontinued operatior — D 2

Promissory Note

In September 2009, RMH and one of its subsidiahaswas transferred by the Company to CablevisioDecember 31, 2010 agreed to
the terms of a promissory note having an initighgpal amount of $0 and increasing from time todiby advances made by RMH, with an
interest rate of 8.625%. As of December 31, 20MHRad extended advances against this promissdeyaggregating $16,832. Interest
income recognized by RMH related to this note anbedito $120, $660 and $38 for the years ended Deee81, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. On January 31, 2011, RMH distributed subsidiary of Cablevision all of its rightiletand interest in and to the promissory
note. This distribution amounting to $17,113, imthg principal and accrued and unpaid interesgfiected as a capital distribution in the
consolidated statement of stockholders’ (deficigrazyuity for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Employee Matters Agreeme

In connection with the Distribution, AMC Networkatered into an Employee Matters Agreement with €ablon which allocated
assets, liabilities and responsibilities with regtfe certain employee compensation and benefitspéend programs and certain other related
matters. As a result of such agreement, AMC Netwoelcorded a net receivable from Cablevision o1&, an increase in accrued employee
related costs of $7,479 and a capital distributib$§6,313 which decreased additional paid in capitthe Company’s statement of
stockholders’ (deficiency) equity for the transtetthe Company from Cablevision of the obligatioelated to the Company’s employees’
participant accounts in the Cablevision Excessi@sviPlan $(3,616) and the Cablevision Excess CatimBe Pension Plan $(3,863) and for
the Company’s obligation to Cablevision for theB, unfunded liability associated with Company esypk participants in Cablevision’s
Cash Balance Pension Plan. In addition, the Compadhyced its long-term incentive plan and SAR lies and increased due to related party
by $6,742 for its obligation to pay Cablevision fzrallocated share of the related expense fote@ation corporate employees through
June 30, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, theseerefarty balances were settled.

Note 5. Discontinued Operations

As discussed in Note 1, on December 31, 2010, Ridhkferred its membership interests in News 1Adred news programming
services), RASCO and certain other businesses tdiywbwned subsidiaries of Cablevision. This distiion amounted to $41,273 and was
recorded as a deemed capital distribution in thesclidated statement of stockholders’ (deficiereity at December 31, 2010. No gain or
loss was recognized in connection with this disititn between entities under common control. Therajing results of these transferred
entities through the date of the transfer have lodgssified in the consolidated statements of ine@s discontinued operations for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. Additionallyntteoperating results following the sale of oumevship interests in the Lifeskool and
Sportskool video-on-demand services in SeptemheiCantober 2008, respectively, which were recordetku the installment sales method,
have been classified as discontinued operationalfperiods presented.

Operating results of discontinued operations fertbars ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 20Gemr@arized below:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Revenues, net $— $ 79,76¢ $ 69,72¢
Income (loss) before income tax $ 822 $(63,31)) $(58,189)
Income tax (expense) bene (730) 25,22 23,39¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, néhobme taxe: $ 92 $(38,09() $(34,79)
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Note 6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment (including equipment undgital leases) consist of the following assetscihire depreciated or amortized ¢
straight-line basis over the estimated useful Isteswn below:

December 31, Estimated
2011 2010 Useful Lives
Program, service and test equipm $ 92,08( $ 115,32! 2to 5 year
Satellite equipmer 15,53( 15,50: 13 year
Furniture and fixture 14,28¢ 15,92: 5 to 8 year
Transmission equipme 34,44 37,49¢ 5to 7 year
Leasehold improvemen 40,22: 41,617 Term of leas
196,55¢ 225,86:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (132,749 (156,889
$ 63,81« $ 68,97%

During 2011, the Company retired $44,187 of fulgpreciated assets that are no longer in use.

Depreciation and amortization expense on propertlyejuipment (including capital leases) amountekPt 739, $19,805 and $22,828,
respectively, for the years ended December 31,,22010 and 2009.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the gross amouequipment and related accumulated amortizationrdecbunder capital leases were
as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
Satellite equipment $15,53( $15,50:
Less accumulated amortizati (6,22)) (5,099

$ 9,30¢ $10,40¢
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Note 7. Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes information relatioghe Company acquired intangible assets at December 31, 20d Dacember 3:
2010:

December 31, Estimated Weighted Average
2011 2010 Useful Lives Remaining Useful Life
Gross carrying amount of amortizable intangiblests
Affiliation agreements and affiliate relationshi $ 911,35 $ 911,35 4 t0 25 yeal 17 year
Advertiser relationship 103,72: 103,72: 31to 10 yeal 2 year
Other amortizable intangible ass 644 24,84( 410 10 yeat 2 year
1,015,72. 1,039,92 16 year
Accumulated amortizatio
Affiliation agreements and affiliate relationshi (637,39 (565,89))
Advertiser relationship (92,16¢) (84,689
Other amortizable intangible ass (397 (24,46

(729,95) (675,03)

Amortizable intangible assets, net of accumul;

amortization 285,77 364,88
Indefinite-lived intangible asse
Trademarks 19,90( 19,90(
Goodwiill 83,17: 83,17:
Total intangible assets, n $ 388,84t $ 467,95!
Aggregate amortization expen
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2 $ 79,10¢ $ 86,65(

During 2011, the Company retired $24,196 of fultycatized other amortizable intangible assets.

The Company expects its aggregate annual amodizatipense for existing intangible assets subgeatrtortization for each year from
2012 through 2016 to be as follows:

Years Ending December 31

2012 $64,43¢
2013 31,67¢
2014 9,76t
2015 9,74¢
2016 9,74¢
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The Company has historically been able to reneiliedfbn agreements upon expiration and has fadtiteeexperience with such renew
in estimating the future cash flows associated watlaffiliation agreements and affiliate relatibisintangible assets.

There were no accumulated impairment losses retatgdodwill for any periods as of December 31,201

Note 8. Debt
Senior Secured Credit Facility

On June 30, 2011 (the “Closing Date”), AMC Netwqras Borrower, and substantially all of its sulesiiis, as restricted subsidiaries,
entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Rgtjli The Credit Facility provides AMC Networks witsenior secured credit facilities
consisting of a $1,130,000 term loan A facilitygtfTerm A Facility”), a $595,000 term loan B fatilithe “Term B Facility”) and a $500,000
revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility” The Term A Facility and the Term B Facility watiscounted $5,650 and $12,986,
respectively, upon original issuance. The Term A&ilkg matures June 30, 2017, the Term B Facilitytumes December 31, 2018 and the
Revolving Facility matures June 30, 2016. On theslg Date, AMC Networks borrowed $1,130,000 urilerTerm A Facility and $595,000
under the Term B Facility, of which approximately7¥,000 was issued to CSC Holdings as partial densiion for the transfer to AMC
Networks of the RMH businesses on June 6, 201lupatgo the Contribution Agreement, among AMC Netgp CSC Holdings an
Cablevision and was in connection with the Disttidau of AMC Networks from Cablevision consummatedJune 30, 2011. The issuance of
debt to CSC Holdings is reflected as a deemedalajigtribution in the consolidated statement otkholders’ (deficiency) equity for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

The Revolving Facility was not drawn upon on thesiig Date and remains undrawn at December 31,. 2Git4l undrawn revolver
commitments are available to be drawn for genevglarate purposes of the Company.

In connection with the Credit Facility, AMC Netwakncurred deferred financing costs of $26,309cilaire being amortized to interest
expense, utilizing the effective interest methograhe term of each respective component of tlesliCFacility.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interatsa floating rate, which at the option of AMC Netks may be (1) for the Term A
Facility and the Revolving Facility, either (a) ade rate plus an additional rate ranging from 0.50%25% per annum (determined based on a
cash flow ratio), or (b) a Eurodollar rate plusaatditional rate ranging from 1.50% to 2.25% perwanr{determined based on a cash flow rz
and (2) for the Term B Facility, either (a) 2.00% pnnum above the base rate, or (b) 3.00% pemaabove a Eurodollar rate (and subject to
a LIBOR floor of 1.00% per annum). At December 2011, the interest rate on the Term A Facility #r@lTerm B Facility was 2.03% and
4.00%, respectively, reflecting a Eurodollar ratedach plus the additional rate as describednerei

All obligations under the Credit Facility are guatieed jointly and severally by substantially all’XdiC Networks’ existing and future
domestic restricted subsidiaries as primary ob$igoraccordance with the Credit Facility. All oldigons under the Credit Facility, including
guarantees of those obligations, are secured tstanuially all of the assets of AMC Networks andgé subsidiaries. Cablevision is not a
guarantor of, and does not otherwise have any afdigs relating to, the Credit Facility or any bétCompany’s other indebtedness.
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The borrowings under the Term A Facility and ReummvFacility portions of the Credit Facility may keluntarily prepaid without
premiums and penalty at any time. The Credit Rgdliso provides for various mandatory prepaymentduding with the proceeds from
certain dispositions of property and borrowingstdBe giving effect to the voluntary prepaymentgrad Term A Facility made during 2011
discussed below, the Term A Facility is requirethéorepaid in quarterly installments of $14,125iheing September 30, 2012 through
June 30, 2013, $28,250 beginning September 30, @0&B8gh June 30, 2014, $42,375 beginning SepteBte2014 through June 30, 2015,
$56,500 beginning September 30, 2015 through M3atcl2017 and $395,500 on June 30, 2017, the TeRadility maturity date. The Term B
Facility is required to be repaid in quarterly aibhents of approximately $1,488 through Septen®e2018 and approximately $551,863 on
December 31, 2018, the Term B Facility maturityeddthe Term B Facility is not payable before mayusiher than through repayments as
noted above or through a refinancing with debt hga maturity date no earlier than December 31828hy amounts outstanding under the
Revolving Facility are due at maturity on June 3016.

The Credit Facility contains certain affirmativedamegative covenants and also requires AMC Netwiark&®mply with the following
financial covenants: (i) a maximum ratio of net tebannual operating cash flow (each defined enGhedit Facility) of 7.00:1 initially, and
decreasing in increments to 5.50:1 for periodsrahafter January 1, 2015; and (ii) a minimum rafi@annual operating cash flow to annual
total interest expense (as defined in the CreditliBg of 2.50:1 initially, increasing to 2.75:dff periods on and after January 1, 2014.

The Credit Facility requires AMC Networks to pag@ammitment fee of between 0.25% and 0.50% (detexchbased on a cash flow
ratio) in respect of the average daily unused camenits under the Revolving Facility. AMC Networksailso required to pay customary letter
of credit fees, as well as fronting fees, to bathled issue letters of credit pursuant to the Crieddility.

The Company may request an increase in the Terraclity and/or Revolving Facility by an aggregateaunt not exceeding the greater
of $400,000 and an amount, which after giving dffecsuch increase, would not cause the ratio mibselebt to annual operating cash flow, as
defined, to exceed 4.75:1. As of December 31, 20fELCompany does not have any commitments fonenemental facility.

AMC Networks was in compliance with all of its fimegial covenants under its Credit Facility as of &aber 31, 2011.

Voluntary Prepayments of Term A Facility

During 2011, the Company voluntarily prepaid $100,0f the outstanding balance under the Term AliacThese voluntary
prepayments were applied to the earliest requitedtgrly installments due. As a result, as of Ddwem31, 2011, the next required quarterly
installment under the Term A Facility is due on Beber 31, 2013 in the amount of $13,000 with quigrtestallments due under the Term A
Facility subsequent to December 31, 2013 remainitghanged. The Company recorded a write-off ofrdedefinancing costs and a loss on
extinguishment of debt of $544 and $191, respelgtiessociated with the prepayment in the const#diatatement of income for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

In March 2012, the Company voluntarily prepaid $80, of the outstanding balance under the Term Alisad hese voluntary
prepayments were applied to the earliest requitedtgrly installments due.
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7.75% Senior Notes due 2021

On June 30, 2011, AMC Networks issued $700,00@gregate principal amount of its 7.75% senior nates of an original issue
discount of $14,000, due July 15, 2021 (the “Notés’'CSC Holdings, as partial consideration for tifa@sfer to AMC Networks of the RMH
businesses on June 6, 2011, which is reflecteddagmed capital distribution in the consolidatedeshent of stockholders’ (deficiency) equity
for the year ended December 31, 2011. The tramsisrmade pursuant to the Contribution Agreemen€ 88ldings used the Company’s
Notes to satisfy and discharge outstanding CSCiHgdddebt. The recipients of the Notes or theitiafés then offered the Notes to investc
through an offering memorandum dated June 22, 20kith ultimately resulted in the Notes being higycthird party investors.

The Notes were issued under an indenture datetiJasme 30, 2011 (the “Indenture”).

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, AM&wobrks incurred deferred financing costs of $1,Bich are being amortized,
utilizing the effective interest method, to intdregpense over the term of the Notes.

Interest on the Notes accrues at the rate of 7 g&%annum and is payable semi-annually in arreaaouary 15 and July 15 of each
year, commencing on January 15, 2C

The Notes may be redeemed, in whole or in pagngttime on or after July 15, 2016, at a redemppigce equal to 103.875% of the
principal amount thereof (plus accrued and unpatierést thereon, if any, to the date of such rediem)p declining annually to 100% of the
principal amount thereof (plus accrued and unpaterést thereon, if any, to the date of such rediempbeginning on July 15, 2019.

In addition, if AMC Networks experiences a “ChargjeControl” (as defined in the Indenture), the hesklof the Notes may require AMC
Networks to repurchase for cash all or a portiothefr Notes at a price equal to 101% of the pgatamount thereof (plus accrued and un|
interest thereon, if any, to the date of such relpase).

The Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecureslthasertain of AMC Networks’ existing and futurendestic restricted subsidiaries
(the “Subsidiary Guarantors”), in accordance with Indenture. Cablevision is not a guarantor of, @oes not otherwise have any obligations
relating to, the Notes.

AMC Networks is a holding company and has no indepat assets or operations of its own, the guazantader the Notes are full and
unconditional and joint and several, and any sudses of AMC Networks other than the Subsidiarya@untors are minor. There are no
restrictions on the ability of AMC Networks or aaf/the Subsidiary Guarantors to obtain funds fresrsubsidiaries by dividend or loan.

The Indenture contains certain affirmative and tiggaovenants applicable to AMC Networks and ib8diary Guarantors, including
restrictions on their ability to incur additionaldebtedness, consummate certain asset sales, nvalsénients in entities that are not “Restricted
Subsidiaries” (as defined in the Indenture), créiates on their assets, enter into certain afilimansactions and make certain restricted
payments, including restrictions on AMC Networkbildy to pay dividends on, or repurchase, its coomnstock.

AMC Networks entered into a registration rightsesgnent, dated as of June 30, 2011 (the “Registr&ights Agreement”), among
AMC Networks, the Subsidiary Guarantors and thgahpurchasers of the Notes, pursuant to which ANKIworks agreed to file a registrat
statement with the Securities and Exchange Comomg55EC”) with respect to an offer to exchange Mwes for registered notes which will
have terms
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identical in all material respects to the Notesegtdhat the registered notes will not contain tethat provide for restrictions on transfer, and
use its commercially reasonable best efforts teedlie exchange offer registration statement telotared effective by the SEC by July 1,
2012. In certain circumstances, AMC Networks maydupiired to file a shelf registration statemerthwihe SEC registering the resale of the
Notes by the holders thereof, in lieu of an excleaoffer to such holders. AMC Networks will be remdl to pay specified additional interest
the Notes if it fails to comply with its registrati obligations under the Registration Rights Agresin

Summary of Debt Maturities

Total amounts payable by the Company under itouardebt obligations (excluding capital leasesytamiding as of December 31, 2011
are as follows:

Years Ending December 31

2012 $ 5,95(
2013 18,95(
2014 147,20(
2015 203,70(
2016 231,95(
Thereaftel 1,714,27!

RNS Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes Regkbon
RNS Senior Notes

In April 2011, Rainbow National Services LLC (“RNS@a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the Compaissued a notice of
redemption to holders of its 8 3/4% senior notes Saptember 2012. In connection therewith, on M&xy2011 RNS redeemed 100% of the
outstanding senior notes at a redemption priceleéqu®D0% of the principal amount of the notes 80&,000, plus accrued and unpaid interest
of $5,250 to the redemption date. In order to fthmiMay 13, 2011 redemption, the Company borrovgaD$00 under its $300,000 revolving
credit facility which existed prior to the Closiirate. The Company used cash on hand to fund thaeratyof accrued and unpaid interest of
$5,250. In connection with the redemption, the Canyprecorded a write-off of the related unamortideterred financing costs and a loss on
extinguishment of debt of $1,186 and $350, respelsti in the consolidated statement of income fieryear ended December 31, 2011.

RNS Senior Subordinated Notes (tender prices petenia dollars)

On June 15, 2011, RNS announced that it commencadhatender offer (the “Tender Offer”) for allitsf outstanding $325,000
aggregate principal amount 10 3/8% senior suboteéhaotes due 2014 (the “RNS Senior Subordinateddlpfor total consideration of
$1,039.58 per $1,000 principal amount of noteséesd for purchase, consisting of tender offer aarsition of $1,029.58 per $1,000 principal
amount of notes plus an early tender premium ofg#0$1,000 principal amount of notes. The Tend&rQvas made in connection with the
Distribution of AMC Networks by Cablevision and wssbject to certain conditions, including the coatioin of the Distribution.

In connection with the Tender Offer, on June 3A,2BNS redeemed 100% of the outstanding $325,00@eggte principal amount of
the RNS Senior Subordinated Notes. The Company psegeds from borrowings under the Credit Facibtjund the redemption, and
payment of fees and accrued and unpaid interekt bfl46. Tender premiums aggregating $12,864, aldtigaccretion to the principal amoi
and other transaction costs of $1,321 have be@nmded in loss on extinguishment of debt in the obdated statement of
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income for the year ended December 31, 2011. Tlhteceunamortized deferred financing costs aggiegatpproximately $2,455 were written
off and recorded in write-off of deferred financiogsts in the consolidated statement of incoméh®iyear ended December 31, 2011.

RNS Credit Facility Repayment

Outstanding borrowings under the RNS term loarifg@nd revolving credit facility were $425,000ch$50,000, respectively, at
December 31, 2010. In connection with the DistiitmutRNS repaid amounts then outstanding unddXNS credit facility at June 30, 2011 of
$412,500 under its term A loan facility and $30@ @@ der its revolving credit facility which aggregd $713,785, including accrued and
unpaid interest and fees to the repayment datera 30, 2011. The Company used proceeds from borgswinder the Credit Facility to fund
the repayment. The related unamortized deferrehéimg costs aggregating approximately $2,062 weitéen off and recorded in write-off of
deferred financing costs in the consolidated statéraf income for the year ended December 31, 2011.

RMH Promissory Note with Madison Square Garden

As of December 31, 2009, Madison Square Garden, &.8ubsidiary of The Madison Square Garden ComfahSG”), a related party
of Cablevision, had extended advances aggregatifg,800 to RMH. On January 28, 2010, in conneatiith the distribution of MSG from
Cablevision, the advances were replaced with a igsory note from RMH to Madison Square Garden, ha¥ing a principal amount of
$190,000, an interest rate of 3.25% and a matdstg of June 30, 2010. In March 2010, the $190gi®ddebtedness was repaid by the
Company to MSG, including $914 of interest accrfrech January 28, 2010 through the date of repaynvenith was funded by a capital
contribution from Cablevision.

Note 9. Fair Value Measurement

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to atdun techniques that are used to measure faievakt are either observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect assumptitar&et participants would use in pricing an asséibility based on market data obtained
from independent sources while unobservable ingilsct a reporting entitg’ pricing based upon their own market assumptidhe.fair value
hierarchy consists of the following three levels:

» Level —Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets.

» Level lI—Quoted prices for similar instruments ictige markets; quoted prices for identical or sanihstruments in markets that
are not active; and mocderived valuations whose inputs are observablehmse significant value drivers are observa

» Level lll—Instruments whose significant value drivers arebseovable

The following table presents for each of thesedrihy levels, the Comparg/financial assets and liabilities that are meakatdair valur
on a recurring basis at December 31, 2011 and Diaee81, 2010:

Level | Level Il Level Il Total

At December 31, 2011
Assets:

Cash equivalents( $202,27¢ $ — $ — $202,27¢
Liabilities:

Interest rate swap contrar $ — $19,09! $ — $ 19,09
At December 31, 2010
Assets:

Cash equivalents(: $ 78,90¢ $ — $ — $ 78,90¢

(@) Represents the Compé's investment in funds that invest primarily in mpmearket securities
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The Company’s cash equivalents at December 31, 260d December 31, 2010 are classified within Léweélthe fair value hierarchy
because they are valued using quoted market prices.

The Company’s interest rate swap contracts (digcligsNote 10 below) at December 31, 2011 are ifledsvithin Level 1l of the fair
value hierarchy and their fair values are deterohin&sed on a market approach valuation techniqueuies readily observable market
parameters and the consideration of counterpaky ri

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate fair value of each class of financialrunstents for which it is practicable
estimate that value:

Credit Facility Debt, Senior Notes and Senior Sulirmaited Notes

The fair values of each of the Company’s debt imaents are based on quoted market prices for the sa similar issues or on the
current rates offered to the Company for instrummerfithe same remaining maturities.

The carrying values and estimated fair values efGbmpany’s financial instruments, excluding thibee are carried at fair value in the
consolidated balance sheets are summarized as/ollo

December 31, 2011

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value
Debt instruments
Credit facility debi $1,604,841 $1,550,96!
Senior note: 686,43 761,25(
$2,291,28I $2,312,211
December 31, 201/
Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value
Debt instruments
Credit facility debt(a $ 475,00( $ 475,00(
Senior note: 299,55; 300, 75(
Senior subordinated not 324,07: 337,18¢
$1,098,62: $1,112,93:

(&) The carrying value of the Compé's credit facility debt at December 31, 2010, whiche interest at variable rates, approximatedaits
value.

Fair value estimates related to the Company’s mhslituments presented above are made at a spggifitin time, based on relevant
market information and information about the fin@ahmstrument. These estimates are subjectiveatore and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgments and therefore octubbe determined with precision. Changes in assiemptould significantly affect the
estimates.

Note 10. Derivative Financial Instruments

To manage interest rate risk, the Company entéosniterest rate swap contracts to adjust the amafuiotal debt that is subject to
variable interest rates. Such contracts effectifi@lyhe borrowing rates on floating
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rate debt to limit the exposure against the riskisihg interest rates. The Company does not éntelinterest rate swap contracts for
speculative or trading purposes and it has onlgredtinto interest rate swap contracts with finahicistitutions that it believes are creditwor
counterparties. The Company monitors the finaringtitutions that are counterparties to its interate swap contracts and to the extent
possible diversifies its swap contracts among warimounterparties to mitigate exposure to any sifighncial institution.

In November 2008, the Company entered into inteegstswap contracts with a notional amount of $380 to effectively fix borrowing
rates on a substantial portion of the Company’s théstanding RNS floating rate debt. The interat swap contracts matured in November
2009. These contracts were not designated as héatgescounting purposes. For the year ended Deee3ih 2009, realized losses were
$3,237, which are reflected in interest expengbénconsolidated statement of income.

In 2011, the Company entered into primarily amantzinterest rate swap contracts to effectivelydocrowing rates on a substantial
portion of the Company'floating rate debt on the New AMC Networks Délitese contracts are designated as cash flow héalgascounting
and tax purposes and have varying maturities rgngom September 2015 to July 2017. The Compangsass, both at the hedge’s inception
and on an ongoing basis, hedge effectiveness lmastte overall changes in the fair value of theri@st rate swap contracts. Hedge
effectiveness of the interest rate swap contradb@sed on a hypothetical derivative methodology: ikeffective portion of the interest rate
swap contracts is recorded in current-period egmin

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has intea¢stswap contracts outstanding with notional amaggregating $935,000, which
includes swap contracts with notional amounts agggieg $200,000 that are effective beginning J@¥2 The aggregate fair values of inte
rate swap contracts at December 31, 2011 werdititiieof $19,091 (included in other liabilitieshccumulated other comprehensive loss
consists of $12,027 of cumulative unrealized lossetsof tax, on the floating-to-fixed interestaatwaps. Interest expense in the consolidated
statement of income for the year ended Decembe2(@®l1 includes $4,628 relating to the interest satap contracts. As a result of these
transactions, the interest rate paid on approxiyné&@% of the Company’s debt (excluding capitakkes) as of December 31, 2011 is
effectively fixed (30% being fixed rate obligatioasd 32% effectively fixed through utilization dfetse interest rate swap contracts). At
December 31, 2011, the Company’s interest rate ftasthedges were highly effective, in all materiespects.

The Company’s risk management objective and styakgétl respect to interest rate swap contracte rotect the Company against
adverse fluctuations in interest rates by reduisgxposure to variability in cash flows relatitoginterest payments on a portion of its
outstanding debt. The Company is meeting its obvjedty hedging the risk of changes in its cash #dimterest payments) attributable to
changes in the LIBOR index rate, the designatedhmeark interest rate being hedged (the “hedged)risk an amount of the Company’s debt
principal equal to the then-outstanding swap natiofihe forecasted interest payments are deemieel poobable of occurring.

Note 11. Leases
Operating Leases

Certain subsidiaries of the Company lease offieezs@nd equipment under long-term non-cancelatdeatipg lease agreements which
expire at various dates through 2019. The leasesrghy provide for fixed annual rentals plus certather costs or credits. Costs associated
with such operating leases are recognized on igstrine basis over the initial lease term. Thiedence between rent expense and rent paid i
recorded as deferred rent. Rent expense for ths wealed December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 amotm&i8,312, $12,363 and $14,078,
respectively.
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The minimum future annual payments for the Compsoyerating leases related to continuing operafeith initial or remaining terms
in excess of one year) during the next five yesomflanuary 1, 2012 through December 31, 2016lmredfter, at rates now in force are as
follows:

2012 $14,44¢
2013 15,471
2014 15,50:
2015 15,70(
2016 15,73¢
Thereaftel 21,86:

Capital Leases
Future minimum capital lease payments as of DeceBihe2011 are as follows:

2012 $ 2,79¢
2013 2,79¢
2014 2,79¢
2015 2,79¢
2016 2,79¢
Thereaftel 9,00¢
Total minimum lease paymer 22,98¢

Less amount representing interest (at ¢-10.4%) 7,31))
Present value of net minimum future capital leasgnents 15,677

Less principal portion of current installme (1,319
Long-term portion of obligations under capital lea $14,36:

Note 12. Income Taxes
Income tax expense attributable to continuing djra consists of the following components:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Current expense
Federal $ 2,332 $ — $ —
State and foreig 6,48¢ 4,36( 3,32¢
8,82- 4,36( 3,32¢
Deferred expenst
Federal 62,13 62,07¢ 46,95¢
State 7,02¢ 18,66¢ 15,01¢
69,16( 80,74« 61,97¢
Tax expense relating to uncertain tax positionguiting accrued intere 6,26¢€ 2,96¢ 5,10¢
Income tax expens $84,24¢ $88,07: $70,40"
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Income tax expense attributable to discontinuedaifms is classified as deferred income tax expémsall periods presented (see Note
5).

A reconciliation of the federal statutory incomg tate to the effective income tax rate is as feo

Years Ended December 31

2011 20 2008
U.S. federal statutory income tax ri 35% 35% 35%
State and local income taxes, net of federal be 4 5 6
Changes in the valuation allowar @ 1 1
Change in the state rate used to measure defaxed, inet of federal — —
benefit 1
Tax expense relating to uncertain tax positiondputing accrued intere:
net of deferred tax benefi _ 2 _1 2
Effective income tax rat _40% _43% _44%

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant components of deferred tax &sseliabilities at December 31, 2011
and 2010 are as follows:

December 31
2011 2010
Deferred Tax Asset (Liability
Current
NOLs and tax credit carry forwar: $ 55,32 $ —
Compensation and benefit ple 7,32 3,23¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun 1,02¢ 2,72¢
Other liabilities 127 1,821
Deferred tax assi 63,80: 7,781
Valuation allowanct (4,529 (265)
Net deferred tax asset, curr 59,27 7,51¢
Noncurrent
NOLs and tax credit carry forwar: 22,731 120,68
Compensation and benefit ple 10,94« 22,96¢
Fixed assets and intangible as¢ 14,77 18,78:
Interest rate swap contrac 7,064 —
Other liabilities 4,37 3,68¢
Deferred tax assi 59,89: 166,12:
Valuation allowanct (4,257) (5,66%)
Net deferred tax asset, noncurr 55,64 160,45:
Investments in partnershi (107,549 (119,209
Deferred tax liability, noncurrel (107,544 (119,209
Net deferred tax asset (liability), noncurr (51,909 41,25(
Total net deferred tax ass $ 7,361 $ 48,76¢
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At December 31, 2011, the Company had federal petating loss carry forwards (“NOLs”) of approxiralgt $143,000, expiring on
various dates from 2023 through 2025 and foreigrctadit carry forwards of approximately $14,00@ieixg on various dates from 2014
through 2021.

At December 31, 2011, the liability for uncertaéx fpositions was $10,465, excluding the relatedussztinterest liability of $2,216 and
deferred tax assets of $4,484. All of such unretzmghtax benefits, if recognized, would reduce@ompany’s income tax expense and
effective tax rate. As of the Distribution datedilities for uncertain tax positions of $56,408¢aued interest of $1,284, and the related
deferred tax assets of $2,358 were eliminated eaoorded as a deemed capital contribution, netarctimsolidated statement of
stockholders’ (deficiency) equity as the liabilftyr such uncertain tax positions became an obbigadf Cablevision. Under the Compagylrax
Disaffiliation Agreement with Cablevision, Cablews is liable for all income taxes of the Compaay fperiods prior to the Distribution except
for New York City Unincorporated Business Tax.

In January 2011, the Company settled a New York Gitincorporated Business Tax audit for the ye@@&32hrough 2005 for $1,361 in
additional tax plus accrued interest of $892. Titg &f New York is currently auditing the CompasyUnincorporated Business Tax returns
the years 2006 through 2008.

A reconciliation of the beginning to ending amoahthe liability for uncertain tax positions (exdiang related accrued interest and
deferred tax benefit) is as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 63,58(
Increases related to prior year tax positi 2,18
Increases related to current year tax posit 2,47:
Settlement: (1,367)
Elimination of liability that became an obligatioh Cablevision upol

the Distribution (56,409

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 10,46¢

Interest expense (net of the related deferred ¢aetit) of $969 has been recognized during the gaded December 31, 2011 and is
included in income tax expense in the consolidatatement of income. At December 31, 2011 and 2&djability for uncertain tax positio
and related accrued interest noted above are iedlirdother liabilities in the consolidated balasbeets.

For periods prior to the Distribution, the Compantgxable income or loss was included in the cédatad federal and certain state and
local income tax returns of Cablevision. Consedyeiricome tax expense for such periods is baseth@taxable income of the Company c
separate tax return basis. The reductions in taagable during such periods realized by the Complarugh the utilization of Cablevision’s
NOLs or by Cablevision through the utilization bétCompan’'s NOLs or credits are reflected as deemed capitatributions or distributions,
respectively, in the periods of utilization and adjusted for true-ups in subsequent periods. Atingly, deemed capital contributions, net of
$36,867 and $52,824 were recorded in the conselidstatement of stockholders’ (deficiency) equitythe years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively, to reflect the estimated 8I6f Cablevision used by the Company. In additdeemed capital distributions, net of
$2,586 and $20,066 were recorded in the consotidgteements of stockholders’ (deficiency) equitythe years ended December 31, 2011
and 2009, respectively, to reflect the estimated Nerk City Unincorporated Business Tax credits &@Ls, respectively, of the Company
used by Cablevision.

As a result of the Distribution, the following adjments to the deferred tax assets and liabiliter® recorded as a deemed capital
distribution, net in the consolidated statemergtotkholders’ (deficiency) equity for the year edd®cember 31, 2011: (i) a decrease in the
net deferred tax assets of $2,302 to reflect tiveito
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stand-alone estimated applicable corporate tag rétpa decrease in the deferred tax asset fareshased awards of $7,292 to eliminate the
portion of the deferred tax asset relating to st@®ed compensation expense attributable to Caldewisrporate employees that was alloc
to the Company prior to the Distribution, and (d@idecrease in the deferred tax asset of $1,3deflext that certain compensation awards are
no longer anticipated to be realized as a tax demtupursuant to Internal Revenue Code Sectionrh§2(

Note 13. Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company classifiesgezations into two reportable segments: Natioretivgrks, and International and
Other. These reportable segments are strategindsssunits that are managed separately.

The Company generally allocates all corporate aeadicosts, including such costs as executive salarid benefits, costs of maintaining
corporate headquarters, facilities and common atifipactions (such as human resources, legal, fieatax, accounting, audit, treasury, risk
management, strategic planning and informationrteltgy) as well as sales support functions andtimeeand production services, to the
Company’s two reportable segments.

The Company evaluates segment performance basselveral factors, of which the primary financial @ is business segment
adjusted operating cash flow (defined as operatingme (loss) before depreciation and amortizatbiare-based compensation expense or
benefit and restructuring expense or credit), a@&AP measure. The Company has presented the canfmothat reconcile adjusted
operating cash flow to operating income, an acce@@AP measure. Information as to the operatiorth®Company’s reportable segments is
set forth below.

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Revenues, net from continuing operation
National Networks $1,082,35! $ 994,57 $896,49:
International and Othe 125,57 104,49¢ 95,92
Inter-segment elimination (20,190 (20,772) (18,770
$1,187,74. $1,078,30! $973,64:

Intersegment eliminations are primarily revenues receghby the International and Other segment foliteasing of its program righ
by the national programming networks and transmissevenues recognized by AMC Networks Broadcastifigchnology.

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Inter -segment revenue
National Networks $ (459 $ (325 $ (219
International and Othe (19,730 (20,44 (18,55)

$(20,190 $(20,772) $(18,770
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Reconciliation (by Segment and in Total) of Adjustd Operating Cash Flow to Operating Income (Loss) fsm Continuing Operations

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Adjusted operating cash flow (deficit) from continung
operations
National Networks $447,55! $ 419,05: $ 380,82«
International and Othe (4,97¢) (14,68¢) (13,559
Inter-segment elimination (866) (3,08¢€) (3,179
$441,711 $ 401,27¢ $ 364,09¢
Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009
Depreciation and amortization included in continuirg operations
National Networks $(85,707) $ (92,739 $ (89,609
International and Othe (14,14) (13,72() (16,90

$(99,849)  $(106,45)  $(106,50/)

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Share-based compensation expense included in continui
operations
National Networks $(12,587) $ (13,79) $ (12,40Y
International and Othe (3,009 (3,41%) (2,31

$(15,58) $ (17,200 $ (14,729

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Restructuring credit (expense) included in continuag operations
National Networks $ — $ — $ —
International and Othe 24C 2,21¢ (5,162)
$  24C $  2,21¢ $ (5,167
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Operating income (loss) from continuing operation:
National Networks $349,27: $ 312,52! $ 278,81t
International and Othe (21,890 (29,609 (37,939
Inter-segment elimination (866) (3,08¢€) (3,179
$326,51¢ $ 279,83¢ $ 237,70¢
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A reconciliation of reportable segment amounth®Company’s consolidated balances is as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Operating income (loss) from continuing operationdefore
income taxes
Total operating income for reportable segmu $326,51¢ $279,83t $237,70¢
Items excluded from operating incon
Interest expens (95,870 (75,800 (79,779
Interest incom 1,074 2,38¢ 83€
Write-off of deferred financing cos (6,24%) — —
Loss on extinguishment of de (14,72¢) — —
Miscellaneous, ne (139 (162 187
Income from continuing operations before incomess $210,61( $206,26: $158,95¢

The following table summarizes the Company’s cégitpenditures by reportable segment:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Capital Expenditures
National Networks $ 2,817 $ 1,60( $ 2,68¢
International and Othe 12,55¢ 15,64 10,73¢
$15,37 $17,24: $13,41¢

Substantially all revenues and assets of the Coyngemnattributed to or located in the U.S.

Note 14. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to a concentration of credit risk consighprily of cash and cash equivalents
and trade accounts receivable. Cash is investatirey market funds and bank time deposits. The @osgnmonitors the financial institutions
and money market funds where it invests its cashcash equivalents with diversification among ceqgperties to mitigate exposure to any
single financial institution. The Compasyemphasis is primarily on safety of principal &éiqdidity and secondarily on maximizing the yield
its investments.

Two customers accounted for the following perceasanf the Company’s revenues, net for the yearsdebBecember 31:

2011 201C 200¢
Customer 1C% 11% 11%
Customer ¢ 12% 12% 13%
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Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

Future cash payments required under arrangemergagnt to contracts entered into by the Companlygmormal course of business as
of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

More than 5
Year 1 Years 2- 3 Years 4-5 years Total
Off balance sheet arrangemet
Purchase obligations(; $147,22¢ $ 4584. $ 151¢ $ 61 $ 195,19¢
Operating lease obligations( 14,44¢ 30,98( 31,43« 21,86: 98,72¢
Guarantees(< 49,48¢ 152 — — 49,63¢
211,16¢ 76,97¢ 32,95( 22,47¢ 343,56¢
Contractual obligations reflected on the balanaes!
Debt obligations(4 105,20¢ 362,19¢ 618,00: 2,007,52 3,092,93.
Program rights obligatior 146,33¢ 267,58¢ 173,99( 31,111 619,02¢
Capital lease obligations( 2,79¢ 5,592 5,592 9,00¢ 22,98¢
Contract obligations(€ 2,65 388 143 — 3,18:
257,00: 635, 76( 797,72 2,047,641 3,738,13.
Total $468,16¢! $712,73: $830,67° $2,070,12: $4,081,69

(1) Purchase obligation amounts not reflected erbtdance sheet consist primarily of long-term paiogrights obligations that have not yet
met the criteria to be recorded in the balancets

(2) Operating lease commitments represent future mimimpayment obligations on various l-term, noncancelable leases for office sf
and office equipmen

(3) Consists primarily of a guarantee of payments pooauction service company for certain productielated costs

(4) Includes future payments of principal and inteckst on the Compa’s credit facility debt and senior notes. Interestariable rate det
is calculated based on the prevailing interestaatef December 31, 201

(5) Reflects the principal amount of capital leasegdtions, including interes

(6) Represents primarily long-term carriage fegsapée to distributors and additional annual reqlipayments relating to the acquisitions of
film website businesses in 2008 and 2(

See Note 2 for a discussion of the Company’s pragights obligations. See Note 8 for a discussibthe Company’s long-term debt.
See Note 11 for a discussion of the Company’s Eedlee contractual obligations table above doesntide any liabilities for uncertain
income tax positions due to the fact that the Cargpg unable to reasonably predict the ultimate amar timing of settlement of our
liabilities for uncertain income tax positions. Becember 31, 2011, the liability for uncertain pesitions was $10,465, excluding the related
accrued interest liability of $2,216 and deferraxi assets of $4,484. See Note 12 for further didonof the Company’s income taxes.

DISH Network, LLC (“DISH Network”) was issued a 20#terest in VOOM HD, the Company’s subsidiary @igrg VOOM, and that
20% interest will not be diluted until $500,000cash has been invested in VOOM HD by the Compamyth@ fifth or eighth anniversary of
the effective date of the investment agreementteiraination of the affiliation agreement by DISHtWork, or other specified events, DISH
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Network has a put right to require a whi-owned subsidiary of RMH to purchase all of its igginterests in VOOM HD at fair value. On the
seventh or tenth anniversary of the effective déthe investment agreement, or the second anrimedate of the termination of the affiliation
agreement by DISH Network, a wholly-owned subsidiafrRMH has a call right to purchase all of DIStdtiWork’s ownership in VOOM HD
at fair value. The table above does not includefatyre payments that would be required upon thexase of the put right, if any. See also
“DISH Network Contract Dispute” discussion below.

Legal Matters
DISH Network Contract Dispute

In 2005, subsidiaries of the Company entered igteements with EchoStar Communications Corporatiahits affiliates by which
EchoStar Media Holdings Corporation acquired a 20&rest in VOOM HD and EchoStar Satellite LLC (fredecessor to DISH Network)
agreed to distribute VOOM on DISH Network for ayi#ar term. The affiliation agreement with DISH Netw for such distribution provides
that if VOOM HD fails to spend $100,000 per yearjgct to reduction to the extent that the numiiefiered channels is reduced to fewer
than 21), up to a maximum of $500,000 in the agagegon VOOM, DISH Network may seek to terminae digreement under certain
circumstances. On January 30, 2008, DISH Networkqrted to terminate the affiliation agreementeefive February 1, 2008, based on its
assertion that VOOM HD had failed to comply witlistepending provision in 2006. On January 31, 28@30OM HD sought and obtained a
temporary restraining order from the New York SupeeCourt for New York County prohibiting DISH Netwkdrom terminating the
affiliation agreement. In conjunction with its rezgh for a temporary restraining order, VOOM HD aisquested a preliminary injunction and
filed a lawsuit against DISH Network asserting th#$H Network did not have the right to terminédte ffiliation agreement. In a decision
filed on May 5, 2008, the court denied VOOM HD’stina for a preliminary injunction. On or about M&g, 2008, DISH Network ceased
distribution of VOOM on its DISH Network. On May 22008, VOOM HD amended its complaint to seek dasdgr DISH Network’s
improper termination of the affiliation agreeme@t June 24, 2008, DISH Network answered VOOM HD'eaded complaint and asserted
counterclaims alleging breach of contract and bBredche duty of good faith and fair dealing wittspect to the affiliation agreement. On
July 14, 2008, VOOM HD replied to DISH Network’swterclaims. The Company believes that the coulatiens asserted by DISH Network
are without merit. VOOM HD and DISH Network eacledi cross-motions for summary judgment. In Noven#8r0, the court denied both
parties’ cross-motions for summary judgment bunhtgd VOOM HD’s motion for sanctions based on DISetwWbrk’s spoliation of evidence
as well as its motion to exclude DISH Network’sngipal damages expert. DISH Network appealed ttadte two rulings. On January 31,
2012, the Appellate Division of the New York Supee@ourt issued a decision affirming (i) the triald’s finding of spoliation and impositis
of the sanction of an adverse inference at triad, @) the trial court’s decision to exclude DIStetwork’s damages expert. On February 6,
2012, DISH Network filed a motion seeking leavenirthe Appellate Division to appeal the order. VO®ID has opposed the motion. Further
proceedings in the trial court remain stayed pemétire court’s ruling on the motion.

In connection with the Distribution, CSC HoldingsdaAMC Networks and Rainbow Programming HoldingsClan indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of AMC Networks (collectively, tt®MC Parties”) entered into an agreement (the “Vi@Qitigation Agreement”) which
provides that from and after the Distribution d&&C Holdings retains full control over the pendiitigation with DISH Network. Any
decision with respect to settlement will be madetfp by CSC Holdings and the AMC Parties. CSC Hiodp and the AMC Parties will share
equally in the proceeds (including in the valuao§ non-cash consideration) of any settlementral fudgment in the pending litigation with
DISH Network that are received by subsidiarieshef Company from VOOM HD. The AMC Parties are resilale for the legal fees and costs
until such costs reach an agreed upon thresholhiah point CSC Holdings and the AMC Parties Wilar such fees and expenses equally.
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Broadcast Music, Inc. Matter

Broadcast Music, Inc. (“BMI”), an organization tHatenses the performance of musical compositidritsanembers, had alleged that
certain of the Company’s subsidiaries require enge to exhibit musical compositions in its catal®gll agreed to interim fees based on
revenues covering certain periods (generally thingeeommencing from the launch or acquisition afte of the Company’s programming
networks). In May 2011, the parties reached aneageamt with respect to the license fees for an atnihian approximated the amount
previously accrued, which was $7,040 at Decembg2@10.

Other Legal Matters

On April 15, 2011, Thomas C. Dolan, a directorted Company and Executive Vice President, StratagyDevelopment, in the Office
the Chairman and a director of Cablevision, filddwasuit against Cablevision and RMH in New YorkpBme Court. The lawsuit raises
compensation-related claims (seeking approximéi#ly,000) related to events in 2005. The matteeisgphandled under the direction of an
independent committee of the board of director€alblevision. In connection with the Distribution riegment, Cablevision indemnified the
Company and RMH against any liabilities and expsmskated to this lawsuit. Based on the indemnificeand Cablevision’s and the
Company’s assessment of this possible loss comtaygeo provision has been made for this matténénconsolidated financial statements.

In addition to the matters discussed above, thefamy is party to various lawsuits and claims indghginary course of business.
Although the outcome of these other matters cabagdredicted with certainty and the impact of thalfresolution of these other matters on
the Companys results of operations in a particular subseqregrting period is not known, management doedali¢ve that the resolution
these matters will have a material adverse effedhe financial position of the Company or the iapidf the Company to meet its financial
obligations as they become due.

Note 16. Equity and Long-Term Incentive Plans

In connection with the Distribution, the Companyptéd the AMC Networks Inc. 2011 Employee StockRthe 2011 Employee Stoc
Plan”) and the AMC Networks Inc. 2011 Stock PlanNMmn-Employee Directors (the “2011 Non-Employeeedior Plan”).

Under the 2011 Employee Stock Plan, the Compaauytisorized to grant incentive stock options, noalified stock options, restricted
shares, restricted stock units, SARs and othetyetpased awards. The Company may grant awardgfto 6,000,000 shares of AMC
Networks Class A Common Stock (subject to certdingtments). Stock options and SARs under the Hiployee Stock Plan must
granted with an exercise price of not less tharfahrenarket value of a share of AMC Networks Clas€ommon Stock on the date of grant
and must expire no later than 10 years from the dhgrant. The terms and conditions of awardstgchander the 2011 Employee Stock Plan,
including vesting and exercisability, are deterrdilg the Compensation Committee of the Board oé@urs (“Compensation Committee”)
and may include terms or conditions based uporopegnce criteria.

Subsequent to the Distribution through Decembe81,1, the Company granted 442,135 restricted shaaeds to certain employees
under the 2011 Employee Stock Plan, that vest ethilnd anniversary of the grant date. The vestiitgria for 186,171 of those restricted
shares also includes the achievement of certafionpeance targets. As of December 31, 2011, thex@ 818,164 share awards available for
future grant under the 2011 Employee Stock Plan.

Under the 2011 Non-Employee Director Plan, the Camygds authorized to grant non-qualified stock apsi, restricted stock units,
restricted shares, SARs and other equity-baseddsw@he Company may grant awards for up to 165sb@des of AMC Networks Class A
Common Stock (subject to certain adjustments).lStqptions
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under the 2011 Non-Employee Director Plan mustrbatgd with an exercise price of not less tharfdfremarket value of a share of AMC
Networks Class A Common Stock on the date of gradtmust expire no later than 10 years from the dhgrant. The terms and conditions
awards granted under the 2011 Non-Employee Dirddttar, including vesting and exercisability, aréed@ined by the Compensation
Committee. Unless otherwise provided in an applealward agreement, stock options granted undeipthin will be fully vested and
exercisable, and restricted stock units grantecutids plan will be fully vested, upon the dategodint.

In connection with the Distribution, non-employeeedtors were issued 61,546 shares of AMC Netw@iess A Common Stock and
17,981 AMC Networks stock options under the 201h{&mployee Director Plan. In August 2011, the Conypgranted 38,951 restricted
stock units to non-employee directors under thel20dn-Employee Director Plan, which vested on ttemgdate. As of December 31, 2011,
there are 46,522 share awards available for figraet under the 2011 Non-Employee Director Plan.

Treatment of Share-Based Payment Awards After thd@ Networks Distribution

In connection with the Distribution and as providedin Cablevision’s equity plans, each stock optand SAR outstanding at the
effective date of the Distribution became two stopkions or two SARs, as the case may be: (i) dtfe nespect to Cablevision’'s CNYG
Class A Common Stock and (ii) one with respechto@ompany’s Class A Common Stock. The existingase price of each stock
option/SAR was allocated between the existing Gasilen stock option/SAR and the Company’s new stopton/SAR based on the weighted
average trading price of Cablevision’s and the Camyfs common shares for the 10 trading days sulesgda the Distribution and the
underlying share amount took into account the is#ridution ratio. As a result of this adjustmespproximately 73.59% of the pistribution
exercise price of stock options/SARs was alloctdetie Cablevision stock options/SARs and approtema®6.41% was allocated to the
Company’s new stock options/SARSs.

On February 9, 2010, Cablevision distributed taiteckholders all of the outstanding common stddd8G (the “MSG Distribution”).
As a result of the Distribution and the MSG Distitibn, certain employees of MSG hold stock opti@®&Rs and restricted stock with respect
to AMC Networks Class A Common Stock. In additiar,a result of the MSG Distribution, certain empley of the Company hold MSG stc
options, SARs and restricted shares with respelt36& Class A Common Stock.

Stock Option Award Activity

The following table summarizes activity relating@ompany employees who held AMC Networks stockartifor the period from
July 1, 2011 (the day following the Distributiom) December 31, 2011:

Shares Under Option ) Weighted
Weighted Average
Performance Average Contractual Aggregate
Time Exercise Price
Vesting Vesting Term Intrinsic
Options Options Per Share (in years) Value(a)
Balance, July 1, 201 149,14° 2,50( $ 10.81 3.4z $ 4,40¢
Exercisec (12,60€) — $  11.5¢
Balance, December 31, 20 136,54: 2,50( $ 10.7¢ 3.0¢ $ 3,732
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 105,22¢ 2,50( $  11.2¢ 3.1¢ $ 2,83¢
Options expected to vest in the futi 31,31¢ — $ 8.9t 2.6¢ $ 89€

(&) The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated aglifierence between (i) the exercise price of théantying award and (ii) the quoted pri
of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock on DecemberZBil1 or July 1, 2011, as indicated, and Decer@beR011 in the case of the
stock options expected to vest in the futi
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In addition, the following table summarizes activielating to Cablevision and MSG employees wha #VIC Networks stock options
from July 1, 2011 (the day following the Distribani) to December 31, 2011:

Shares Under Option Weighted

Weighted Average
Performance Average Contractual Aggregate
Time Exercise Price
Vesting Vesting Term Intrinsic
Options Options Per Share (in years) Value(a)
Balance, July 1, 2011 1,503,55! 106,40( $ 11.7: 3.74 $45,20¢
Exercisec (271,219 (28,000 $ 11.57
Forfeited/Expirec (87,889 — $ 8.9t
Balance, December 31, 20 1,144,46! 78,40( $ 12.0Z 3.2¢ $31,25:¢
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 903,28t 78,40( $ 11.6¢ 3.11 $25,45¢
Options expected to vest in the futi 241,17 — $ 135 4.04 $ 5,79

(@) The aggregate intrinsic value is calculatethadifference between (i) the exercise price efthderlying award and (ii) the quoted price
of AMC Networks Class A Common Stock on DecemberZBil1 or July 1, 2011, as indicated, and Decer@beP011 in the case of the
stock options expected to vest in the futi

The Company does not record any share-based coatfmmexpense for AMC Networks stock options hetddablevision and MSG
employees, however such stock options do haveutidileffect on the Company’s net income per shiine. Company records share-based
compensation expense for Cablevision and MSG siptikns held by the Company’s employees.

Restricted Share Award Activity

The following table summarizes activity relating@ompany employees who held AMC Networks restrictegres from July 1, 2011 (t
day following the Distribution) to December 31, 201

Weighted
Average Fair
Number of
Number of Performance Value Per
Share at Date¢
Restricted Restricted
Shares Shares of Grant
Unvested award balance, July 1, 2! 435,15( 19,02: $ 20.67
Granted 255,96: 186,17: $ 36.0C
Forfeited (13,189 — $ 27.5E
Transfers 1,641 — $ 19.2¢
Unvested award balance, December 31, 2 679,57. 205,19: $ 28.2¢

F-38



Table of Contents

AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Contired)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

The following table summarizes activity relatingQablevision and MSG employees who held AMC Netwasdstricted shares from
July 1, 2011 (the day following the Distributiom) December 31, 2011:

Weighted
Average Fair
Number of
Performance Value Per
Number of Share at Dat¢
Restricted Restricted
Shares Shares of Grant
Unvested award balance, July 1, 2011 1,526,41 205,97 $ 18.9
Vested (57,267) (38,35() $ 16.1¢
Forfeited (101,499 (32,45() $ 20.9¢
Transfers (1,647 — $ 19.22
Unvested award balance, December 31, 2 1,366,01. 135,17¢ $ 18.67

Transfers included in the above tables representréamsfer of restricted stock awards for employeles transferred from Cablevision to
the Company during the period.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, 95,6 Irteslud AMC Networks Class A Common Stock previousued to employees of
Cablevision and MSG vested. In connection withahgloyees’ satisfaction of the statutory minimumuathholding obligations for the
applicable income and other employment taxes, 86¢®2hese shares, with an aggregate value of $1y8&re surrendered to the Company.
These acquired shares, as well as 147,132 forfeitedsted restricted shares have been classifigdasiry stock.

AMC Networks recognizes share-based compensatipense for restricted shares issued to its empldyassd on the grant date price of
AMC Networks Class A Common Stock using a straigig-amortization method, over the service peridte Company does not record any
share-based compensation expense for AMC Netweskdated shares held by Cablevision and MSG enggeyhowever such restricted
shares do have a dilutive effect on the Compangtsntome per share. The Company records sharetlsasgpensation expense for
Cablevision and MSG restricted shares held by th@iany’s employees.

Share-based compensation expense included in corginperations, a component of selling, generdladministrative expense, for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 v6eB1®] $16,267 and $13,716, respectively, relaiestjtity classified awards. Sh-
based compensation (credit) expense included itireong operations for liability classified awar(BARs) was $(423), $939 and $1,007 for
the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 28§$:ctively. Sharbased compensation has been reduced by estimateiti@s, which i:
based on historical experience. For periods padhé¢ Distribution, the Company’s share-based corsgion includes amounts related to
Company employees participating in the Cablevigiquity awards programs, as well as amounts retat€@blevision corporate employees
and non-employee directors to the extent allocaigtie Company. For periods after the Distributitwe, Company no longer receives an
allocation of share-based compensation expengedblevision corporate employees and non-employeetdis, including expense related to
the Company’s Executive Chairman with respect soplairticipation in the Cablevision equity awardsgoam (since he remained an executive
officer of Cablevision).

The Company receives income tax deductions relategistricted share, stock options or other ecaitprds granted to its employees by
the Company, Cablevision or MSG, but does not weceicome tax deductions for Company equity awaeldd by Cablevision or MSG
employees.
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Long-Term Incentive Plans

In June, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directorsapgd the AMC Networks Inc. 2011 Cash IncentivenRtae “2011 Cash Incentive
Plan™). Under the terms of the 2011 Cash Incerfilan, the Company is authorized to grant a cashdateacertain employees. The terms and
conditions of such awards are determined by the ggmsation Committee of the Company’s Board of Dies; may include the achievement
of certain performance criteria and may extendafperiod not to exceed ten years. During 2011Cthvapany granted three-year performance
awards to certain executive officers and other meaibf the Company’s management under the 2011 [@ashtive Plan.

In connection with the long-term incentive awardsrged under the 2011 Cash Incentive Plan, the @agnpecorded compensation
expense in continuing operations of $3,475 fonysar ended December 31, 2011. Such amount is atfwuperformance-based awards for
which the performance criteria had not yet beenaseif December 31, 2011 as such awards are basathievement of certain performance
criteria through December 31, 2013. The Companyakasued the pro-rata amount earned that it cuyrestieves will ultimately be paid
based upon the performance criteria establishethése performance-based awards. If the Compargegukntly determines that the
performance criteria for such awards is not proballbeing achieved, the Company would reversadtiseual in respect of such award at that
time.

Note 17. Benefit Plans

Through June 30, 2011, the date of the Distribytéentain employees of the Company participate@ablevision’s non-contributory,
qualified defined benefit cash balance pension fila “Cash Balance Pension Plan”) and non-corntifyunonqualified defined benefit exce
cash balance plan (the “Excess Cash Balance Planthnnection with the Cash Balance Pension Ptatlae Excess Cash Balance Plan
(collectively, the “Pension Plans”), the Companyswharged by Cablevision for credits made intoaoant established for each participant.
Such credits were based upon a percentage ofleligise pay and a market-based rate of return.

Certain employees of the Company participate inl€adion’s qualified defined contribution 401(k)véags plan (the “401(k) Plan”) and
non-qualified excess savings plan (the “Excessr8svPlan”). Under the 401(k) Plan, a tax-qualifiedrement savings plan, participating
Company employees may contribute into their plasoants a percentage of their eligible pay on areefax basis as well as a percentage of
their eligible pay on an after-tax basis. The Conypaakes matching contributions on behalf of paéting employees in accordance with the
terms of the 401(k) Plan. From the date of theribistion, in addition to the matching contributidhe Company will make a discretionary
year-end contribution to employee 401(k) Plan accoentsal to 4% of eligible compensation, subject tdate conditions.

The Excess Savings Plan is a non-qualified deferomepensation plan that operates in conjunctioh thie¢ 401(k) Plan. The Company
provides a matching contribution to the Excess i&g/Plan similar to the 401(k) Plan.

Total expense related to all benefit plans was@%,,87,285 and $6,973 for the years ended DeceBihe011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The Company does not provide postratnt benefits for any of its employees.
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Note 18. Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2011
Net income $ 126,45:
Other comprehensive los
Unrealized losses on interest rate sw (19,09)
Other comprehensive loss, before income ti (19,09)
Income tax benefit related to items of other corhprsive los! 7,064
Other comprehensive loss, net of income t: (12,02))
Comprehensive incormr $ 114,42

Comprehensive income equals net income for thesysaded December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2G@8e3hexpense in the
consolidated statement of income for the year efeémber 31, 2011 includes $4,628 relating tarttexest rate swap contracts.

Note 19. Related Party Transactions
Allocations

The Company provides services to and receivescrfiom Cablevision and MSG. Until the Distributidate, the consolidated financ
statements of the Company reflect the applicatfocedain cost allocation policies of Cablevisidianagement believes that these allocations
were made on a reasonable basis. However, it ipragticable to determine whether the charged amsaepresent amounts that might have
been incurred on a stand-alone basis, includiregseparate independent publicly owned companyeae tire no company-specific or
comparable industry benchmarks with which to mal@hsstimates. Further, as many of these transacéice conducted between subsidiaries
under common control of the Dolan Family, amouihigrged for these services may not represent amthattsight have been received or
incurred if the transactions were based upon alemgth negotiations.
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The following is a summary of the revenues and agps included in the Company’s consolidated statésra income related to
transactions with or charges from Cablevision:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Revenues, ne $23,05: $ 21,03: $23,31¢
Operating expense
Technical and operating expenses
Other support function $ 367 $ 561 $ 37€
Health and welfare plar 4,67: 4,18( 4,10¢
Total technical and operating expen $ 5,04( $ 4,741 $ 4,48¢
Selling, general and administrative expense:
Corporate general and administrative costs $19,01¢ $ 33,39¢ $33,13:
Management fee 13,95¢ 26,51 23,77:
Health and welfare plar 5,04¢ 4,02¢ 4,49
Advertising expens 2,54z 2,391 1,391
Other support function 794 23 23
Sales support and other functions, 2,17¢ 1,60z 1,20(C
Cablevision allocations of shi-based compensation expel 8,49( 17,20¢ 14,72%
Cablevision allocations of lo-term incentive plans expen 7,28¢ 16,20" 12,95t
Total selling, general and administrative expel $59,30" $101,36¢ $91,69(

The following is a summary of the revenues and agps included in the Company’s consolidated statésra income related to
transactions with or credits from MSG:

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Revenues, ne $ 8,83 $8,172 $ 8,48-
Operating expense
Technical and operating expenses
Program rights and production services cre $ — $ (770 $(6,52¢)
Total technical and operating expen $ — $ (770 $(6,52¢)
Selling, general and administrative expense:
Corporate general and administrative and otheritsr $(2,18¢ $(1,029) $(4,34¢)
Sales support and other functic (119 (109 (109
Total selling, general and administrative cre $(2,309) $(1,13¢) $(4,451
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Revenues, ne

The Company recorded affiliation fee revenues efrnet of amortization of deferred carriage feeslar affiliation agreements with
subsidiaries of Cablevision. In addition, AMC Netk® Broadcasting & Technology has entered into egents with MSG to provide various
transponder, technical and support services thr@0g0.

Operating Expenses
Production Services

The Company provides various studio productionisesvto MSG, for which the charges are reflected esduction of the related
expenses.

Other Support Functions

Certain related parties provide various digital rmexhd administrative support functions which prityanclude salaries and facilities
costs charged to the Company.

Health and Welfare Plans

Through December 31, 2011, employees of the Comparticipated in health and welfare plans sponsbye@ablevision. Health and
welfare benefit costs have generally been chargegddblevision based upon the proportionate numbpadicipants in the plans.

Corporate General and Administrative Costs, net

Through the Distribution date, general and adnmiaiiste costs, including costs of maintaining cogierheadquarters, facilities and
common support functions (such as executive managermuman resources, legal, finance, tax, accogingiudit, treasury, risk management,
strategic planning, information technology, ethgyve been charged to the Company by Cablevisioditiddally, the Company charges MSG
for a portion of the Company’leased facilities utilized by MSG. Such costeadted to the Company have been included in seljegeral an
administrative expenses and such cost reimbursemeatecorded as a reduction to selling, genathhdministrative expenses. Subsequent to
the Distribution date, amounts charged by Cablewisepresent charges pursuant to a transitioncgegreement. See also Transition Ser
Agreement discussion below.

Management Fees

Through the Distribution date, the Company paidl@&bion a management fee pursuant to a consuiingement between Cablevision
and certain of the Company’s subsidiaries. The uiting agreement was terminated on the Distributlate and the Company did not replace
it.

Advertising
The Company incurs advertising expenses chargeitbsidiaries of Cablevision.
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Sales Support and Other Functions, net

Through the Distribution date, subsidiaries of @atdion provided advertising sales support funaitmthe Company, which primarily
included salaries and general and administratigéscavhich were recorded as a charge to sellimgrgé and administrative expenses.
Additionally, the Company provides affiliation sugpfunctions to MSG, which primarily includes sads, facilities, and general and
administrative costs. These charges are recordadeduction to selling, general and administragixpenses.

Share-based Compensation and Long-Term IncentaesFExpense

Cablevision charged the Company through the Digtidin date its proportionate share of expensenpetits related to Cablevision’s
employee stock plans and Cablevision’s long-terceimive plans. Such amounts are included in selegeral and administrative expenses in
the consolidated statements of income. The long-tacentive plans are funded by the Company andeggde liabilities of $18,137 (which
includes $3,475 attributable to the Company’s 20hg-term incentive plan) and $28,934 related &séhplans are included in accrued
employee related costs and other liabilities inGleenpany’s consolidated balance sheets at Dece®ih@011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively. These liabilities include certainfpenance-based awards for which the performander@ihad not been met as of December 31,
2011 as such awards are based on achievementaihgeerformance criteria through December 31, 20h& Company has accrued the pro-
rata amount earned that it currently believes witimately be paid based upon the performancer@itstablished for these performance-based
awards. If it is subsequently determined that #adgsmance criteria for such awards is not probalbleeing achieved, the Company would
reverse the accrual in respect of such award atithe. As the obligations related to stock optéomd restricted share awards under the
Cablevision stock plans are satisfied by Cablenisibe allocation to the Company of its proportienshare of the related expenses through
June 30, 2011 is reflected as capital contributinrtee consolidated financial statements.

Treatment of Long-Term Incentive Plans After thetiihution

In 2011, 2010 and 2009, Cablevision granted these-performance awards to certain executive offie@d other members of the
Company’s management under Cablevision’s 2006 Gantive Plan. The 2009 awards were paid in M2@2. The Cablevision
performance metrics in the awards granted in 20k®ttain executive officers and other employeeb®iCompany were replaced with
Company performance metrics. The awards grantedrtain executive officers and other employeesief@ompany in March 2011 under the
Cablevision 2006 Cash Incentive Plan were replécddly 2011 by awards granted under the Compa2@1d Cash Incentive Plan, and the
Cablevision performance metrics related to thosardsvwere replaced with Company performance methicounts applicable to employees
of the Company are and will continue to be refldas liabilities, based on achievement of certairiggmance criteria as noted above, in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets until settled

Deferred compensation awards granted by Cablevimiosuant to Cablevision’s Long-Term Incentive Rlahich was superseded by the
Cablevision Cash Incentive Plan in 2006) are ucédfd by the Distribution. Amounts applicable to émypes of the Company are reflected as
liabilities in the Company’s consolidated balanbeets until settled.

Transition Services Agreement

In connection with the Distribution, CablevisiondaAMC Networks entered into a Transition Serviceggement under which, in
exchange for the fees specified in such agreern@atiievision agreed to provide transition servicéh vegard to such areas as accounting,
information systems, risk management and employee
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services, compensation and benefits. Under thesitian Services Agreement, AMC Networks also pregidertain services to Cablevision
and MSG on behalf of Cablevision. The Company ireminet fees of $2,435 under the Transition Sesvikgreement for the year ended
December 31, 2011, which were recorded as a chiargglling, general and administrative expenses.

Under the Transition Services Agreement, AMC Neksgrovides transition services to Cablevision K85 with regard to its
information technology systems that AMC Networkap@vision and MSG may share. AMC Networks and &abion, as parties receiving
services under the agreement, have agreed to infjetin@ party providing services for losses incdrl® such party that arise out of or are
otherwise in connection with the provision by spelty of services under the agreement, excepttettent that such losses result from the
providing party’s gross negligence, willful miscard or breach of its obligations under the agredn&milarly, each party providing services
under the agreement has agreed to indemnify thg pareiving services for losses incurred by suattypthat arise out of or are otherwise in
connection with the indemnifying party’s provisiofservices under the agreement if such lossedt fesmn the providing party’s gross
negligence, willful misconduct or breach of itsightions under the agreement.

Note 20. Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of the Company’s seléaaarterly financial data for the years ended s 31, 2011 and 2010:

For the three months ended

September 3C December 31
March 31, June 30,

2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
Revenues, ne $ 272,90: $ 291,96! $ 283,91 $ 338,95¢ $1,187,74.
Operating expense (202,224 (209,69)) (189,47() (259,84() (861,22
Operating incom $ 70,67¢ $ 82,27/ $ 94,44« $ 7911¢ $ 326,51¢
Income from continuing operatiol $ 29,72 $ 27,05¢ $ 40,317 $ 29,26t $ 126,36:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nehobme

taxes 96 97 (3149 213 92
Net income $ 29,81¢ $ 27,15t $ 40,00: $ 29,47¢ $ 126,45:
Basic net income per share(
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.4: $ 03¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.42 $ 1.82
Loss from discontinued operatio $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Net income $ 0.4z $ 0.3¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4z $ 1.8¢
Diluted net income per share(
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.4c $ 03¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4C $ 1.7¢
Loss from discontinued operatio $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Net income $ 0.4z $ 0.3¢ $ 0.5t $ 0.41 $ 1.7¢
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For the three months ended,

September 3C December 31
March 31, June 30,

2010: 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
Revenues, net $ 248,37 $ 260,01: $ 271,43 $ 298,48: $1,078,30!
Operating expenst (187,34) (188,37 (194,50)) (228,24)) (798,46
Operating incom: $ 61,02¢ $ 71,63¢ $ 76,93 $ 70,24! $ 279,83t
Income from continuing operatiol $ 24,02¢ $ 30,51: $ 33,74 $ 29,907 $ 118,18¢
Loss from discontinued operations, net of incomxes (10,59¢) (8,411 (8,482 (10,60)) (38,090
Net income $ 13,43¢ $ 22,10! $ 25,25¢ $ 19,30¢ $ 80,09¢
Basic net income (loss) per share

Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.3t $ 0.4 $ 0.4¢ $ 0.4 $ 1.71
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (0.1%) $ (0.12 $ (0.12) $ (0.19 $ (0.55)
Net income $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3z $ 0.317 $ 0.2¢ $ 1.1¢€

(@) Common shares assumed to be outstanding fordagtic and diluted earnings per share duringhtteetmonths ended March 31, 2011
and June 30, 2011 and for each three month pendg@ar ended in 2010 totaled 69,161,000, repregetite number of shares of
Company common stock issued to Cablevision shadeh®bn the Distribution date, and excludes undesitstanding restricted shares,
based on a distribution ratio of one share of AM&works common stock for every four shares of Gabien common stock
outstanding

As set forth in the table above, there have beangés in the level of the Company’s revenues, et fluarter to quarter and/or changes
from year to year due primarily to increased adsirg revenue and, to a lesser extent, affiliafeaand other revenue items. In addition, the
Company’s operating expenses have also changedduamnter to quarter and/or year over year due pifyni@ the timing of the exhibition,
promotion and marketing of program rights and/agpam rights write-downs based on management'sassnt of programming usefulness.
In addition to the changes in operating income -operating income and expense items such as ih&xpsense, net, write-off of deferred
financing costs, loss on extinguishment of debtiandme tax expense also impact quarter over quanieé year over year net income.

F-46



Table of Contents

AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE |l
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(Dollars in thousands)

Deductions
Balance a
Provision Write-
Beginning Offs and
for Bad Other Balance at
of Period Debt Charges End of Period
Year Ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 8,321 $ 33¢ $ (5,560)* $ 3,09
Year Ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 7,761 $1,48¢ $  (930* $ 8,321
Year Ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 6,231 $2,52¢ $  (992)* $ 7,76%

* Amounts in 2011 represent primarily the write-offcertain uncollectible trade receivables that heeviously been fully reserved. Amounts
in 2010 and 2009 represent primarily the writeaiffrade receivables following the filing of banktay of certain advertisers and a cable
television system operatc
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Exhibit 10.3:
AMENDED AND RESTATED PERFORMANCE AWARD AGREEMENT

[Full Name of Employee]
[Date]
Dear [First Name]:

Pursuant to the 2006 Cash Incentive Plan (theri Blaf Cablevision Systems Corporation (the “ Compé&)) you were selected by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directoreteive a contingent cash award (the “ Awarelffective as of March 10, 2010 (the “
Effective Date’), and in connection therewith the Company and gotered into a Performance Award Agreement, dsli@ah , 2010 (the
“Original Award Agreement”). The Committee (as aefil in Section 10 below), in response to the writegjuest from the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors of AMC Netwotks. (the “AMC Compensation Committee”), has detieed to issue to you this
Amended and Restated Performance Award Agreemtaat‘(Agreement), which will replace and supersede the Originalakd Agreement.

Capitalized terms used, but not defined, in thise®gent have the meanings given to them in the FPla@m Award is subject to the terms
and conditions set forth below:

1. Amount and Payment of Awarth accordance with the terms of this Agreemdrd,target amount of your contingent Award is $ (the “
Target Award’), which may be increased or decreased to thenete performance objectives set forth on Annéreteto (the “ Objectivey
have been attained in respect of the period framaky 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 (the “dPerdnce Periot)). The Award,
calculated in accordance with Annex 1 attachedtbevéll become payable to you upon the date orcivithe Committee ratifies the
performance of AMC Networks Inc. against the Ohjexd (the “ Payment Dat® based upon the written certification made by AMC
Compensation Committee and provided to the Comendfehe level of achievement of AMC Networks lagainst the Objectives provided
that you have remained in the continuous emplay@iCompany or one of its Affiliates from the Effige Date through the Payment Date.

2. Termination of Employmentf, on the Payment Date, you are no longer engaldyy the Company or one of its Affiliates for aegson,
other than as a result of your death, then youautbmatically forfeit all of your rights and inést in the Award regardless of whether the
Objectives are attaine



3. Death. If, prior to the end of the Performance Pericaljryemployment with the Company or any of its Adfies is terminated as a result of
your death then your estate will receive, promfdiyd in any event within 30 days) following theelaf such termination, payment of 1
Target Award prorated for the number of completemhtihs of your employment during the Performancedéesrior to such termination. If
after the end of the Performance Period but pddhé Payment Date, your employment with the Compmarany of its Affiliates is terminated
as a result of your death then your estate wikirecon the Payment Date the Award, if any, to Wihyiou would have been entitled on the
Payment Date had your employment not been so tatedn

4. Going Private Transaction or Change in Control

a. Going Private Transaction. Notwithstanding amgho the contrary contained in this Agreemenatidny time a Going Private
Transaction (as defined below) occurs and immelgigigor to such transaction you are employed ly@ompany or one of its Affiliates, the
Target Award shall become payable to you whethemmothe Objectives have been attained at theeeai(i) January 1, 2013, providethat
you remain in the continuous employ of the Compamngne of its Affiliates from the Effective Daterttugh such date or (ii) the de
subsequent to the Going Private Transaction ontwyndcir employment with the Company or the survivemgity is terminated (A) by the
Company or the surviving entity other than for Ga(es defined below) or (B) by you for Good Rea@mdefined below). Notwithstanding
foregoing, if you become entitled to payment of Tleeéget Award by virtue of a termination in accarda with (ii)(A) or (ii)(B) of this
Section 4(a) and are determined by the Compansg t ispecified employee” within the meaning of 8#ct09A of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 409A of the )RB& Target Award shall be paid to you on thédieaof: (i) January 1, 2013, (ii) the date
that is six months from your date of employmenti@ation and (iii) any other date on which suchrpant or any portion thereof would be a
permissible distribution under Section 409A of IRE. In the event of such a determination, the Camypshall promptly following the date of
your employment termination set aside such amamydur benefit in ¢rabbi trust” that satisfies the requirements of/&sue Procedure 92-
64, and on a monthly basis shall deposit into dugdt interest in arrears (compounded quartertharate provided below) until such time as
such amount, together with all accrued interegethg, is paid to you in full pursuant to the prexcentence); providedhat no payment will
be made to such rabbi trust if it would be contrtariaw or cause you to incur additional tax un8lection 409A of the IRC. The initial interest
rate shall be the average of the one-year LIBORBdfisate equivalent for the ten business days twitite date of your employment termination.

b. Change in Control. Notwithstanding anythinghe tontrary contained in this Agreement but suligthe subsections of this Section 4
(b), if at any time a Change of Control (as defibetbw) of the Company occurs and immediately piaosuch transaction you are employe:
the Company or one of its Affiliates, you will bet#led to the payment of the Target Award whethienot the Objectives have been attained.
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i. If the actual Change of Control:

(A) is a permissible distribution event under Sac#09A of the IRC or payment of the Award prompthon such event is
otherwise permissible under Section 409A of the ([R€luding, for the avoidance of doubt, by reasbthe inapplicability of
Section 409A of the IRC to the Award), then thedgedrAward shall be paid to you by the Company prityrfpllowing the Change
of Control; or

(B) is not a permissible distribution event undect®n 409A of the IRC and payment of the Awardnppdly upon such event
is not otherwise permissible under Section 409&efIRC, then the Target Award shall be paid to pihe Company (together
with interest thereon pursuant to Section 4(bl@low) on the earliest to occur of:

(1) any subsequent date on which you are no loagpgoyed by the Company or any of its Affiliates &my reason
other than termination of your employment by onswih entities for Cause (provided that if youdetrmined by the
Company to be a “specified employee” within the mieg of Section 409A of the IRC, six months fronciswate);

(2) any other date on which such payment or angigrothereof would be a permissible distributiordan
Section 409A of the IRC; or

(3) January 1, 2013.

ii. Upon any Change of Control, to the extent amoants are due to be paid to you at a later datgupat to Section 4(b)(i)(B)
above, the Company shall promptly following the @ of Control set aside such amount for your bemeé “rabbi trust” that satisfies
the requirements of Revenue Procedure 92-64, ardnoonthly basis shall deposit into such trustreggein arrears (compounded
guarterly at the rate provided below) until suchetias such amount, together with all accrued istéhereon, is paid to you in full
pursuant to Section 4(b)(i)(B) above); providetat no payment will be made to such rabbi tifisivould be contrary to law or cause
you to incur additional tax under Section 409Alwd tRC. The initial interest rate shall be the agerof the one-year LIBOR fixed rate
equivalent for the ten business days prior to tite of the Change of Control and shall adjust aliywbased on the average of such rate
for the ten business days prior to each anniverstitye Change of Control.

If and to the extent that any payment under thigiSe 4 is determined by the Company to constitnen-qualified deferred
compensation” subject to Section 409A of the IR@ mnpayable to you by reason of your terminatibaroployment, then such payment shall
be made to you only upon a “separation from sehdsalefined for purposes of Section 409A of th€ lihder applicable regulations.

For purposes of this Agreement, “ Caliseeans, your (i) commission of an act of fraud bezzlement, misappropriation, willful
misconduct, gross negligence or breach of fiduaiaty against the Company or an Affiliate therewf(ii) commission of any act or omission
that results in a conviction, plea of no contelamfnolo contendere or imposition of unadjudicated probation for amyne involving moral
turpitude or any felony.

-3



For purposes of this Agreement, “ Change of Coritroéans the acquisition, in a transaction or aeseof related transactions, by any
person or group, other than Charles F. Dolan or beemof the immediate family of Charles F. Dolarraosts for the benefit of Charles F.
Dolan or his immediate family (or an entity or ¢ies controlled by any of them) or any employeedfi¢plan sponsored or maintained by the
Company, of (i) the power to direct the managenoésubstantially all the cable television systelrentowned by the Company in the New
York City Metropolitan Area (as defined below) @ &fter any fiscal year of the Company in whidhthe systems referred to in clause (i)
above shall have contributed in the aggregatetfessa majority of the net revenues of the Companyits consolidated subsidiaries, the
power to direct the management of the Company lostantially all its assets. For purposes of thfind@®n, net revenues shall be determined
by the independent accountants of the Companydardance with generally accepted accounting priasiponsistently applied and certified
by such accountants.

For purposes of this Agreement, “ Going Privaten§egction” means a transaction involving the purchase of gamy securities
described in Rule 13e-3 to the Securities and Exgaa\ct of 1934.

For purposes of this Agreement, “ Good Redsmeans: (a) without your express written conseyt i@duction in your base salary or
bonus potential, or any material impairment or mateadverse change in your working conditionstfessame may from time to time have
been improved or, with your written consent, othisenaltered, in each case, after the Grant Data)yatime after or within ninety (90) days
prior to the Going Private Transaction includingtheut limitation, any material reduction of youther compensation, executive perquisites or
other employee benefits (measured, where applichlkevel or participation or percentage of awander any plans of the Company), or
material impairment or material adverse changeoof yevel of responsibility, authority, autonomytitke, or to your scope of duties; (b) any
failure by the Company to comply with any of theysions of this Agreement, other than an insuligthar inadvertent failure remedied by
the Company promptly after receipt of notice thégieen by you; (c) the Company’s requiring yous® based at any office or location more
than thirty-five (35) miles from your location immhiately prior to the Going Private Transaction gxtder travel reasonably required in the
performance of your responsibilities; or (d) anjufiee by the Company to obtain the assumption ardement to perform this Agreement by a
successor.

For purposes of this Agreement, “ New York City kégtolitan Ared’ means all locations within the following counti€d New York,
Richmond, Kings, Queens, Bronx, Nassau, Suffolksi¢leester, Rockland, Orange, Putnam, Sullivan, litags, and Ulster in New York State;
(i) Hudson, Bergen, Passaic, Sussex, Warren, Hdore Somerset, Union, Morris, Middlesex, Mercenrivhouth, Essex and Ocean in New
Jersey; (iii) Pike in Pennsylvania; and (iv) Faildi and New Haven in Connecticut.

5. Termination. Except for a right which has accrued to receipaynent on account of the Award, this Agreemeatl stutomatically
terminate and be of no further force and effecthenPayment Date.

6. Transfer RestrictionsYou may not transfer, assign, pledge or othengrsmumber the Award other than to the extent pexvid the Plan.
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7. Unfunded Obligation The Plan will at all times be unfunded and, ex@apset forth in Section 4(b) of this Agreememwtpnovision will at

any time be made with respect to segregating asgtasf the Company or any of its Affiliates foypaent of any benefits under the Plan,
including, without limitation, those covered bygtgreement. Your right or that of your estategioeive payments under this Agreement shall
be an unsecured claim against the general assttte Gompany, including any rabbi trust establisheduant to Section 4(b). Neither you nor
your estate shall have any rights in or againstspegific assets of the Company other than theésakeéd by the rabbi trust established purs

to Section 4(b).

8. Tax Representations and Tax Withholdingpu hereby acknowledge that you have reviewetd witur own tax advisors the federal, state
local tax consequences of receiving the Award. Wereby represent to the Company that you are igahely on such advisors and not on
statements or representations of the Company fiiliafes or any of their respective agents. Ifcimnnection with the Award, the Company is
required to withhold any amounts by reason of auefal, state or local tax, such withholding shalkffected in accordance with Section 8 of
the Plan.

9. Right of OffsetYou hereby agree that if the Company shall oweamyamount that does not constitute “non-qualifieterred
compensation” pursuant to Section 409A of the IR@ { CompanyOwed Amount’) under this Agreement, then the Company shalehtae
right to offset against the Company-Owed Amounthemaximum extent permitted by law, any amoumas$ you may owe to the Company or
its Affiliates of whatever nature.

10. The Committee For purposes of this Agreement, the term “ Corteait means the Compensation Committee of the Boafirgfctors of
the Company or any replacement committee establishder, and as more fully defined in, the Plan.

11.Committee DiscretionThe Committee has full discretion with respecany actions to be taken or determinations to béenira connection
with this Agreement, and its determinations shalfibal, binding and conclusive.

12. Amendment The Committee reserves the right at any timefeord time to time to amend or revise the terms esntitions set forth in th
Agreement, except that the Committee may not malkesach amendment or revision in a manner unfavetabyou (other than if immaterial)
without your consent. Any amendment of this Agreetshall be in writing and signed by an authorigeginber of the Committee or a person
or persons designated by the Committee.

13. Award Subject to the PlarThe Award and all other amounts payable hereuadesubject to the Plan.

14.Entire Agreement Except for any employment agreement between pdutae Company or any of its Affiliates in effestaf the date of
the grant hereof (as such employment agreementmayodified, renewed or replaced), this Agreemadtthe Plan constitute the entire
understanding and agreement of you and the Compahyespect to the Award covered hereby and seplerall prior understandings and
agreements. In the event of a conflict among treih@nts with respect to the terms and conditiorte@fward covered hereby, the
documents will be accorded the following order atharity: the terms and conditions of the Plan Wwdle highest authority followed by the
terms and conditions of your employment agreenikahy, followed by the terms and conditions okthigreement.
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15. Successors and Assignshe terms and conditions of this Agreement dbalbinding upon, and shall inure to the benefitlod, Company
and its successors and assigns.

16. Governing Law This Agreement shall be deemed to be made uaddrin all respects be interpreted, construed andrged by and in
accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

17. Jurisdiction and VenueYou irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of theurts of the State of New York and the Federaltisoof the

United States located in the Southern District Badtern District of the State of New York in redpafcthe interpretation and enforcement of
the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, @by waive, and agree not to assert, as a detfesisgou are not subject thereto or that the
venue thereof may not be appropriate. You agrdethieanailing of process or other papers in corniaeavith any action or proceeding in any
manner permitted by law shall be valid and suffitigervice.

18. Waiver. No waiver by the Company at any time of any bineag you of, or compliance with, any term or coiuditof this Agreement or tf
Plan to be performed by you shall be deemed a waivine same, any similar or any dissimilar temnt@ndition at the same or at any prior or
subsequent time.

19. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be dees®drable and the invalidity or unenforceabilityaafy term or condition
hereof shall not affect the validity or enforcedpibf the other terms and conditions set forthelirer

20. Exclusion from Compensation CalculatioBy acceptance of this Agreement, you shall besiclamed in agreement that the Award shall be
considered special incentive compensation andbgikxempt from inclusion as “wages” or “salary’pension, retirement, life insurance and
other employee benefits arrangements of the Compadyts Affiliates, except as determined otheriigghe Company. In addition, each of
your beneficiaries shall be deemed to be in agreethat the Award shall be exempt from inclusior“wages” or “salary” for purposes of
calculating benefits of any life insurance coveragensored by the Company or any of its Affiliates.

21.No Right to Continued Employmertothing contained in this Agreement or the Plaallsbe construed to confer on you any right to
continue in the employ of the Company or any Adtidi, or derogate from the right of the Companynyr Affiliate, as applicable, to retire,
request the resignation of, or discharge you, gtiame, with or without cause.

22. Affiliates of the Companyotwithstanding Section 2(a) of the Plan, for pugmof Sections 2, 3, 4 (other than the definitibfCause” set
forth in such Section), 9 and 14 of this Agreemaatther Madison Square Garden, Inc. nor any dfutssidiaries shall be considered an
“Affiliate” of the Company.
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23.Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for purpo$esmvenience only and are not intended to defiml@rot the construction of
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

24. Effective Date Upon execution by you, this Agreement shall beative from and as of the Effective Date.

25. Signatures Execution of this Agreement by the Company majnltee form of an electronic or similar signatured such signature shall
be treated as an original signature for all purpose

CABLEVISION SYSTEMS CORPORATIO?

By:

James L. Dolal
President and CE!

By your signature, you (i) acknowledge that a catemtopy of the Plan and an executed originalisfAlgreement have been made
available to you and (ii) agree to all of the teramsgl conditions set forth in the Plan and this &grent.

Name:



Annex 1
AMC Networks Inc. Performance Objectives
($ in thousands)
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Exhibit 12

AMC NETWORKS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(Dollars in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Earnings:

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeoime taxe: $210,61( $206,26. $158,95: $(17,844) $ 27,60(
Fixed charge 100,30° 79,92! 84,47, 106,22° 130,58:
Total earnings as adjust $310,91° $286,18: $243,42' $ 88,38! $158,18:

Fixed Charges:
Interest Expense (’ $ 95,87C $ 75,80( $ 79,77¢ $101,48° $126,67¢
Portion of rents representative of an interestofic 4,43 4,121 4,69: 4,74( 3,90¢
Total fixed charge $100,30° $ 79,92 $ 84,47 $106,22° $130,58:
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 3.1 3.€ 2.9 0.8 1.2

(*) Interest expense includes the amortized premiuisspdnts and capitalized expenses related to iedebss



Subsidiaries of the Registrant

AMC Networks Inc.

Subsidiary
Rainbow Media Holdings LLC

11 Penn TV, LLC
RMH GE Holdings |, Inc
Sundance Channel L.L.!
AMC/Sundance Channel Global Networks L
WE tv Asia LLC
Sundance Channel Europe LI
Sundance Channel (UK) Limite
Sundance Channel Asia LL
Rainbow Media Enterprises, Ir
Rainbow Programming Holdings LL
IPTV LLC
Yeah IPTV LLC
Rainbow National Services LL
The Independent Film Channel LL
RNS Cc-Issuer Corporatio
American Movie Classis |V Holdings Corporati
AMC Television Productions LL(
TWD Productions LLC
TWD Productions Il LLC
TWD Productions Il LLC
Crossed Pens Development LI
Rectify Productions LL(
American Movie Classis Company LL
AMC Film Holdings LLC
WE Womer's Entertainment LL(
Making Waves Studio Production LL
Sleuth Secrets Productions LI
Red Monday Programming LL
Five Moons Production | LL(
LS VOD Holdings LLC
LS VOD Company LLC
IFC Entertainment Holdings LL!
IFC Entertainment LL(
Digital Store LLC
IFC Films LLC
IFC In Theaters LLC
Selects VOD LLC
IFC Productions | L.L.C

Jurisdiction of

Exhibit 21

Percent

Formation Owned
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
United Kingdon 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
New York 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%
Delaware 10C%



IFC Theatres, LLC

IFC Theatres Concessions LI

Rainbow Film Holdings LLC

Wedding Central LLC

VOOM HD Holdings LLC
Animania Company LL(
Epics Company LL(
Equator HD Company LL(
Gallery HD Company LL(C
Gameplay HD Company LL!

HD Cinema 10 Company LL

Monsters Company LL(
LAB HD Company LLC
Newshbytes Company LL
Rave Company LL(
Rush HD Company LL(
Treasure HD Company LL
Ultra HD Company LLC
World Sport Company LL(
Sports On Demand LL!
RNC Holding Corporatiol

AMC Networks Broadcasting & Technolor

RNC Il Holding Corporatior

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
New York
Delaware

10C%
10C%
10C%
10C%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
80%
10C%
10C%
10C%
10C%



Exhibit 2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourinm

The Board of Directors
AMC Networks Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statement (No. 333-175206) on ForBhd3-AMC Networks Inc. and
subsidiaries (“AMC Networks”) of our report datecahdh 15, 2012, with respect to the consolidatedrza sheets of AMC Networks as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related cdiasetl statements of income, stockholders’ (defayigerquity and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthe2(® 1, and the related consolidated financiaéstant schedule, which report appears in
the December 31, 2011 annual report on Form 10-KME€ Networks.

/s KPMG LLP
New York, New York
March 15, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

I, Joshua W. Sapan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of AN&tworks Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the periods covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the Registrant as of, and for, théopls presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHerRegistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhseibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) [ Omitted pursuant to SEC Release No. 34-54942

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prosesias of the end of the period covered by tiientébased on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the Reggi$'s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the Registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s int@t control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer andave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial reporting,
to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committethe Registrant’s board of directors (or pessparforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regidteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the Registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2012 By: /s/ Joshua W. Sap:
Joshua W. Sape
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

I, Sean S. Sullivan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of AN&tworks Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the periods covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the Registrant as of, and for, théopls presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHerRegistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhseibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) [ Omitted pursuant to SEC Release No. 34-54942

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prosesias of the end of the period covered by tiientébased on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the Reggi$'s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the Registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s int@t control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer andave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial reporting,
to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committethe Registrant’s board of directors (or pessparforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regidteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the Registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2012 By: /s/ Sean S. Sulliva
Sean S. Sulliva
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32
Certifications

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, each of the undezdigfficers of AMC Networks Inc. (“AMC Networks”)dneby certifies, to such
officer’'s knowledge, that AMC Networks’ Annual Repon Form 10-K for the period ended December 8112(the “Report”) fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d)a@aglicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1384 that the information contained in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respedts, financial condition and results of operation&MC Networks.

Date: March 15, 2012 By: /s/ Joshua W. Sapan

Joshua W. Sape
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: March 15, 2012 By: /s/ Sean S. Sullivan
Sean S. Sulliva
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




